# PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN

1111 18/09

Volume 49 Number 25 Saturday, June 22, 2019 • Harrisburg, PA Pages 3203—3286

> Agencies in this issue Capitol Preservation Committee Department of Agriculture Department of Banking and Securities Department of Environmental Protection Department of Health Department of Human Services Fish and Boat Commission Independent Regulatory Review Commission Insurance Department Milk Marketing Board Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission State Board of Pharmacy State Conservation Commission State Police Susquehanna River Basin Commission Detailed list of contents appears inside.





Latest Pennsylvania Code Reporter (Master Transmittal Sheet): No. 535, June 2019	CUT ON DOTTED LINES AND ENCLOSE IN AN ENVELOPE CHANGE NOTICE/NEW SUBSCRIPTION If information on mailing label is incorrect, please email changes to into@pabulletin.com or mail to: FRY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Afthn: Pennsy/Vania Bulletin 800 W. Church Rd. Mechanicsburg, PA 17055-3198	CUSTOMER NUMBER (6 digit number above name on mailing label) NAME OF INDIVIDUAL OFFICE NAME—TITLE ADDRESS (Number and Street) (City) (State) (Zip Code) TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY

## PENNSYLVANIA



## BULLETIN

(ISSN 0162-2137)

Postmaster send address changes to:

FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc. Attn: Pennsylvania Bulletin 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198 (717) 766-0211 ext. 2340 (800) 334-1429 ext. 2340 (toll free, out-of-State) (800) 524-3232 ext. 2340 (toll free, in State) The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is published weekly by Fry Communications, Inc. for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Legislative Reference Bureau, 641 Main Capitol Building, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120, under the policy supervision and direction of the Joint Committee on Documents under 45 Pa.C.S. Part II (relating to publication and effectiveness of Commonwealth documents). The subscription rate is \$87.00 per year, postpaid to points in the United States. Individual copies are \$2.50. Checks for subscriptions and individual copies should be made payable to "Fry Communications, Inc." Periodicals postage paid at Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

Orders for subscriptions and other circulation matters should be sent to:

Fry Communications, Inc. Attn: *Pennsylvania Bulletin* 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198

Copyright © 2019 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Editorial preparation, composition, printing and distribution of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is effected on behalf of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc., 800 West Church Road, Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198.

## CONTENTS

## EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT AGENCIES

#### CAPITOL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

Notices

Request for proposals ..... 3217

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

#### Notices

Pennsylvania Wine Marketing and Research Board; grant solicitation and application procedures ..... 3217

#### DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### **Notices**

### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

#### Notices

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

#### Notices

#### **DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES**

#### **Notices**

Disproportionate share payments for obstetrical and	
neonatal services	273

#### FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

Rules and Regulations

Fishing; s	pecial	fishing	regulations.	 	3215

#### INDEPENDENT REGULATORY REVIEW COMMISSION

#### Notices

Notice of comments	issued	 	3273

#### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

#### Notices

Application for approval to acquire control of 21st	
Century Preferred Insurance Company	74
Derrick Locke; license denial appeal; doc. No.	
AG19-06-001	74
Review procedure hearings; cancellation or refusal	
of insurance	75
Review procedure hearings under the Unfair Insur-	
ance Practices Act 327	75

#### MILK MARKETING BOARD

#### Notices

Sunshine meetings for fiscal year 2019-2020...... 3275

#### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Notices

Petition of Duquesne Light Company; prehearing

conference	76
Service of notice of motor carrier applications 32	77
Service of notice of motor carrier formal complaints. 32	277

#### STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

#### **Rules and Regulations**

Comr	oounding.				3210
Comp	Jounuing.	 	 	 	0210

#### STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

#### Notices

#### STATE POLICE

#### Notices

Megan's Law; registration sites report 327	Megan's	Law:	registration	sites	report.			32	79
--	---------	------	--------------	-------	---------	--	--	----	----

## SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

#### Notices

Grandfat	thering reg	istra	ation notice			3283
Projects	approved	for	consumptive	uses	of	water
(2 doci	uments)					3283

## Available Online at http://www.pabulletin.com

## READER'S GUIDE TO THE PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN AND THE PENNSYLVANIA CODE

#### Pennsylvania Bulletin

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the official gazette of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. It is published weekly. A cumulative subject matter index is published quarterly.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* serves several purposes. It is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, which is the official codification of agency rules and regulations, Statewide court rules, and other statutorily authorized documents. Changes in the codified text, whether by adoption, amendment, rescission, repeal or emergency action, must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

The following documents are published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*: Governor's Executive Orders; Summaries of Enacted Statutes; Statewide and Local Court Rules; Attorney General Opinions; Motor Carrier Applications before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission; Applications and Actions before the Department of Environmental Protection; Orders of the Independent Regulatory Review Commission; and other documents authorized by law.

The text of certain documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the only valid and enforceable text. Courts are required to take judicial notice of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of Regulations

Generally an agency wishing to adopt, amend or rescind regulations must first publish in the *Penn-sylvania Bulletin* a Proposed Rulemaking. There are limited instances when the agency may omit the proposal step; it still must publish the adopted version.

The Proposed Rulemaking contains the full text of the change, the agency contact person, a fiscal note required by law and background for the action.

The agency then allows sufficient time for public comment before taking final action. A Final Rulemaking must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* before the changes can take effect. If the agency wishes to adopt changes to the Proposed Rulemaking to enlarge the scope, it must repropose.

#### Citation to the Pennsylvania Bulletin

Cite material in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* by volume number, a page number and date. Example: Volume 1, *Pennsylvania Bulletin*, page 801, January 9, 1971 (short form: 1 Pa.B. 801 (January 9, 1971)).

#### Pennsylvania Code

The *Pennsylvania Code* is the official codification of rules and regulations issued by Commonwealth agencies, Statewide court rules and other statutorily authorized documents. The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, printing changes when they are adopted. These changes are then permanently codified by the *Pennsylvania Code Reporter*, a monthly, loose-leaf supplement.

The *Pennsylvania Code* is cited by title number and section number. Example: Title 10 *Pennsylvania Code* § 1.1 (short form: 10 Pa. Code § 1.1).

Under the *Pennsylvania Code* codification system, each regulation is assigned a unique number by title and section. Titles roughly parallel the organization of Commonwealth government.

#### How to Find Rules and Regulations

Search for your area of interest in the *Pennsylvania Code*. The *Pennsylvania Code* is available at www.pacode.com.

Source Notes give the history of regulations. To see if there have been recent changes not yet codified, check the List of *Pennsylvania Code* Chapters Affected in the most recent issue of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

A chronological table of the history of *Pennsylvania Code* sections may be found at www.legis.state. pa.us/cfdocs/legis/CH/Public/pcde\_index.cfm.

A quarterly List of *Pennsylvania Code* Sections Affected lists the regulations in numerical order, followed by the citation to the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* in which the change occurred.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is available at www. pabulletin.com.

#### Subscription Information: (717) 766-0211 General Information and Finding Aids: (717) 783-1530

#### **Printing Format**

#### Rules, Regulations and Statements of Policy in Titles 1–107 of the Pennsylvania Code

Text proposed to be added is printed in **underscored bold face**. Text proposed to be deleted is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and sections are printed in regular type to enhance readability. Final rulemakings and statements of policy are printed in regular type.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

In Proposed Rulemakings and proposed Statements of Policy, existing text corresponds to the official codified text in the *Pennsylvania Code*.

Court Rules in Titles 201–246 of the Pennsylvania Code

Added text in proposed and adopted court rules is printed in <u>underscored bold face</u>. Deleted text in proposed and adopted court rules is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and rules are printed in regular type to enhance readability.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

#### **Fiscal Notes**

Section 612 of The Administrative Code of 1929 (71 P. S. § 232) requires the Governor's Budget Office to prepare a fiscal note for regulatory actions and administrative procedures of the administrative departments, boards, commissions and authorities receiving money from the State Treasury. The fiscal note states whether the action or procedure causes a loss of revenue or an increase in the cost of programs for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. The fiscal note is required to be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at the same time as the change is advertised.

A fiscal note provides the following information: (1) the designation of the fund out of which the appropriation providing for expenditures under the action or procedure shall be made; (2) the probable cost for the fiscal year the program is implemented; (3) projected cost estimate of the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (4) fiscal history of the program for which expenditures are to be made; (5) probable loss of revenue for the fiscal year of its implementation; (6) projected loss of revenue from the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (7) line item, if any, of the General Appropriation Act or other appropriation act out of which expenditures or losses of Commonwealth funds shall occur as a result of the action or procedures; and (8) recommendation, if any, of the Secretary of the Budget and the reasons therefor.

The omission of an item indicates that the agency text of the fiscal note states that there is no information available with respect thereto. In items (3) and (6) information is set forth for the first through fifth fiscal years, following the year the program is implemented, which is stated. In item (4) information is set forth for the current and two immediately preceding years. In item (8) the recommendation, if any, made by the Secretary of the Budget is published with the fiscal note. "No fiscal impact" means no additional cost or revenue loss to the Commonwealth or its local political subdivision is intended. See 4 Pa. Code Chapter 7, Subchapter R (relating to fiscal notes).

#### **Reproduction, Dissemination or Publication of Information**

Third parties may not take information from the *Pennsylvania Code* and *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and reproduce, disseminate or publish information except as provided by 1 Pa. Code § 3.44:

#### § 3.44. General permission to reproduce content of Code and Bulletin.

Information published under this part, which information includes, but is not limited to, cross references, tables of cases, notes of decisions, tables of contents, indexes, source notes, authority notes, numerical lists and codification guides, other than the actual text of rules or regulations may be reproduced only with the written consent of the [Legislative Reference] Bureau. The information which appears on the same leaf with the text of a rule or regulation, however, may be incidentally reproduced in connection with the reproduction of the rule or regulation, if the reproduction is for the private use of a subscriber and not for resale. There are no other restrictions on the reproduction of information published under this part, and the Common-wealth hereby consents to a reproduction.

## List of Pa. Code Chapters Affected

The following numerical guide is a list of the chapters of each title of the *Pennsylvania Code* affected by documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* during 2019.

4 Pa. Code (Administration) Adopted Rules	
$\begin{array}{c}1\\5\\6\\\ldots\\\end{array}$	. 438
7a	1297
602	1297
605 606 607	1297
Statements of Policy	1201
9	
22 Pa. Code (Education) Proposed Rules	
235	1905
25 Pa. Code (Environmental Protection) Adopted Rules	
77	2491
<b>Proposed Rules</b> 91 1518,	1665
92a 1518,	
93	
121	
28 Pa. Code (Health and Safety) Proposed Rules	
27	2605
34 Pa. Code (Labor and Industry) Adopted Rules	0077
401 403	
405	
Proposed Rules	1501
91 1657, 93 1657,	
95 1657,	
111	
40 Pa. Code (Liquor) Proposed Rules 5	1099
49 Pa. Code (Professional and Vocational Stands Adopted Rules 27	-
Proposed Rules	
21	
23 33	
	1000

#### 52 Pa. Code (Public Utilities) **Adopted Rules** 56 ..... 2815 **Statements of Policy 69** ..... **466**, **929**, **3083** 58 Pa. Code (Recreation) **Adopted Rules** 75 ..... 1323 133 ..... 1362 830 ..... 1024 **Proposed Rules** 139 ..... 1390 141 ...... 1386, 1388, 2611, 2612, 2614 61 Pa. Code (Revenue) **Proposed Rules** 67 Pa. Code (Transportation) Adopted Rules 101 Pa. Code (General Assembly) **Statements of Policy** 701 ..... 1154 201 Pa. Code (Rules of Judicial Administration) **Adopted Rules** 7 ..... 2911 **Proposed Rules** 51 ..... 1645 204 Pa. Code (Judicial System General Provisions) **Adopted Rules** 83 ..... 824, 915, 1020, 1772, 2209 **Proposed Rules** 307 ..... 2103 210 Pa. Code (Appellate Procedure) **Adopted Rules** 5 ..... 1510 17 ..... 832

#### **Proposed Rules**

1		• •	 •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		 		 	•	 •	•		. 1	82	25	)
3													•	•														•	•	•		 	 		 	• •	 •	•				10	)
9														•																			 		 	•	 		. :	2	7	12	2
19						•	•						•	•														•	•	•		 	 		 	• •	 •	•			82	25	j
21				•		•	•	•					•	•	•	•	•									•		•	•	•			 		 	• •	 			1	82	25	j
35																																	 		 		 			. (	6(	)2	2

#### 225 Pa. Code (Rules of Evidence)

#### **Proposed Rules**

Article IV	18
Article IX165, 13	36

#### 231 Pa. Code (Rules of Civil Procedure)

#### **Adopted Rules**

200 169
1000
1900
1910 170
1915
1920
2000 608
2250 608

#### **Proposed Rules**

$5 \ldots \ldots \ldots 4$	44
200	74
1915	14
1930	14

#### 234 Pa. Code (Rules of Criminal Procedure) Adopted Rules

4
Proposed Rules
2
4
5 197, 833, 1357
10

## 237 Pa. Code (Juvenile Rules)

#### **Adopted Rules**

~ ~ ~

1	 •	•	 •		•	•		•		•	•	•	•	 	 •		4	2(	)8	3,	6	31	0	),	1	1	42	,	1	5	12	2
3								•				•	 •	 	 															9	16	5
5								•				•	 •	 	 								2	0	8,	, (	61	0	,	9	16	5
11 .			 					•				•		 	 										•		20	8	,	6	10	)
D				-																												

#### **Proposed Rules**

1	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•			•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•			•	•		•	•	•				18	9'	7
2	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•								•	•	•	•	•			•													18	98	3
5	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•								•	•	•	•	•			•													24	74	4
6	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•					•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•			•	•		•						24	74	4

#### 246 Pa. Code (Minor Court Civil Rules)

**Proposed Rules** 

200	•	•			•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	 					•	1900	
300							•	•		•							•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•			•	•		 					•	1900	
400							•	•		•							•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•			•	•		 					•	1900	
500							•	•		•							•	•	•	•				•	•	•			•	•							1900	
120	0						•	•		•							•	•	•	•				•	•				•								1772	

#### 249 Pa. Code (Philadelphia Rules)

Unclassified	1514,	1648,	1998,	2477
--------------	-------	-------	-------	------

#### 252 Pa. Code (Allegheny County Rules)

Unclassified 2220	), 2221
-------------------	---------

#### 255 Pa. Code (Local Court Rules)

Unclassified 12, 13, 14, 214, 215, 216, 274, 380, 445, 446, 453, 616, 619, 706, 707, 838, 917, 918, 919, 920, 1020, 1021, 1022, 1360, 1515, 1517, 1653, 1774, 2221, 2226, 2342, 2346, 2347, 2348, 2488, 2489, 2603, 2604, 2716, 2717, 2718, 2912

## **RULES AND REGULATIONS**

## Title 49—PROFESSIONAL AND VOCATIONAL STANDARDS

### STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY [ 49 PA. CODE CH. 27 ]

#### Compounding

The State Board of Pharmacy (Board) amends §§ 27.1 and 27.12 (relating to definitions; and practice of pharmacy and delegation of duties) and adds §§ 27.601—27.606 to read as set forth in Annex A.

#### Statutory Authority

This final-form rulemaking is authorized under sections 4(j) and 6(k)(1) and (9) of the Pharmacy Act (act) (63 P.S. §§ 390-4(j) and 390-6(k)(1) and (9)).

#### Background

Since at least 2010, the Board has been considering promulgating regulations setting standards for the compounding of drug products by pharmacists. Then, in October 2012, National headlines reported a meningitis outbreak of epidemic proportions. The cause was quickly identified as contaminated compounded injectable medications made by a commercial compounding pharmacy located in Massachusetts. Since that time, representatives of the Board have met with interested parties and stakeholders, including representatives from the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA), with a goal of promulgating regulations incorporating developments and improvements in the profession's safe, sterile practices and procedures for the compounding of pharmaceutical products for patients.

To that end, the Board published a notice of proposed rulemaking at 47 Pa.B. 1509 (March 11, 2017). Publication of the proposal was followed by a 30-day public comment period. The Board received comments from the Pennsylvania Academy of Opthalmology; the Pennsylvania Allergy and Asthma Association; the American Academy of Dermatology and Pennsylvania Academy of Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery; Cardinal Health; the Pennsylvania Medical Society; Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh; the Pennsylvania Academy of Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery (PAO-HNS); Christine Roussel, PharmD, Assistant Director of Pharmacy at Doylestown Health; the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists; and the Pennsylvania Society of Oncology and Hematology and the American Society of Clinical Oncology. The Board also received comments from the House Professional Licensure Committee (HPLC) by letter dated April 25, 2017. The Pennsylvania Senate Consumer Protection and Professional Licensure Committee (SCP/PLC) did not submit comments. On May 10, 2017, the Independent Regulatory Review Committee (IRRC) submitted their comments on the proposed rulemaking. IRRC's comments included fair summarizations of the comments received from the other commenters. The Board discussed the comments at several public meetings and voted to proceed with this final-form rulemaking at its meeting on January 7, 2019.

Summary of Comments, the Board's Response and Descriptions of Amendments

#### Generally

Initially, IRRC commented that the Preamble states that "all compounding shall be done in accordance with the current version of the United States Pharmacopeia (USP)," but pointed out that section 390-8(2) of the act (63 P.S. § 390-8(2)) provides that "nothing herein shall be construed to prevent a duly licensed medical practitioner from dispensing, compounding or otherwise giving any drug to his own patients after diagnosis or treatment of said patient, if such compounding, preparing and dispens-ing is done by said licensee himself...." The comment included a request to clarify the effect, if any, of this regulation on licensed medical practitioners other than pharmacists. Commenters Pennsylvania Academy of Opthalmology, Pennsylvania Allergy and Asthma Association, American Academy of Dermatology and Pennsylvania Academy of Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery, Pennsylvania Medical Society and the PAO-HNS expressed similar concerns.

The Board considered this comment and notes that nothing in the proposed regulation indicates it applies to practitioners other than pharmacists. The act does not provide the Board the authority to regulate practitioners other than pharmacists, and the Board feels the focus of the proposed regulation makes clear the Board's intent to regulate compounding by pharmacists only.

In the same comment, IRRC noted the questions on the inspection form attached to the regulatory analysis form apply only to sterile compounding and questioned whether there will be any changes to the inspection forms related to nonsterile compounding. The Board has revised the inspection form to include questions related to nonsterile compounding.

IRRC also pointed out the Board's inconsistent application of, or reference to, the USP chapters on compounding. Commenters, including Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh and the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists, likewise, ask the Board to remove sections that paraphrase existing USP chapters and to remove sections which appear in USP chapters in greater detail. Instead, commenters ask the Board to directly reference relevant USP chapters to avoid conflicting requirements in the future.

The Board considered these comments and the confusion that has apparently resulted from the Board's inconsistent treatment of the USP throughout the proposed rulemaking and decided to simplify the final-form rulemaking. In response to these comments, the Board has removed the sections which reference, paraphrase or which contain language that is otherwise covered by relevant USP provisions (\$ 27.603–27.605, 27.608–27.615, 27.617–27.619 and 27.622–27.624), and has renumbered the remaining six sections. Instead, the Board will rely on § 27.601 (relating to compounding of preparations), as amended in this final-form rulemaking, to require compounding pharmacists to adhere to section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.A. § 353a), the Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, and the current version of the USP chapters governing compounding. These amendments ensure the regulations do not conflict with FDA requirements going forward.

#### § 27.1 (relating to definitions)

Cardinal Health suggested that the definition of compounding should be modified to clarify that compounding does not include reconstitution of a drug product under a manufacturer's direction. Similarly, the Pennsylvania Society of Hematology and Oncology and the American Society of Clinical Oncology requested clarification that the proposed compounding regulations do not apply to the routine dilution and reconstitution of drug products. Section 503a(e) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act provides "the term 'compounding' does not include mixing, reconstituting, or other such acts that are per-formed in accordance with directions contained in approved labeling provided by the product's manufacturer and other manufacturer directions consistent with that labeling." The Board considered this suggestion and determined the Federal definition is an industry-wide standard and so well-known to the regulated community of pharmacists that it is unnecessary to duplicate it within this final-form rulemaking.

## *§* 27.12 (relating to practice of pharmacy and delegation of duties)

IRRC and the HPLC raised a concern related to § 27.12(d)(2)(vii) and requested additional information to clarify what pharmacy technicians may do and what they are prohibited from doing when assisting in the compounding of drug products. In response, the Board notes the delegation provisions already in place in 27.12(b)(2), which require the pharmacist to provide direct, immediate and personal supervision of pharmacy technicians. Direct, immediate and personal supervision means the supervising pharmacist must review the prescription or drug order, verify the final product and be immediately available on the premises to direct the work of the pharmacy technicians and to respond to questions or problems. Further, § 27.12(d)(3) provides that pharmacy technicians may not enter or be in a pharmacy if a pharmacist is not on duty, perform any act within the practice of pharmacy that involves discretion or independent judgment, or perform a duty until the technician has been trained and the duty has been specified in a written protocol. Finally, § 27.12(d)(4) provides that the pharmacist manager shall create and maintain a written protocol for each pharmacy technician, specifying each duty the pharmacy technician may perform.

The proposed regulation sought to add a new subparagraph (vii) under § 27.12(d)(2) which states specifically that a pharmacy technician may assist in the compounding of drug products. To provide some clarity and direction, the Board has added to subparagraph (vii) in this final-form rulemaking "as permitted by the written protocol created and maintained in accordance with paragraph (4)."

#### § 27.602 (relating to compounding commercially available product)

The American Academy of Dermatology and the Pennsylvania Academy of Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery noted that this section incorporates the FDA's draft guidance on compounding drugs that are essentially copies of commercially available drug products, with the addition of proposed language permitting such compounding if it is "in the best interest of the patient." They ask if the FDA were to adopt its draft guidance, would the FDA's guidance supersede Commonwealth law? In addition, Cardinal Health commented that a pharmacist using a commercially manufactured, FDA approved drug product in the course of compounding will not have COAs (certificates of analysis) for these FDA-approved drugs, and asked that the Board consider this scenario.

In response, and to eliminate any confusion regarding § 27.602 and FDA requirements and definitions, the Board has removed this section from this final-form rulemaking and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.603 (relating to bulk drug substances)

IRRC raised a concern that the Board proposes to adopt the FDA Pharmacy Compounding of Human Drug Products Under Section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act Guidance (FDA Guidance) concerning bulk drug substances, but the proposed regulation provides for an exception for bulk drug substances that are not subject to a monograph in paragraph 2(iii) to allow for bulk drug substances that "peer-reviewed literature supports and, in the professional judgment of the pharmacist and prescriber, demonstrates the safety and effectiveness of the bulk drug substances." IRRC notes a concern that this exception is not regulatory language, does not set a binding norm, and the FDA Guidance does not allow for it. The American Academy of Dermatology and Pennsylvania Academy of Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery raise a similar concern.

To address these concerns, the Board has removed this section from this final-form rulemaking and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601, which simply requires compounding pharmacists to adhere to section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, the Federal regulations promulgated thereunder and the relevant USP chapters on compounding.

Commenters Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh, and Christine Roussel, PharmD, indicated concerns with the use of the term "bulk drug substance," noting its possible confusion with the term "active pharmaceutical ingredients," which is the common term used in the USP. Although this section has been removed from this final-form rulemaking, the Board notes that "bulk drug substance" is the term used in section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, and that regulations at 21 CFR 207.3 (relating to bulk drug substance) provide that "[b]ulk drug substance, as referenced in sections 503a(b)(1)(A) and 503b(a)(2) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, previously defined in § 207.3(a)(4), means the same as 'active pharmaceutical ingredient' as defined in § 207.1(b)." Thus, the terms are interchangeable.

## \$\$ 27.604 and 27.605 (relating to dispensing compounded drugs; and resale of compounded drug products)

IRRC expressed a concern that § 27.604 identifies a "specific patient" while § 27.605 uses "individual patient," and asked the Board to ensure this final-form rulemaking is consistent and clear. The Pennsylvania Academy of Opthalmology also asked if the use of different terms in these two sections means that specific patients do not need to be identified for each compounded drug that is delivered by means of wholesale distribution to a medical practitioner.

IRRC also asked whether the provisions in §§ 27.604 and 27.605 prohibit dispensing compounded drugs "for office use." Both IRRC and the Pennsylvania Medical Society asked whether these provisions (1) prohibit dispensing compounded drugs "for office use," (2) limit a physician's ability to order and purchase compounded drugs from the compounding pharmacy for the purposes of storing them in the office for future use, or (3) require a patient-specific prescription in order for a pharmacy to be able to send a batch of a compounded drug directly to a physician for administration to a patient.

To eliminate this confusion, the Board has removed these sections from this final-form rulemaking. Instead, the Board will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601. However, the Board would point out that section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act uses the terms "identified individual patient" and "identified patient."

Finally, Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh, Christine Roussel, PharmD and the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists suggested that the Board clarify that distribution of a compounded drug product within a healthsystem is not considered resale. Although the Board has now removed this section, the Board notes that neither the act nor the Board's regulations, current or proposed, address distribution of a compounded drug product within a health-system.

#### § 27.606 (relating to compounding prohibited)

IRRC mentioned the concern raised by Christine Roussel, PharmD and the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists that subsection (1) may conflict with a clinical trial where a drug that has been removed from the market is now being used for investigational purposes after approval from an institution's Institutional Review Board. Upon consideration of this concern, and after discussion with stakeholders, the Board decided to add to paragraph (1) the proviso "unless the drug is being used as part of a clinical trial and is approved by an institution's Institutional Review Board." Additionally, because the Board has now deleted proposed § 27.602, the Board replaced the reference to § 27.602 in paragraph (2) with a reference to the relevant provision in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. Finally, this section has been renumbered as § 27.602 in this final-form rulemaking.

#### § 27.607 (relating to pharmacist responsibilities)

Commenters Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh and Christine Roussel, PharmD indicated concerns with the use of the term "bulk drug substance," noting its possible confusion with the term "active pharmaceutical ingredient," which is the common term used in the USP. As noted previously, "bulk drug substance" is the term used in section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, and that regulations at 21 CFR 207.3 provide that "[b]ulk drug substance, as referenced in sections 503a(b)(1)(A) and 503b(a)(2) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, previously defined in § 207.3(a)(4), means the same as 'active pharmaceutical ingredient' as defined in § 207.1(b)." Thus, the terms are interchangeable.

To eliminate the noted confusion, and in light of the use of the term "active pharmaceutical ingredients" in the USP and as commonly used within the industry, the Board deemed it advisable to include a reference to active pharmaceutical ingredients in paragraph (a)(1). Finally, this section has been renumbered as § 27.603 in this final-form rulemaking.

#### § 27.608 (relating to protective apparel)

IRRC noted that this section states that sterile gowning components are necessary "as required by the USP chapter on sterile compounding" and that a comment by Cardinal Health raised concerns that not all gowning components required by USP Chapter 797 are sterile. The Board notes that there are different protective apparel requirements under USP Chapter 795 (nonsterile), Chapter 797 (sterile) and Chapter 800 (hazardous drugs). In response, the Board has removed this section from this final-form rulemaking and instead will rely on the general reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601. The result is that pharmacists are required to follow the applicable protective apparel requirements of Chapters 795, 797 and 800 of the USP.

#### § 27.609 (relating to drug compounding facility requirements)

Drug compounding facility requirements are adequately addressed in the current version of the USP chapters on compounding. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.610 (relating to equipment)

This section merely referred to compliance with USP chapters on equipment, and to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the general reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.611 (relating to equipment maintenance)

This section merely referred to compliance with USP chapters on equipment maintenance, and to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.612 (relating to specialized equipment)

Specialized equipment for compounding is adequately addressed in the current version of the USP chapters on compounding. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.613 (relating to use of automated equipment)

Use of automated equipment for compounding is adequately addressed in the current version of the USP chapters on compounding. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.614 (relating to control of containers and closures)

This section merely referred to compliance with USP chapters on control of containers and closures, and to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section from this final-form rulemaking and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.615 (relating to storage)

This section generally referred to compliance with USP chapters on storage but added specific requirements which are adequately addressed in USP storage requirements. To eliminate potential confusion between the addition of specific requirements and wording in the USP chapters, and to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.616 (relating to drug compounding controls)

This section has been renumbered as § 27.604 in this final-form rulemaking.

§ 27.617 (relating to standard operating procedures required)

Commenter Patricia Clancy Kienle, RPh recommended deleting the second and third sentence of subsection (a)

because this information is already detailed in the USP. Patricia Clancy Kienle, RPh and Christine Roussel, PharmD recommended deleting the phrase "including validation of any sterilization process" from subsection (b) because it is described in USP Chapter 797, and that USP Chapter 797 does not require every sterile preparation to be tested.

IRRC and Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh highlighted the contradiction in subsection (c) where it states control procedures must include all of the following as appropriate. Further, IRRC also pointed out that "as appropriate" is vague and does not set a measurable standard. Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh recommended removing the last sentence and the numbered bullets because "this is detailed in USP chapters." Additionally, Cardinal Health commented that a pharmacist solely using a commercially manufactured, FDA approved drug product in the course of compounding should not need to perform pH testing of solutions. In response, the Board has decided to remove the entire section, and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601, which as the commenters aptly point out are sufficiently detailed.

#### *§* 27.618 (relating to accuracy)

Accuracy regarding weights and measurements, and container requirements are adequately addressed in the current version of the USP chapters on compounding. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.619 (relating to production record)

Production record requirements are adequately addressed in the USP chapters on compounding. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.620 (relating to label information required)

The HPLC asked whether the label information required in this section would include all of the information currently found on the label of a noncompounded prescription medication. The Board believes the reference to § 27.18(d) (relating to standards of practice) clarifies, with certainty, that compounded medication containers must comply with the labeling requirements set forth in § 27.18(d), which apply to all prescription drug containers.

IRRC noted that this section requires compliance with § 27.18(d), which, among other things, requires the DEA number of the pharmacy to be included on the container. Noting the comment by Cardinal Health, that not all pharmacies possess a DEA registration and do not possess nor dispense controlled substances, IRRC asked the Board to consider this scenario and to ensure that this final-form rulemaking is reasonable and clear for the regulated community. The Board considered this comment and believes the reference to § 27.18(d) is appropriate, and the Board notes that the possibility that a pharmacy might not have a DEA registration number is being addressed by the Board in a separate upcoming "general revisions" rulemaking package.

Commenters Patricia Clancy Kienle, RPh and the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists mention that the USP provides more detail regarding required label information. The Board decided to remove paragraphs (1) and (2) to avoid confusion and potential conflict if the USP changes its standards in the future. In its place, the Board added the phrase "any additional information required by USP provisions related to label information requirements."

In addition, this section has been renumbered as § 27.605 in this final-form rulemaking.

#### § 27.621 (relating to compounding records)

Commenters Patricia Clancy Kienle, RPh and the Pennsylvania Society of Health System Pharmacists recommend removing this section, but moving the 2-year record retention requirement to another section. The Board considered this comment, but decided to make no changes, other than renumbering this section as § 27.606 in this final-form rulemaking. The Board believes this section provides context to the record retention requirement and is not inconsistent with the USP. Further, the Board believes that, because of its reference to § 27.18(b), it is consistent with other pharmacy recordkeeping requirements.

#### §\$ 27.622 and 27.623 (relating to master formula record; and production record for drugs compounded in bulk quantities)

IRRC and commenters Patricia Clancy Kienle, RPh and Christine Roussel, PharmD note the Board's use of "formula record" in § 27.622 and "production record" in § 27.623 is confusing and inconsistent with the USP. The commenters note that the USP defines two types of records: Master Formulation Record and Compounding Record. The Board agrees with these comments, and to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the general reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### § 27.624 (relating to label information)

This section applied to labels affixed to each container of batch drug products compounded, rather than labels for containers which are dispensed to the ultimate user as described in § 27.620. The USP chapters on compounding adequately address information requirements on labels for batch drug products. Therefore, to remain consistent with other revisions, the Board removed this section and will rely on the reference to the Federal requirements and the USP in § 27.601.

#### Miscellaneous

IRRC's final comment addresses the use of the term "bulk" throughout the proposal and asked the Board to either define the term or clarify the applicability of the term within the section in which it is used. In response to this comment and similar concerns raised by Patricia Clancy Keinle, RPh, Christine Roussel, PharmD and the Pennsylvania Society of Health-System Pharmacists, the Board has eliminated potential inconsistencies by removing proposed §§ 27.603, 27.604, 27.619, 27.622 and 27.623 from this final-form rulemaking.

#### Fiscal Impact

This final-form rulemaking would have little fiscal impact on the Commonwealth, its political subdivisions or the public. Any pharmacy that elects to engage in compounding pharmaceuticals may incur a cost relating to compliance with the standards set forth in this final-form rulemaking. However, as the Board is unable to determine at this time how many pharmacies engage in compounding or may elect to do so at some future date, it is impossible to estimate the fiscal impact on the regulated community. As FDA and USP requirements are already in place, and the regulation provides no additional substantive requirements or prohibitions, it is likely that there will be little, if any, costs to pharmacies for compliance with this final-form rulemaking.

#### Regulatory Review

Under section 5(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5(a), on March 1, 2017, the Board submitted a copy of the notice of proposed rulemaking, published at 47 Pa.B. 1509, to IRRC and the chairpersons of the HPLC and the SCP/PLC for review and comment.

Under section 5(c) of the Regulatory Review Act, IRRC, the HPLC and the SCP/PLC were provided with copies of the comments received during the public comment period, as well as other documents when requested. In preparing this final-form rulemaking, the Board has considered all comments from IRRC, the HPLC and the public. The Board received no comments from the SCP/PLC.

On April 9, 2019, the Board delivered this final-form rulemaking to IRRC, the HPLC and the SCP/PLC. Under section 5.1(j.2) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5a(j.2)), on May 15, 2019, this final-form rulemaking was deemed approved by the HPLC and the SCP/PLC. Under section 5.1(e) of the Regulatory Review Act, IRRC met on May 16, 2019, and approved this final-form rulemaking.

#### Additional Information

Individuals who need information about this final-form rulemaking may contact Melanie Zimmerman, RPh, Executive Secretary, State Board of Pharmacy, P.O. Box 2649, Harrisburg, PA 17105-2649, st-pharmacy@pa.gov.

#### Findings

The Board finds that:

(1) Public notice of proposed rulemaking was given under sections 201 and 202 of the act of July 31, 1968 (P.L. 769, No. 240) (45 P.S. §§ 1201 and 1202) and the regulations promulgated thereunder, 1 Pa. Code §§ 7.1 and 7.2.

(2) A public comment period was provided as required by law and all comments were considered.

(3) The amendments to this final-form rulemaking do not enlarge the original purpose of the proposed rulemaking published at 47 Pa.B. 1509.

(4) This final-form rulemaking is necessary and appropriate for the administration of the act.

#### Order

The Board, acting under its authorizing statute, orders that:

(a) The regulations of the Board at 49 Pa. Code Chapter 27 are amended by amending §§ 27.1 and 27.12 and by adding §§ 27.601-27.606 to read as set forth in Annex A.

(b) The Board shall submit this Order and Annex A to the Office of Attorney General and the Office of General Counsel for approval as required by law.

(c) The Board shall submit this order and Annex A to IRRC, the HPLC and the SCP/PLC as required by law.

(d) The Board shall certify this Order and Annex A and deposit them with the Legislative Reference Bureau as required by law.

(e) This final-form rulemaking shall take effect upon publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

> THERESA M. TALBOTT, RPh, Chairperson

(Editor's Note: See 49 Pa.B. 2799 (June 1, 2019) for IRRC's approval order.)

Fiscal Note: 16A-5419. No fiscal impact; additional inspection costs would be absorbed by the Board and licensing fees would be adjusted accordingly; (8) recommends adoption.

#### Annex A

#### TITLE 49. PROFESSIONAL AND VOCATIONAL **STANDARDS**

#### PART I. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

#### Subpart A. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL AFFAIRS

#### **CHAPTER 27. STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### § 27.1. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

\*

#### Drug order—

\*

\*

(i) An oral or written order issued by a medical practitioner which is either written on or entered by computer into the medical record of a patient in an institution for the dispensing of a drug or device for administration to the patient.

(ii) The term does not include an order for a drug for a patient in an institution which the patient will selfadminister which will be considered a prescription.

FDA-The United States Food and Drug Administration, a division of the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

\*

\*

\*

FDLE—Federal Drug Law Examination. \*

\*

Satellite pharmacy—

(i) A pharmacy in an institution which provides specialized services for the patients of the institution and which is dependent upon the centrally located pharmacy for administrative control, staffing and drug procurement.

(ii) The term does not include a pharmacy serving the public on the premises of an institution nor does it include a pharmacy located off premises from the centrally located pharmacy of the institution regardless of whether the pharmacy is owned by the same person or entity which owns the institution.

USP-The United States Pharmacopeia-A compendium of drug information published by the United States Pharmacopeial Convention.

#### **STANDARDS**

#### § 27.12. Practice of pharmacy and delegation of duties.

\*

#### (d) Pharmacy technicians.

(1) A pharmacy technician may work only under the direct, immediate, personal supervision of a pharmacist in accordance with subsection (b)(2).

(2) The following are examples of the types of activities which a pharmacy technician may perform:

\*

(vi) Enter prescription, drug order or patient information in a patient profile.

(vii) Assist the pharmacist in the compounding of drug products, as permitted by the written protocol created and maintained in accordance with paragraph (4).

(3) A pharmacy technician may not:

#### \* \* \* \* \*

#### COMPOUNDING

#### § 27.601. Compounding of preparations.

The compounding of sterile and nonsterile preparations shall be done in accordance with section 503a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.A. § 353a), Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, and the current version of the USP chapters governing compounding.

#### § 27.602. Compounding prohibited.

Pharmacists may not compound any of the following:

(1) Drugs that have been identified by the FDA as withdrawn or removed from the market because the drugs were found to be unsafe or ineffective as set forth in 21 CFR 216.24 (relating to drug products withdrawn or removed from the market for reasons of safety or effectiveness) unless the drug is being used as part of a clinical trial and is approved by an institution's institutional review board.

(2) Drugs that are essentially copies of a commercially available drug product, except as provided in section 503a(b)(1)(D) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.A. § 353a(b)(1)(D)).

(3) Drugs that have been identified by the FDA in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.A. §§ 301—399h) or the *Code of Federal Regulations* as products which may not be compounded.

#### § 27.603. Pharmacist responsibilities.

(a) As in the dispensing of all prescription drugs, the pharmacist has the responsibility for all of the following:

(1) Inspection and approval or rejection of all components, bulk drug substances (that is, active pharmaceutical ingredients), drug product containers, closures, inprocess materials and labeling.

(2) Preparation and review of all compounding records to assure that errors have not occurred in the compounding process.

(3) Proper maintenance, cleanliness and use of all facilities and equipment used in compounding practice.

(b) If errors have occurred, the pharmacist is responsible for conducting a full investigation, and creating and maintaining a record of the investigation which must include conclusions and corrective action.

#### § 27.604. Drug compounding controls.

Accountability for quality control is the responsibility of the compounding pharmacist.

#### § 27.605. Label information required.

The label affixed to or on the dispensing container of a compounded drug product dispensed by a pharmacy pursuant to a prescription or drug order must bear the information as required in § 27.18(d) (relating to standards of practice) and any additional information required by USP provisions pertaining to label information requirements.

#### § 27.606. Compounding records.

Compounding records required by this chapter shall be retained as the original records and shall be readily available at the pharmacy for inspection and photocopying by agents of the Board or other authorized authorities for at least 2 years following the date of the record. Prescriptions for all products compounded at the pharmacy shall be maintained on file at the pharmacy as required under § 27.18(b) (relating to standards of practice).

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-928. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## Title 58—RECREATION

#### FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

#### [58 PA. CODE CH. 65]

#### Fishing; Special Fishing Regulations

The Fish and Boat Commission (Commission) amends Chapter 65 (relating to special fishing regulations). The Commission is publishing this final-form rulemaking under the authority of 30 Pa.C.S. (relating to Fish and Boat Code) (code). The amendments update the Commission's list of waters subject to special regulations.

#### A. Effective Date

This final-form rulemaking will go into effect upon publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### B. Contact Person

For further information on this final-form rulemaking, contact Wayne Melnick, Esq., P.O. Box 67000, Harrisburg, PA 17106-7000, (717) 705-7810. This final-form rulemaking is available on the Commission's web site at www.fish.state.pa.us.

#### C. Statutory Authority

The amendments to § 65.24 (relating to miscellaneous special regulations) are published under the statutory authority of section 2307 of the code (relating to waters limited to specific purposes).

#### D. Purpose and Background

The specific purpose and background of the amendments is described in more detail under the summary of changes.

#### E. Summary of Changes

Chapman Dam Reservoir, a 67.95-acre impoundment owned by the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, is located within Chapman State Park, Pleasant Township, Warren County, approximately 6 miles south of the City of Warren. This reservoir was completely dewatered during fall 2017 to remove sediment and to complete control tower, dam and spillway repairs and modifications per Department of Environmental Protection dam safety standards. The earth-fill dam, constructed in 1949, impounds the West Branch Tionesta Creek at river-mile 14.7 upstream from its confluence with Tionesta Creek at river-mile 40.3. Prior to the drawdown in 2017, the lake offered angling opportunities for multiple warm-water and cool-water fish species, as well as adult trout stocked by the Commission. Sediment removal and dam and spillway repairs are expected to be completed by early 2019 with refilling initiated soon after.

#### **RULES AND REGULATIONS**

The Commission plans to initiate stocking the lake beginning in spring 2019 or as soon as refilling conditions allow with fingerling plants of select fish species to establish a high quality warm-water and cool-water fishery. Immediately upon refilling of the lake, staff propose to open the lake to fishing under a miscellaneous special regulation that will allow for the harvest of trout under Commonwealth Inland Waters angling regulations but allow only catch and release fishing for all other fish species. Staff believe that this approach will allow for the most rapid development of a balanced warm-water and cool-water fish community, while offering acceptable levels of recreational angling opportunities. Fisheries Management staff will monitor the fish populations as needed while they develop and make necessary modifications to the species stocked and recommend adjustments to the regulations governing fish harvest to the Board of Commissioners to continually provide high quality recreational angling opportunities at Chapman Dam Reservoir. Once the warm-water fishery has been reestablished, the lake will be recommended for removal from the miscellaneous special regulation and inclusion in one of the Commission's existing warm-water regulation programs.

The Commission therefore amends § 65.24 to read as set forth in the proposed rulemaking published at 48 Pa.B. 7643 (December 15, 2018).

#### F. Paperwork

This final-form rulemaking will not increase paperwork and will not create new paperwork requirements.

#### G. Fiscal Impact

This final-form rulemaking will have no adverse fiscal impact on the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. H. *Public Involvement* 

## A notice of proposed rulemaking was published at 48 Pa.B. 7643. The Commission received no public comment.

#### Findings

The Commission finds that:

(1) Public notice of intention to adopt the amendments adopted by this order has been given under sections 201 and 202 of the act of July 31, 1968 (P.L. 769, No. 240) (45 P.S. §§ 1201 and 1202) and the regulations promulgated thereunder, 1 Pa. Code §§ 7.1 and 7.2.

(2) A public comment period was provided, and no public comments were received.

(3) The adoption of the amendments of the Commission in the manner provided in this order is necessary and appropriate for administration and enforcement of the authorizing statutes.

#### Order

The Commission, acting under the authorizing statutes, orders that:

(A) The regulations of the Commission, 58 Pa. Code Chapter 65, are amended by amending § 65.24 to read as set forth at 48 Pa.B. 7643.

(B) The Executive Director will submit this order and 48 Pa.B. 7643 to the Office of Attorney General for approval as to legality and form as required by law.

(C) The Executive Director shall certify this order and 48 Pa.B. 7643 and deposit them with the Legislative Reference Bureau as required by law.

(D) This order shall take effect upon publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

TIMOTHY D. SCHAEFFER, Executive Director

**Fiscal Note:** Fiscal Note 48A-288 remains valid for the final adoption of the subject regulation.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-929. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## CAPITOL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

#### **Request for Proposals**

**CPC 18.167: New Storage Facility.** The general project description includes construction of a new 17,200 square foot storage building employing pre-engineered metal building construction and all associated site and utility construction.

.1 General Contractor: The .1 general contractor will serve as the lead contractor and be responsible for coordination of the entire project with other prime contractors. The .1 general contractor's scope of work generally includes but is not limited to: all site grading, cut and fill; domestic and fire protection water utilities beginning at a point 5 feet beyond the building wall; natural gas utility beginning at a point 5 feet beyond the building wall; sanitary sewer utility beginning at a point 5 feet beyond the building wall; excavation and backfill for foundations; concrete footings; CMU foundations; concrete slab-on-grade; pre-engineered metal building frame (including insulated roof and wall panels); exterior brick masonry wainscot around the perimeter of the building; interior CMU partitions, door, frames and hardware; window; overhead coiling doors; rack system; painting; site concrete work; asphalt paving; and seeding and mulching of lawn areas.

.2 *HVAC Contractor*: The .2 HVAC contractor's scope of work generally includes but is not limited to: exterior grade-mounted air handling units; sheet metal ductwork; fabric ductwork; toilet and janitor's closet exhaust systems; split system heat pump; and automatic temperature control system.

.3 Plumbing/Fire Protection Contractor: The .3 plumbing/fire protection contractor's scope of work generally includes but is not limited to: below grade sanitary piping; above ground sanitary and vent piping; domestic hot-water and cold-water piping; pipe insulation; plumbing fixtures; floor drains; point-of-use electric hot water heaters; and automatic sprinkler system.

.4 *Electrical Contractor*: The .4 electrical contractor's scope of work generally includes is but not limited to: coordination of electric service to the building with PP&L; MDP branch circuit panels; transformers; conduit and wire for power and lighting; light fixtures; receptacles; security system; fire alarm detection system; voice and data drops; and fiber optic connection to the MDF at the existing House Print Shop building.

The issue date of the request for proposals will be on June 24, 2019. A mandatory preproposal conference will be held on July 8, 2019, at 9:30 a.m. in Room 630, Main Capitol Building, Harrisburg, PA. The proposal receipt date is July 17, 2019, at 2 p.m. Project documents may be obtained by contacting Vitetta, Attention: Sharon Hindermyer, (717) 612-4611, Hindermyer@vitetta.com.

#### DAVID L. CRAIG,

Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-930. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

#### **DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE**

#### Pennsylvania Wine Marketing and Research Board; Grant Solicitation and Application Procedures

The Pennsylvania Wine Marketing and Research Program Board (Board) annually, or more frequently as the availability of fund permits, solicits applications for grants to conduct promotion, marketing and research projects to increase the quality, profitability, production and sale of wines, enhance the wine industry and benefit wine producers of this Commonwealth.

The Board was established by the Department of Agriculture (Department) under 3 Pa.C.S. §§ 4501—4513 (relating to Agricultural Commodities Marketing Act) (ACMA). Its composition, funding and duties were subsequently expanded by section 488.1 of the Liquor Code (47 P.S. § 4-488.1).

The Board makes awards of grants from its own funds generated by the methods set forth in the ACMA and makes recommendations for the awarding of grants by the Liquor Control Board from funds provided through the Liquor Code (47 P.S. §§ 1-101—10-1001).

This notice establishes the procedures by which grant applications will be solicited, reviewed and grants awarded.

1. Grant Solicitation. The Board will be accepting grant applications for the purposes, in the form and according to the schedule set forth herein for a period of not less than 30 days beginning on the date of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Additional publication and dissemination of this notice shall be made to applicants who have previously submitted grant applications to, or received grants from, the Board, State universities and State-supported universities located in this Commonwealth, universities with colleges of agricultural science located in this Commonwealth and individuals or entities who have requested notification from the Department or the Board of grant availability.

2. *Process Overview*. The Board will employ the review process described as follows to select projects: (a) to fund by making a grant from its ACMA funds; or (b) to recommend to the Liquor Control Board for the making of a grant.

a. In the event of an ACMA-funded grant, the terms and conditions of the grant will be governed by a grant agreement between the Board and the applicant which shall be tendered to the applicant for execution, returnable in no more than 30 days.

b. In the event of a recommendation to the Liquor Control Board to make and fund a grant, the decision as to whether to award a grant will be made by the Liquor Control Board. If the Liquor Control Board approves the grant recommendation, the terms and conditions of the grant will be governed by a grant agreement between the Liquor Control Board and the applicant, which shall be tendered to the applicant for execution by the Board on behalf of the Liquor Control Board, returnable in no more than 30 days.

3. Concept Paper and Application Deadlines.

a. *Concept Paper*. Interested applicants must deliver a one-page concept paper, plus a one-page draft budget, by e-mail by Friday, August 9, 2019, to chariley@pa.gov.

b. Application. Applicants whose concept papers are approved by the Board will be invited to submit a Project Proposal and Grant Application, in the form set forth in paragraph 5 of this notice, to the Board by 4 p.m. on Friday, October 25, 2019. Proposals should be sent electronically to chariley@pa.gov and 16 hard copies must be hand-delivered or sent by United States Mail and postmarked on or before the same date. Applications should be addressed and delivered to the Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Market Development, Attn: Agricultural Commodity Board Grant Program, 2301 North Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110-9408.

c. *Presentations*. Applicants must be prepared to provide a brief 3-minute presentation of their proposal to the Board, and answer questions, either in person or by means of conference call, at the Board's next scheduled meeting on Tuesday, November 19, 2019, at 10 a.m. The meeting will be held in Room 202, Agriculture Building, 2301 North Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA.

4. Format of the Concept Paper. The concept paper shall include:

a. Organization/Business Type. List the applicant's organization/business type.

b. Organization/Business Information. List the organization/business name along with the contact information and the amount of grant funds the entity is requesting.

c. *Project Coordinator/Qualifications*. Identify the person who will be directing the proposed project and clearly state their qualifications.

d. *Organization History*. Indicate whether the organization has ever received prior Wine Marketing and Research Program Board or agriculture-related grant funds.

e. *Project Purpose*. In one or two paragraphs, clearly state the specific issue, problem, interest or need, and how the project will address it. Explain why the project is important and timely.

f. *Estimated Timeline*. State the estimated timeline for the proposed project.

g. Expected Measurable Outcomes. What are the goals and objectives of the project? How do the objectives support the goals? Goals are long-term broad visions and may take time to achieve. Objectives are significant steps that must be completed to achieve the goal. Objective statements should focus on the outcome, rather than the methods used. Each goal should have one or more objectives. Describe at least one distinct, quantifiable and measurable outcome that directly and meaningfully supports the project's purpose. Typically, outcomes are those measures that are quantifiable, measure direct benefit and are documented through data or information collection.

h. *Preliminary Project Work Plan*. List the major tasks of the proposed project.

i. *Draft Budget*. State the budget for the proposed project using guidance from paragraph 5.d. If a project is selected to submit a proposal, more detailed budget information will be required.

5. Format of the Project Proposal and Grant Application. The project proposal and grant application shall be formatted as follows:

a. A cover page, titled Pennsylvania Wine Marketing and Research Program—Project Proposal and Grant Application, providing: the title of the proposed project; the name and address of the applicant; the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the applicant's principal contact person for matters relating to the application; and the total maximum grant amount sought for the proposed project or program.

b. Section 1, titled Statement of Purpose, explaining or presenting: the purpose for which the grant funds would be utilized; details of the proposed project, including a statement of expected impact of outcomes, staffing for the project, and objectives and methodologies; and whether, how and to what anticipated extent the proposed promotion, marketing or research project increases the quality, profitability, production and sale of wines, enhances the wine industry and benefits wine producers of this Commonwealth.

c. Section 2, titled Statement of Need, explaining the need for the grant funds sought, and identifying the presence of any additional funding partners and the extent of that funding.

d. Section 3, titled Budget, presenting a detailed budget for the proposed project or program, including an itemized breakdown of: all personnel by name devoted to the project, their professional qualifications, the amount of time calculated by hours and the tasks to be performed by each of the named personnel; each and every item of direct expense to be incurred in the project separately set forth, including all purchases of consumable or nonconsumable goods or equipment, listing the disposition of all non-consumable goods or equipment upon completion of the project; all travel by dates, purpose, destination, mode of transportation and rate; a full breakdown of other costs, if any, and the method used to calculate those costs. See also paragraph 10.

e. Section 4, titled Criteria for Measuring Outcomes, identifying methods for measuring outcomes.

f. Section 5, titled Industry Involvement, describing the extent of any support, participation and funding from this Commonwealth's wine industry, including any written confirmation of that support, participation or funding.

6. Scoring of Applications. The Board will evaluate each complete and timely-filed project proposal and grant application it receives, which shall include a 100-point scale assessing:

a. Up to 20 points for the project needs statement.

b. Up to 20 points for the expected impact of project outcomes.

c. Up to 20 points for the promotion, marketing or research methodology.

d. Up to 20 points for overall project evaluation.

e. Up to 20 points for support and participation from industry.

7. Scores. Upon completion of evaluations, the Board will prepare a record identifying each complete and timely-filed project proposal and grant application received and the numerical score assigned to each. In the event of an ACMA-funded grant, the Board will award grants based upon its evaluation and scoring. In the event of one or more recommendations to the Liquor Control Board to make and fund a grant, the Board will transmit to the Liquor Control Board the project proposal and grant application, along with the score assigned to it by the Board and any other information deemed relevant by the Board or requested by the Liquor Control Board. Request will be made by the Board that the Liquor Control Board respond to all recommendations for grant approval within 30 days.

8. Term of Grants. Applications should be submitted for projects to begin after July 1, 2019, on a date within Fiscal Year 2019-2020 (July 1, 2019—June 30, 2020). Anticipated completion dates will be dictated by the project scope and parameters and may exceed 12 months from commencement if the project so warrants. The Board may award, or recommend that the Liquor Control Board approve, grant funding for multiyear projects or extensions of an on-going project, if the Board identifies that a multiyear term or an extension advances the grant's objectives. Requests for extensions of ongoing projects shall be made, evaluated and processed in ac-cordance with all the requirements of this notice. Progress reports are to be delivered by e-mail to chariley@pa.gov no later than October 1 and April 1 every year for the duration of the project, or as requested by the Board. Final reports and invoice should be submitted within 90 days of contract end date.

9. Notice of Award. Applicants shall be notified by mail of the decision on their grant applications by the Board. Best efforts will be made to do so within 60 days of the application deadline.

10. Grant Agreement. With the mailed grant award notice, the Board will provide applicants with a grant agreement for execution and return within 30 days. The Board will obtain the required signature on the grant agreements, including the Liquor Control Board, if necessary, and any other required Commonwealth entities, and return a copy to the applicant. No grant agreement is effective and work should not begin until all required signatures have been applied to the grant agreement. Among the terms of the grant agreement shall be a requirement that the grant recipient provide the Board full and complete access to all records relating to the performance of the project and submit information as the Board may require.

11. Nonmatching Cost-Reimbursement Grant and Indirect Costs Cap. Grants made hereunder do not require the applicant secure or devote a matching sum to the project. Payment of grant funds will occur on a reimbursement basis only. Grant awards will include an allowance for indirect costs of 10%. In the case of graduate student participation, reasonable stipends will be allowed, and tuition will not be allowed.

#### RUSSELL C. REDDING, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-931. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### **Actions on Applications**

The Department of Banking and Securities (Department), under the authority in the Banking Code of 1965 (7 P.S. §§ 101-2204), the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. §§ 733-1-733-1203) and 17 Pa.C.S. (relating to Credit Union Code), has taken the following actions on applications received for the week ending June 11, 2019.

Under section 503.E of the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. § 733-503.E), any person wishing to comment on the following applications, with the exception of branch applications, may file comments in writing with the Department of Banking and Securities, Bank Supervision or Credit Union and Trust Supervision (as applicable), 17 North Second Street, Suite 1300, Harrisburg, PA 17101-2290. Comments must be received no later than 30 days from the date notice regarding receipt of the application is published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. The nonconfidential portions of the applications are on file at the Department and are available for public inspection, by appointment only, during regular business hours. To schedule an appointment, for banks (717) 783-8240 and for credit unions and trust companies (717) 783-2253. Photocopies of the nonconfidential portions of the applications may be requested consistent with the Department's Right-to-Know Law Records Request policy.

#### **BANKING INSTITUTIONS**

#### **Branch Applications**

#### **Branch Relocations**

Date	Name and Location of Applicant		Location of Branch	Action
06-03-2019	Mid Penn Bank Millersburg Dauphin County	To:	5049 Jonestown Road Harrisburg Dauphin County	Effective
		From:	5500 Allentown Boulevard Harrisburg Dauphin County	

#### **CREDIT UNIONS**

#### Conversions

Date	Name and Location of Applicant	Action
4-15-2019	From: Northampton Area School District Employees Credit Union Northampton Northampton County	Effective
	To: Northampton Area School District Employees Federal Credit Union Northampton Northampton County	
	Conversion from a Ponnsylvania State chartered gradit union to a Federally chartered gradit up	ion

Conversion from a Pennsylvania State-chartered credit union to a Federally chartered credit union.

3219

ROBIN L. WIESSMANN, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-932. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

**Applications, Actions and Special Notices** 

#### **APPLICATIONS**

#### THE CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT APPLICATIONS FOR NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMITS AND WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT (WQM) PERMITS

This notice provides information about persons who have applied for a new, amended or renewed NPDES or WQM permit, a permit waiver for certain stormwater discharges or submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) for coverage under a General Permit. The applications concern, but are not limited to, discharges regarding industrial, animal or sewage waste, discharges to groundwater, discharges associated with municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4), stormwater associated with construction activities or concentrated animal feeding operations (CAFO). This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376).

Location	Permit Authority	Application Type or Category
Section I	NPDES	Renewals
Section II	NPDES	New or Amendment
Section III	WQM	Industrial, Sewage or Animal Waste; Discharge into Groundwater
Section IV	NPDES	MS4 Individual Permit
Section V	NPDES	MS4 Permit Waiver
Section VI	NPDES	Individual Permit Stormwater Construction
Section VII	NPDES	NOI for Coverage under NPDES General Permits
		5

For NPDES renewal applications in Section I, the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) has made a tentative determination to reissue these permits for 5 years subject to effluent limitations and monitoring and reporting requirements in their current permits, with appropriate and necessary updated requirements to reflect new and changed regulations and other requirements.

For applications for new NPDES permits and renewal applications with major changes in Section II, as well as applications for MS4 Individual Permits and Individual Stormwater Construction Permits in Sections IV and VI, the Department, based upon preliminary reviews, has made tentative determinations of proposed effluent limitations and other terms and conditions for the permit applications. In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 92a.32(d), the proposed discharge of stormwater associated with construction activities will be managed in accordance with the requirements of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 102. These determinations are published as proposed actions for comments prior to taking final actions.

Unless indicated otherwise, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region III Administrator has waived the right to review or object to proposed NPDES permit actions under the waiver provision in 40 CFR 123.24(d).

Persons wishing to comment on NPDES applications are invited to submit statements to the contact office noted before the application within 30 days from the date of this public notice. Persons wishing to comment on WQM permit applications are invited to submit statements to the office noted before the application within 15 days from the date of this public notice. Comments received within the respective comment periods will be considered in the final determinations regarding the applications. A comment submittal should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based.

The Department will also accept requests for public hearings on applications. A public hearing may be held if the responsible office considers the public response significant. If a hearing is scheduled, a notice of the hearing will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a newspaper of general circulation within the relevant geographical area. The Department will postpone its final determination until after a public hearing is held.

Persons with a disability who require an auxiliary aid, service, including TDD users, or other accommodations to seek additional information should contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### I. NPDES Renewal Applications.

Northeast Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. Phone: 570-826-2511.

NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0053872 (Sewage)	Kemmerer Spring WWTP 6841 Sigmund Road Zionsville, PA 18092	Lehigh County Upper Milford Township	Perkiomen Creek (HQ-CWF, MF) (3-E)	Yes
PA0064297 (Sewage)	Portland Borough WWTP Demi Road Portland, PA 18351-0476	Northampton County Portland Borough	Delaware River (WWF, MF) (1-F)	Yes
PA0062791 (Industrial)	Just Born Manufacturing 1300 Stefko Boulevard Bethlehem, PA 18017-6672	Northampton County Bethlehem City	Unnamed Tributary to Lehigh Coal and Navigation Canal (CWF, MF) (2-C)	Yes

Southcentral Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. Phone: 717-705-4707.

NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed #)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PAS603506 (Stormwater)	Milroy Auto & Truck Salvage, LLC 45 Auto Parts Drive P.O. Box 354 Milroy, PA 17063	Mifflin County/ Armagh Township	UNT Laurel Run (12-A)	Y
PA0265918 (Stormwater)	Yerty Auto Service, Inc. 8358 Woodbury Pike Roaring Spring, PA 16673	Blair County/ Taylor Township	Halter Creek (11-A)	Y
PA0086282 (GWCU)	Texas Eastern Transmission Grantville Compressor Station 5400 Westheimer Court Houston, TX 77056	Dauphin County/ East Hanover Township	Bow Creek (7-D)	Y
PA0261157	Velma Kerstetter 6710 Route 235 McAlisterville, PA 17049	Juniata County/ Delaware Township	Delaware Creek (7-B)	Y

Northcentral Regional Office: Clean Water Program Manager, 208 W Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448. Phone: 570.327.3636.

NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0114367 (Sewage)	Danny Deivert Res 55 Conley Road Mifflinburg, PA 17844-7761	Union County Buffalo Township	Unnamed Tributary to Rapid Run (HQ-CWF) (10-C)	Yes
PA0229211 (Industrial)	PA Grain Processing, LLC Clearfield Borough Plant 250 Technology Drive Clearfield, PA 16830-2663	Clearfield County Clearfield Borough	West Branch Susquehanna River (WWF) (8-B)	Yes

Southwest Regional Office: Clean Water Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745. Phone: 412.442.4000.

NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0217841 (Sewage)	Ryerson St Park STP 361 Bristoria Road Wind Ridge, PA 15380-1258	Greene County Richhill Township	North Fork Dunkard Fork (WWF) (20-E)	Yes
PA0023892 (Sewage)	Bessemer Run STP 1 East Church Street Masontown, PA 15461-1841	Fayette County German Township	Cats Run (WWF) (19-G)	Yes

#### NOTICES

Northwest Re	gion: Clean Water Program Manager, 2	30 Chestnut Street, M	leadville, PA 16335-3481.	
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed #)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0210013 (Sewage)	Cathleen M & Edward W Fisher SFTF 72 Birchwood Drive Transfer, PA 16154-2406	Mercer County Pymatuning Township	Unnamed Tributary to Shenango River (WWF) (20-A)	Yes

## II. Applications for New or Expanded Facility Permits, Renewal of Major Permits and EPA Non-Waived Permit Applications.

Northeast Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, Telephone: 570.826.2511.

**PA0012963**, Industrial, SIC Code 2631, **WestRock Converting Company**, P.O. Box 770, 1 Paper Mill Road, Delaware Water Gap, PA 18327. Facility Name: WestRock Converting Company—Stroudsburg Mill. This existing facility is located in Smithfield Township, **Monroe County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial wastewater and stormwater.

The receiving stream, Brodhead Creek (CWF, MF (existing use)), is located in State Water Plan watershed 01E and is classified for Cold Water Fishes, Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.627 MGD.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
			Inst Min			
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.6
Temperature (deg F) (°F)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Total Dissolved Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)				-	-	
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000	XXX	10,000
*				Geo Mean		,
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200	XXX	1,000
v x				Geo Mean		<i>,</i>

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 003 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Minimum	Average Monthlv	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chemical Oxygen Demand	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
(COD)	1001	mm	11111	11111	neport	1000
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 004 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average	Daily	Minimum	Average	Daily	Instant.
	Monthly	Maximum		Monthly	Maximum	Maximum
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 006 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average	Daily	Minimum	Average	Daily	Instant.
	Monthly	Maximum		Monthly	Maximum	Maximum
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

#### NOTICES

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 007 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.

The proposed endene minus for Ot	than oor are	oused on a dec	ign now or o i	IGD.		
Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
pH (S.U.) Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX	Report Report	XXX XXX XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
The proposed effluent limits for O	utfall 101 (In	ternal Monito	ring Point) are	e based on a	design flow of	0.1415 MGD.
Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD) pH (S.U.) Dissolved Oxygen Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> ) Biochemical Oxygen Demand	Report XXX XXX 220	Report XXX XXX 440	XXX 6.0 5.0 XXX	XXX XXX XXX Report	XXX XXX XXX Report	XXX 9.0 XXX XXX
(BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent CBOD5 Minimum % Removal (%) Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent Total Suspended Solids Total Suspended Solids Minimum % Removal (%)	XXX XXX XXX 220 XXX	XXX XXX XXX 440 XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	Report 85 Report Report Report	Report XXX Report Report XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX
Total Dissolved Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	5,000	10,000	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N Total Nitrogen Ammonia-Nitrogen Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen Total Phosphorus	Report 5.0 23 Report Report	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	Report Report 20 Report Report	IMAX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Chemical Additives

• Requirements Applicable to Stormwater Outfalls

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570.826.5472.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

PA0276219, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, Daniel & Marc Cazes, 14 Tavo Lane, New York, NY 10956. Facility Name: Cazes Small Flow Treatment Facility. This proposed facility is located in Damascus Township, Wayne County.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated SRSTP sewage.

The receiving stream, the Delaware River (CWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 1-A and is classified for Cold Water Fishes and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.0004 MGD.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Instant. Minimum	Annual Average	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	200	XXX	XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-826-5472.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Northcentral Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 208 W Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448, Telephone: 570.327.3636.

**PA0232602**, Industrial, SIC Code 4911, **Panda Hummel Station LLC**, P.O. Box 518, 2386 N Old Trail, Shamokin Dam, PA 17876. Facility Name: Panda Hummel Station LLC. This existing facility is located in Shamokin Dam Borough, **Snyder County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated Industrial Waste.

The receiving stream(s), Susquehanna River (WWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 6-B and is classified for Migratory Fishes and Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow 1.114 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit: Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
			Inst Min			
Free Available Chlorine	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.2	XXX	0.5
Temperature (deg F) (°F)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	110	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	275	925	XXX	30.0	100.0	125
Aluminum, Total	27.96	31.86	XXX	3.01	3.43	7.52
Chromium, Total	1.85	1.85	XXX	0.20	0.20	0.5
Zinc, Total	9.29	9.29	XXX	1.00	1.00	2.5
Acrolein (ug/L)	0.11	0.14	XXX	12.06	15.60	30.15
Acrylamide (ug/L)	0.09	0.15	XXX	10.37	16.18	25.92
PCBs, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Vinyl Chloride (ug/L)	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Priority Pollutants, Total	XXX	Report IMAX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-327-3693.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

Northwest Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**PA0272116**, Sewage, SIC Code 8800, **Judith DeAngelis**, 2419 Kelly Road, Hermitage, PA 16148. Facility Name: Judith DeAngelis SRSTP. This proposed facility is located in Hermitage City, **Mercer County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated SRSTP Sewage.

The receiving stream, an unnamed Tributary to the Shenango River, is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-A and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.0004 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	(lbs/day)		Concentrat	ions (mg/L)	
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Annual Average	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
TRC	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Avg Mo	XXX	Report
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0 \\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20.0 XXX
		mm		200		

Sludge use and disposal description and location(s): Septage must be pumped and hauled off-site by a septage hauler for land application under a general permit authorized by DEP, or disposal at an STP.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6340.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

#### NOTICES

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated SRSTP Sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Akeley Run (CWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 16-B and is classified for Cold Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .0004 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	(lbs/day)		Concentrat	tions (mg/L)	
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Annual Average	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (GPD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0\\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20 XXX

Sludge use and disposal description and location(s): Septage must be pumped and hauled off-site by a septage hauler for land application under a general permit authorized by DEP or disposal at an STP.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6340.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

#### III. WQM Industrial Waste and Sewerage Applications under The Clean Streams Law.

Northeast Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. Phone: 570-826-2511.

WQM Permit No. 4816201 A-1, Industrial, Horwith Trucks Inc., P.O. Box 7, Northampton, PA 18067-0007.

This existing facility is located in Allen Township, Northampton County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: This application is for the modification of stormwater management control facilities at an existing rock salt storage and distribution stockpile.

WQM Permit No. 6419401, Sewage, Daniel and Marc Cazes, 14 Tavo Lane, New York, NY 10956.

This proposed facility is located in Damascus Township, Wayne County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: The application is for a Water Quality Management permit for the construction of a 400 gallon per day single residence sewage treatment plant. The proposal includes the use of a Premier Tech Aqua EC7-600 coco filter unit. The effluent will flow by gravity into a primary treatment tank, then flow by gravity into the coco filter chamber. The effluent will then flow into the pump chamber which will pump the effluent through an ultraviolet light before final discharge into the Delaware River via 4" discharge pipe surrounded by 4" riprap rock.

Southwest Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745. Phone: 412.442.4000.

WQM Permit No. 6319401, Sewage, Peters Township Sanitary Authority, 111 Bell Drive, McMurray, PA 15317-3415.

This proposed facility is located in Peters Township, Washington County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: The applicant proposes to install approximately 3,000 LF of 12-inch gravity sewer lines, which will change pipe size and alignment of the existing Stonehenge Interceptor Sewer in the Brush Run Sewer System.

WQM Permit No. 467S032 A-3, Sewage, Mon Valley Sewer Authority, 20 S Washington Street, Donora, PA 15033.

This existing facility is located in Carroll Township, Washington County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Mechanical bar screen and washer compactor to replace existing comminutor at Donora Pump Station.

Northwest Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

WQM Permit No. 361S18 A-3, Sewage, Commodore Perry School District, 3002 Perry Highway, Hadley, PA 16130-2628.

This existing facility is located in Perry Township, Mercer County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Addition of a dechlorination tablet feeder and dechlorination contact tank to the existing wastewater treatment plant.

## IV. NPDES Individual Permit Applications for Stormwater Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s).

Southwest Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, Telephone: 412.442.4000.

**PAI136142**, MS4, **Municipality of Bethel Park, Allegheny County**, 5100 West Library Avenue, Bethel Park, PA 15102. The application is for a renewal of an individual NPDES permit for the discharge of stormwater from a regulated municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) to waters of the Commonwealth in Bethel Park Borough, Allegheny County. The receiving streams Graesers Run (WWF), Unnamed Tributary of Chartiers Creek (WWF), Piney Fork (TSF), Sawmill Run (WWF), Lick Run (TSF), and Unnamed Tributary to Catfish Run (TSF), are located in State Water Plan watershed 20-F and 19-C and are classified for Warm Water Fishes and Trout Stocking, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The applicant is classified as a small MS4.

The applicant has submitted the following plan(s) with the application to reduce pollutant loads to impaired waters:

- A Pollutant Reduction Plan (PRP)
- A Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Plans

The Department has made a tentative determination to issue the NPDES permit. Written comments on the application and draft permit will be accepted for 30 days following publication of this notice. The period for comment may be extended at the discretion of DEP for one additional 15-day period. You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA waiver is in effect for small MS4s, and is not in effect for large MS4s.

## VI. NPDES Individual Permit Applications for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activities.

Southeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401. Telephone 484-250-5160.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water / Use
PAD090035	USS Real Estate 1 Ben Fairless Drive Fairless Hills, PA 19030-5012	Bucks	Falls Township	Delaware River WWF-MF
PAD150129	101 Gordon Drive Partners, LLC 120 Pennsylvania Avenue Malvern, PA 19355	Chester	Uwchlan Township	Pine Creek HQ-TSF

Northeast Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Lehigh County Conservation District, 4184 Dorney Park Road, Suite 105, Allentown, PA 18401.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water/Use
PAD390124	120-160 Union St LLC 1302 Conshohocken St Conshohocken, PA 19428-1035	Lehigh	Allentown City	Little Lehigh Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)

Destining

Northampton County Conservation District, 14 Gracedale Ave., Greystone Building, Nazareth, PA 18064-9211.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water / Use
PAD480098	Bethlehem Manor Village LLC 177 N 6th St Whitehall, PA 18052	Northampton	Bethlehem City	Monocacy Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)

Northcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program Manager, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701, 570.327.3574.

Centre County Conservation District: 414 Holmes Avenue, Suite 4, Bellefonte, PA 16823, (814) 355-6817.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water / Use
PAD140053 Renewal Previously PAI04140801	Conrad M. Weiser Gail J. Weiser 2450 Harbourside Drive 0R # 214 Longboat Key, FL 34228	Centre	Patton Twp Huston Twp	Henderson Run HQ-CWF

NDDEG

#### NOTICES

#### STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

#### PROPOSED NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS RELATED TO APPLICATIONS FOR NPDES PERMITS FOR CAFOs

This notice provides information about agricultural operations that have submitted nutrient management plans (NMPs) for approval under 3 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5 and that have or anticipate submitting applications for new, amended or renewed NPDES permits, or Notices of Intent (NOIs) for coverage under a general permit, for CAFOs, under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law and the Federal Clean Water Act.

Based upon preliminary reviews, the State Conservation Commission (SCC) or County Conservation Districts (CCD) working under a delegation agreement with the SCC have completed an administrative review of NMPs described. These NMPs are published as proposed plans for comment prior to taking final actions. The NMPs are available for review at the CCD office for the county where the agricultural operation is located. A list of CCD office locations is available at http://www.nacdnet.org/about/districts/directory/pa.phtml or can be obtained from the SCC at the office address listed or by calling (717) 787-8821.

Persons wishing to comment on an NMP are invited to submit a statement outlining their comments on the plan to the CCD, with a copy to the SCC for each NMP, within 30 days from the date of this public notice. Comments received within the respective comment periods will be considered in the final determinations regarding the NMPs. Comments should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the SCC of the exact basis of the comments and the relevant facts upon which they are based. Comments should be sent to the SCC, Agriculture Building, Room 310, 2301 North Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Persons with a disability who require an auxiliary aid, service, including TDD users or other accommodations to seek additional information should contact the SCC through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### ACT 38 NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS CAFO PUBLIC NOTICE SPREADSHEET—APPLICATIONS

Agricultural Operation Name and Address	County	Total Acres	AEU's	Animal Type	Special Protection Waters (HQ or EV or NA)	New or Renewal	
Fair Family Farm 3949 Allegheny Road Manns Choice, PA 15550	Bedford	405.5	621.3	Layer Chickens and Dairy Cattle	NA	New	

#### PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY (PWS) PERMITS

Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17), the following parties have applied for PWS permits to construct or substantially modify public water systems.

Persons wishing to comment on permit applications are invited to submit statements to the office listed before the application within 30 days of this public notice. Comments received within this 30-day comment period will be considered in the formulation of the final determinations regarding an application. A comment should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based. A public hearing may be held after consideration of comments received during the 30-day public comment period.

Following the comment period, the Department will make a final determination regarding the proposed permit. Notice of this final determination will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at which time this determination may be appealed to the Environmental Hearing Board.

The permit application and related documents are on file at the office listed before the application and available for public review. Arrangements for inspection and copying information should be made with the office listed before the application.

Persons with a disability that require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodations to participate during the 30-day public comment period should contact the office listed before the application. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### SAFE DRINKING WATER

#### Applications Received Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17).

Southeast Region: Water Supply Management Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Permit No. 0919510, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>UMH Valley Danboro, LLC</b> 1081 N. Easton Road Doylestown, PA
Township	Plumstead
[County]	Bucks
Responsible Official	Jeffrey V. Yorick 1081 N. Easton Road Doylestown, PA
Type of Facility	PWS

Consulting Engineer	Thomas A. Pullar 6212 Old Easton Road Pipersville, PA 18947
Application Received Date	May 17, 2019
Description of Action	Addition of a new drinking water well.

Northeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

#### Application No. 4019506, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Deep Woods Lake, LLC P.O. Box 308 West Milton, PA 17886
[Township or Borough]	Dennison Township, <b>Luzerne County</b>
Responsible Official	Mr. William Dittmar Deep Woods Lake, LLC P.O. Box 308 West Milton, PA 17886
Type of Facility	BVRB
Consulting Engineer	Thomas Pullar, PE Earth Res P.O. Box 468 Pipersville, PA 18947
Application Received Date	5/30/2019
Description of Action	Applicant proposes to utilize existing borehole SW-5 as a PWS pursuant to bulk water hauling at a withdrawal rate of 324.5 gpm with storage and treatment. Well SW-5 was previously permitted to withdrawal 250 gpm per DEP Permit 4000501.

Northcentral Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

**Application No. 1419501—Construction**—Public Water Supply.

water Suppry.	
Applicant	Penn's Cave, Inc.
Township/Borough	Gregg Township
County	Centre County
Responsible Official	Mr. Russell Schleiden 222 Penn's Cave Road Centre Hall, PA 16828
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply
Consulting Engineer	Mr. David M. Cunningham, P.E. Keller Engineers, Inc. 420 Allegheny Street Hollidaysburg, PA 16648
Application Received	06/06/2019
Description of Action	Authorizes the changes to the operation of the existing water treatment facility to give the owners of the facility the ability to shut off water to Penn's Cave & Wildlife Park during the winter months when there is no usage.

Northwest Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Permit No. 3386504-MA4, Public Water Supply.

i erime roe eeeeer mare water supply			
Applicant	Eldred Township Municipal Authority		
Township or Borough	Eldred Township		
County	Jefferson		
<b>Responsible</b> Official	Mercedes Neill		
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply		
Consulting Engineer	David Neill EADS Group 15932 Route 322 Clarion, PA 16214		
Application Received Date	May 24, 2019		
Description of Action	Corrosion control chemical addition		

#### MINOR AMENDMENT

#### Applications Received Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act.

Southwest Region: Water Supply Management Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

#### Application No. 0219513MA, Minor Amendment.

Applicant	<b>Neville Township</b> 5050 Grand Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15225
[Township or Borough]	Neville Township
Responsible Official	Jeanne Creese, Manager/Secretary Neville Township 5050 Grand Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15225
Type of Facility	Water system
Consulting Engineer	Lennon, Smith, Souleret Engineering, Inc. 846 Fourth Avenue Coraopolis, PA 15108
Application Received Date	June 6, 2019
Description of Action	Installation of approximately 1,000 feet of 16-inch diameter waterline along Neville Road.

#### WATER ALLOCATIONS

Applications received under the Act of June 24, 1939 (P.L. 842, No. 365) (35 P.S. § 631-641) relating to the Acquisition of Rights to Divert Waters of the Commonwealth.

Southeast Region: Water Supply Management Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

WA-23-67G, Water Allocations. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., 762 W. Lancaster Avenue, Bryn Mawr, PA 19010 Middletown Township, **Delaware County**. Renewal of the Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. allocation for 6.0 MGD and 3.0 MGD withdrawals from the Chester and Ridley Creeks, respectively, for the Ridley Plant. Renewal will also include relocation of the existing 1.2 MGD allocation on the Chester Creek for the Fern Hill Plant. Total allocation will be unchanged at 7.2 MGD from the Chester Creek and 3.0 MGD for the Ridley Creek, but will now be allocated entirely for the Ridley Plant.

#### LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

#### UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 1

#### Acknowledgment of Notices of Intent to Remediate Submitted under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101-6026.907).

Sections 302-305 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) (35 P.S. §§ 6026.302—6026.305) require the Department to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin an acknowledgment noting receipt of Notices of Intent to Remediate. An acknowledgment of the receipt of a Notice of Intent to Remediate is used to identify a site where a person proposes to, or has been required to, respond to a release of a regulated substance at a site. A person intending to use the background standard, Statewide health standard, the site-specific standard or intend to remediate a site as a special industrial area shall file a Notice of Intent to Remediate with the Department. A Notice of Intent to Remediate filed with the Department provides a brief description of the location of the site, a list of known or suspected contaminants at the site, the proposed remediation measures for the site and a description of the intended future use of the site. A person who demonstrates attainment of one or a combination of cleanup standards or receives approval of a special industrial area remediation identified under the act will be relieved of further liability for the remediation of the site for contamination identified in reports submitted to and approved by the Department. Furthermore, the person shall not be subject to citizen suits or other contribution actions brought by responsible persons not participating in the remediation.

Under sections 304(n)(1)(ii) and 305(c)(2) of the act, there is a 30-day public and municipal comment period for sites proposed for remediation using a site-specific standard, in whole or in part, and for sites remediated as a special industrial area. This period begins when a summary of the Notice of Intent to Remediate is published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the site. For the following site, proposed for remediation to a site-specific standard or as a special industrial area, the municipality, within which the site is located, may request to be involved in the development of the remediation and reuse plans for the site if the request is made within 30 days of the date specified as follows. During this comment period, the municipality may request that the person identified as the remediator of the site develop and implement a public involvement plan. Requests to be involved and comments should be directed to the remediator of the site.

For further information concerning the content of a Notice of Intent to Remediate, contact the environmental cleanup program manager in the Department regional office listed before the notice. If information concerning this acknowledgment is required in an alternative form, contact the community relations coordinator at the appropriate regional office. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984. The Department has received the following Notices of Intent to Remediate:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

**920** North 9th Street, 920 North 9th Street, City of Philadelphia, Philadelphia County. Stephen D. Brower, PG, Environmental Standards, 1140 Valley Forge Road, P.O. Box 810, Valley Forge, PA 19482-0810 on behalf of Elise Halter, Post Quarter Property Owner, LLC, 1 Winding Drive, Suite 200, Philadelphia, PA 19131 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater were found to be contaminated with the release of lead and No. 2 fuel oil. The future use of the property is expected to be as a parking lot. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Philadelphia Inquirer* on April 17, 2019.

**701 South Main Street**, 701 South Main Street, Phoenixville Borough, **Chester County**. Paul White, Brickhouse Environmental, 515 South Franklin Street, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Mr. Paul and Mrs. Janice Hartmann, CGF Properties, LLC, 20 Hedgerow Lane, Phoenixville, PA 19460 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater have been impacted with the release of metals, heating oil and SVOCs. The proposed future use of the property will be for development for residence use, through redevelopment for nonresidential use remains an option of the property. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Phoenix/Reporter/Item* on April 28, 2019.

**912-970 North Percy Street-Parcel B**, 912-970 North Percy Street-Parcel B, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Stephen D. Brower, PG, Environmental Standards, Inc, 1140 Valley Forge Road, P.O. Box 810, Valley Forge, PA 19482-0810 on behalf of Elise Halter, Post Quaker Property Owner, LLC, 1 Winding Drive, Suite 200, Philadelphia, PA 19131 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater at the site have been found to be contaminated with the release of unleaded gasoline. The future use of the property is expected to be used as a parking lot. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Philadelphia Inquirer* on April 17, 2019.

**900 Poplar Street**, 900 Poplar Street, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Stephen D. Brower, PG, Environmental Standards, Inc, 1140 Valley Forge Road, P.O. Box 810, Valley Forge, PA 19482-0810 on behalf of Elise Halter, Post Quaker Property Owner, LLC, 1 Winding Drive, Suite 200, Philadelphia, PA 19131 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil at the site has been found to be contaminated with the release of No. 4, 5, 6 fuel oil. The proposed future use of the property will be non-residential for a parking lot. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Philadelphia Inquirer* on April 17, 2019.

Langford Square, 315 Langford Road, Marple Township, Delaware County. Paul White, PG, Brickhouse Environmental, 515 South Franklin Street, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Vincent Antonini, G Antonini Real Estate Inc, 3605 Winding Way, Newtown Square, PA 19073 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater at the site have been found to be contaminated with the release of VOCs, SVOCs, and metals. The proposed future use of the property will be high density residential housing. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Digital First Media* on April 4, 2019.

Pattillo Residence, 1446 Schirra Drive, Upper Dublin Township, Montgomery County. Geoff Kristof, PG, Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., P.O. Box 744, West Chester, PA 19381 on behalf of Alan Chris Pattillo, 1446 Schirra Drive, Ambler, PA 19002 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil at the site has been found to be contaminated with the release of heating oil. The property will remain residential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Ambler Gazette* on April 21, 2019.

**Preferred Meal Systems Inc.**, 200 Pattison Avenue, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Geoff Kristof, PG, Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., P.O. Box 744, West Chester, PA 19381 on behalf of Joseph Bristritzky, Preferred Meal Systems, Inc, 3512 Quentin Road, Brooklyn, NY 11234 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater at the site have been found to be contaminated with the release of gasoline. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Review* on April 17, 2019.

**70 Chapel Road**, 70 Chapel Road, Solebury Township, **Bucks County**. Carol Owings, Dover Environmental Sciences Inc., 269 East Blackwell Street, Unit 4A, Dover, NJ 07801 on behalf of Caryn Black, 1616 Walnut Street, # 2405, Philadelphia, PA 19103 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil at the site has been found to be contaminated with the release of heating oil. The proposed future use of the property is residential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Intelligencer* on April 12, 2019.

**Woodbourne Square Shopping Center**, 2016 East Lincoln Highway, Middletown Township, **Bucks County**. Michael Beardsely, BL Companies, 4242 Carlisle Pike, Suite 260, Camp Hill, PA 17011 on behalf of Jeffrey Hoffman, Woodbourne Square Partners, LLC, 4 Cricket Avenue, Ardmore, PA 19003 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater at the site have been found to be contaminated with the release of PCE. The future use of the site is currently planned to remain non-residential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Bucks County Courier Times* on April 19, 2019.

Holz Residence, 2500 Pleasant Hill Road, Upper Moreland Township, Montgomery County. Michael Kern, PG, Mountain Research, LLC, 825 25th Street, Altoona, PA 16601 on behalf of Joseph Holz, 2500 Pleasant Hill Road, Hatboro, PA 19040 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil at the site has been found to be contaminated with the release of No. 2 fuel oil. The proposed future use of the property will continue to be a residential dwelling. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *Ambler Gazette* on April 25, 2019.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

**Tannery Place**, 498 South Main Street, Montrose Borough, **Susquehanna County**. Resource Environmental Management, 50 Maple Street, Montrose, PA 18801, on behalf of ESE Equity LLC, 466 South Main Street, Montrose, PA 18801, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater contamination were caused by releases from an underground storage tank that stored gasoline. Future use of the site will be residential. Statewide health remediation standards are planned for this site. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Susquehanna County Transcript* on April 10, 2019.

#### DETERMINATION FOR APPLICABILITY FOR MUNICIPAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Application for Determination of Applicability for General Permit Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101— 4000.1904); and Municipal Waste Regulations for a General Permit to Operate Municipal Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Municipal Waste.

Southeast Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

General Permit Application No. WMGM039SE001. Accurate Recycling Corp, 508 East Baltimore Avenue, Lansdowne, PA 19050-2508. This application is for a determination of applicability (DOA) renewal under General Permit No. WMGM039SE001 for the beneficial use of pre and post-consumer asphalt shingles at the Accurate Recycling Facility. The Accurate Recycling Facility is an existing municipal waste processing facility located at 508 East Baltimore Pike, Upper Darby Township, **Delaware County**. The application for determination of applicability was administratively complete by the Southeast Regional Office on May 3, 2019

Comments concerning the application should be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") Waste Management Program Manager, Southeast Regional Office, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915. Persons interested in obtaining more information about the general permit application may contact the Southeast Regional Office by telephone at 484.250.5960. TDD users may contact the DEP through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654.5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### DETERMINATION OF APPLICABILITY FOR RESIDUAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Application(s) for Determination of Applicability received under the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101-4000.1904); and Residual Waste Regulations for a General Permit to Operate Residual Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Residual Waste Other Than Coal Ash.

Southcentral Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

General Permit Application No. WMGR096SC001. PKK, LLC, 1270 Grofftown Road, Lancaster, PA 17602, City of Lancaster, Lancaster County. PKK, LLC has submitted an application to the Department for a Determination of Applicability under General Permit No. WMGR096. This general permit authorizes the beneficial use of regulated fill as a construction material when moved offsite or received onsite in accordance with the Department's Management of Fill Policy. This application for Determination of Applicability was determined to be complete on June 6, 2019. Persons interested in obtaining more information about the general permit application may contact Mr. John Oren, P.E., Permits Section Chief, Southcentral Regional Office, Waste Management Program at 717-705-4706. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### OPERATE WASTE PROCESSING OR DISPOSAL AREA OR SITE

Application(s) Received Under the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003), the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101— 4000.1904) and Regulations to Operate Solid Waste Processing or Disposal Area or Site.

Northcentral Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

**Permit Application No. 101546. Potter County Solid Waste Authority**, 2504 SR 49 West, Ulysses, PA 16948, Ulysses Township, **Potter County**. The major permit modification application seeks to increase the Transfer Station's maximum daily permitted tonnage from 90 tons to 150 tons per day and increase the permitted hours of operation to 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The application was received by the North Central Regional Office on June 5, 2019.

Comments concerning the application should be directed to Lisa D. Houser, P.E., Facilities Manager, Williamsport Regional Office, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. Persons interested in obtaining more information about the permit application may contact the Williamsport Regional Office, (570) 327-3740. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

Northwest Region: Christina S. Wilhelm, Regional Solid Waste Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**Permit Application No. 301326. LubriClear of Pittsburgh, L.P.**, 228 Aladdin Road, Schenley, PA 15682; Gilpin Township; **Armstrong County**. A permit renewal application was received for this facility on May 24, 2019. LubriClear is a waste oil processing facility seeking to renew their permit for another ten years of operation. The terms and conditions of the permit renewal would remain the same as the previous permit. The expiration date of the current permit is November 4, 2019.

Permit Application No. 300837. Keystone Station Ash/Mine Refuse Disposal site, 313 Keystone Drive, Shelocta, PA 15774; Plumcreek Township; Armstrong County. GenOn Northeast Management Company, LLC submitted a permit renewal application to the Northwest Regional Office on April 11, 2019. The Keystone disposal site is a coal ash landfill seeking to renew their permit for another ten years of operation. The terms and conditions of the permit renewal would remain the same as the previous permit. The expiration date of the current permit is April 11, 2020. The application was determined to be complete on April 18, 2019.

#### AIR QUALITY PLAN APPROVAL AND OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

The Department has developed an "integrated" plan approval, State Operating Permit and Title V Operating Permit program. This integrated approach is designed to make the permitting process more efficient for the Department, the regulated community and the general public. This approach allows the owner or operator of a facility to submit permitting documents relevant to its application for all sources related to a facility or a proposed project, affords an opportunity for public input, and provides for a decision on the issuance of the necessary permits.

The Department received applications for Plan Approvals or Operating Permits from the following facilities.

Copies of the application, the Department's analysis, all pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application and subsequently prepared proposed plan approvals/operating permits are available for public review during normal business hours at the appropriate Department Regional Office. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling the appropriate Department Regional Office. The address and phone number of the Regional Office is listed before the application notices.

Persons wishing to file a written protest or provide comments or additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of a permit, may submit the information to the Department's Regional Office. A 30-day comment period from the date of this publication will exist for the submission of comments, protests and information. Each submission must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed Plan Approval/Operating Permit including the permit number and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to issuance of the permit.

A person wishing to request a hearing may do so during the 30-day comment period. A public hearing may be held, if the Department, in its discretion, decides that a hearing is warranted based on the information received. Persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper, the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, when the Department determines this type of notification is sufficient. Requests for a public hearing and any relevant information should be directed to the appropriate Department Regional Office.

Permits issued to the owners or operators of sources subject to 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter D or E, or located within a Title V facility or subject to 25 Pa. Code § 129.51(a) or permits issued for sources with limitations on their potential to emit used to avoid otherwise applicable Federal requirements may be submitted to the United States Environmental Protection Agency for review and approval as a revision to the State Implementation Plan. Final Plan Approvals and Operating Permits will contain terms and conditions to ensure that the sources are constructed and operating in compliance with applicable requirements in the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001—4015), 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121—145, the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7401—7671q) and regulations adopted under the Federal Clean Air Act.

Persons with a disability who wish to comment and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate should contact the regional office listed before the application. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### PLAN APPROVALS

Plan Approval Applications Received under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B that may have special public interest. These applications are in review and no decision on disposition has been reached.

Department of Public Health, Air Management Services: 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104

Contact: Edward Wiener, Chief—Telephone: 215-685-9426.

**IP19-000165:** Alden Park Apartments (5500 Wissahickon Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19144) for the operation of three residential apartment buildings in the City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. The facility's air emission sources include eight (8) hot water heaters firing natural gas or No. 2 fuel oil each rated less than 5 MMBtu/hr, twelve (12) boilers firing natural gas as primary fuel and No. 2 fuel oil during periods of natural gas curtailment each rated less than 5 MMBtu/hr, and two (2) fire pumps firing diesel fuel each rated 157 kW. The plan approval contains operating, monitoring, and recordkeeping requirements to ensure operation within all applicable requirements.

Intent to Issue Plan Approvals and Intent to Issue or Amend Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B. These actions may include the administrative amendments of an associated operating permit.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2507.

**39-00004E: Mack Trucks, Inc.** (700 Alburtis Road, Macungie, PA 18062) for their facility in Lower Macungie Township, **Lehigh County**.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.44(a) and 127.45(a), the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) intends to issue a Plan Approval for Mack Trucks, Inc. (700 Alburtis Road, Macungie, PA 18062) for their facility in Lower Macungie Township, Lehigh County. This Plan Approval No. 39-00004E will be incorporated into a Title V Permit through an administrative amendment at a later date.

Plan Approval No. 39-00004E is for the operation of one (1) paint curing oven using a non-lo-NO<sub>x</sub> burner with a fuel restriction. The main emissions from this source is  $NO_x$ . The new source will be required to address 25 Pa. Code § 127.12(a)(5) Best Available Technology. The  $NO_x$  emissions from the burner are less than 1.0 ton per year. The Plan Approval and Operating permit will contain additional recordkeeping and operating restrictions designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements.

Copies of the application, DEP's analysis and other documents used in the evaluation of the application are available for public review during normal business hours at Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711. Any person(s) wishing to provide DEP with additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of this permit, may submit the information to the address shown in the preceding paragraph. Each written comment must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed permit No. 39-00004E and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to the issuance of the permit.

A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted based on the comments received. All persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where DEP determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Ray Kempa, Environmental Group Manager, New Source Review Section, Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711, Phone 570-826-2511 within 30 days after publication date.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Environmental Program Manager—Telephone: 570-327-3648.

41-00041A: Lonza, Inc. (3500 Trenton Ave, Williamsport, PA 17701) for an increase in emissions from the CarbonAir model Stat 180 air stripper incorporated into Source P151 at the Williamsport Plant facility located in the City of Williamsport, Lycoming County. The Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) review of the information submitted by Lonza, Inc. indicates that the air contamination source will comply with all regulatory requirements, including monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements, and pertaining to air contamination sources and the emission of air contaminants the best available technology (BAT) requirement of 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.1 and 127.12. Based on this finding, the Department proposes to issue a plan approval for the proposed operation. The emissions from the air stripper will not exceed the following limits: 10.96 TPY VOCs and 9.23 TPY HAPs. In addition to the emission limitations, the following is a brief description of the types of conditions the Department intends to place in the plan approval in order to ensure compliance with all applicable air quality regulatory requirements: limitations on VOC and HAP emissions, records of the amount of treated water, the characteristics of the water being treated, source-level emissions calculations, maintenance on the source, and facility-wide emissions records; and monitoring of numerous water characteristics to ensure proper operation. The facility is a State Only facility. If the Department determines that the sources are constructed and operated in compliance with the plan approval conditions and the specifications of the application for Plan Approval 41-00041A, the applicant will subsequently apply to amend their current State Only Operating Permit in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Subchapter F. All pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application are available for public review during normal business hours at the Department's Northcentral Regional Office, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling 570-327-0550.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Ed Orris, P.E., New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 412-442-4168.

**04-00061B:** Nalco Water Company (125 Nalco Way, Ellwood City, PA 16117-4129) Notice is hereby given in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.44 and 127.45 that the Department of Environmental Protection ("Department") intends to issue Air Quality Plan Approval Number PA-04-00061B to Nalco Water Company ("Nalco") for installation and operation of a new Flex-Kleen baghouse rated at 15,750 ACFM at 150 F by replacing three (3) existing baghouses for their 'Furnace Room Process South' located at the Nalco Ecolab facility in Franklin Township, **Beaver County**.

The estimated emissions from this project which consists of two (2) Furnace Rooms 1 and 2, and one (1) baghouse are: 13.0 tpy of  $PM_{10}$ , 13.0 tpy of  $PM_{2.5}$ , 9.0 tons of  $NO_x$ , 0.50 ton of VOC, 7.5 tons of CO, 0.2 ton of HAPs, 0.06 ton of  $SO_x$ , and 10,258 tpy of  $CO_2e$  (GHG).

This authorization is subject to State regulations including 25 Pa. Code Chapters 123 and 127. Plan approval conditions include throughput limitations on material throughput, operational restrictions, monitoring requirements, work practice standards, associated recordkeeping, and reporting requirements. Once compliance with the Plan Approval is demonstrated, the applicant will be required to revise or submit a State Only Operating Permit ("SOOP") application in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Subchapter F.

The application, DEP's Review Memorandum, and the proposed permit are available for public review during normal business hours at DEP's Southwest Regional Office, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222. A file review can be scheduled through the DEP's website at https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/PublicRecords/Pages/ Informal-File-Review.aspx.

A person may oppose the proposed Air Quality plan approval by filing a written protest with the Department or may submit written comments through Jesse S. Parihar via the U.S. Postal Service to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222; written comments may also be submitted via email to jparihar@pa.gov or via fax to 412-442-4194. Each set of written comments or protest must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting the comments or protest, identification of the proposed plan approval (04-00061B) and a concise statement of the objections to the plan approval issuance and the relevant facts upon which the objections are based.

All comments must be received prior to the close of business 30 days after the date of this publication. A protest to the proposed action shall be filed with the Department within 30 days of the date that notice of the proposed action was published under 25 Pa. Code § 127.44 (relating to public notice).

A public hearing may be held, if the Department, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted based on the information received. All persons who have properly filed a protest under 25 Pa. Code § 127.46 may appear and give testimony. The applicant, the protestant and other participants will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper or by the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*, or by telephone, where the Department determines such notification by telephone is sufficient.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: David Balog, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 814-332-6328.

**37-371A: R.G. Coating, LLC** (P.O. Box 356, Pulaski, PA 16143) for the installation of a hot dip zinc galvanizing operation at their facility in Pulaski Township, **Lawrence County**. This is a Title V facility.

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.44(b) and 127.424(b), that the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) intends to issue Plan Approval 37-371A to R.G. Coating, LLC for the installation of a hot dip zinc galvanizing operation at the company's proposed facility located on Route 551, Pulaski Township, Lawrence County. The Plan Approval will subsequently be incorporated into a State Only Operating Permit through an administrative amendment in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.450.

Plan Approval No. 37-371A is for the installation of a hot dip zinc galvanizing operation, with air emission sources consisting of a galvanizing kettle with three (3) associated baghouse(s), five (5) acid pickle tanks, each with an associated wet scrubber, and miscellaneous natural gas-fired process heaters. Based on the information provided by the applicant and DEP's own analysis, emissions from the subject source(s) will not exceed 0.62 ton of particulate matter and 1.34 ton of hydrochloric acid per year. The Plan Approval will contain additional monitoring, recordkeeping and work practice requirements designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements.

Copies of the application, DEP's analysis, and other documents used in the evaluation are available for public inspection between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. weekdays at the following address. To make an appointment, contact Records Management at 814-332-6340.

Anyone wishing to provide DEP with additional information they believe should be considered may submit the information to the following address. Comments must be received by the Department within 30 days of the last day of publication. Written comments should include the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting comments, identification of the proposed Plan Approval; No. 37-371A and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or any objections to issuance of the Plan Approval.

A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted on the comments received during the public comment period. All persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in a local newspaper of general circulation or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where the Department determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Eric Gustafson, Regional Air Quality Manager, Department of Environmental Protection, Northwest Regional Office, 230 Chestnut St., Meadville, PA 16335, 814-332-6940.

Department of Public Health, Air Management Services: 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104.

Contact: Edward Wiener, Chief—Telephone: 215-685-9426.

**IP19-000242: Saint Martin of Tours Church** (5450 Roosevelt Blvd, Philadelphia, PA 19124) for the operation of a private school and church, in the City of Philadelphia, Philadelphia County. The facility's air emission sources include six (6) boilers firing natural gas as primary fuel and No. 2 fuel oil during periods of natural gas curtailment each rated less than 5 MMBtu/hr, and one (1) oil-fired boiler firing No. 2 fuel oil rated 1.736 MMBtu/hr. The Boiler (B-07) located in the Convent is considered a residential boiler, but it is included in the Plan Approval for facility-wide emission calculation. The potential emission increases from the installation are as follows: (1) 11.53 tons per year (tpy) of Nitrogen Oxides (NO<sub>x</sub>), (2) 6.29 tpy of Carbon Monoxide (CO), (3) 1.15 tpy of Particulate Matter (PM), and (4) 0.413 tpy of Volatile Organic Compound (VOC). The plan approval will contain operating, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements to ensure operation within all applicable requirements.

The operating permit will be issued under 25 Pa. Code, Philadelphia Code Title 3 and Air Management Regulation XIII. Permit copies and other supporting information are available for public inspection at AMS, 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104. For further information, contact Edward Wiener at (215) 685-9426.

Persons wishing to file protest, comments, or request a public hearing on the previously listed operating permit must submit the protest, comments or request for public hearing within 30 days from the date of this notice. Any protests or comments filed with AMS must include a concise statement of the objections to the permit issuance and the relevant facts upon which the objections are based. Based upon the information received during the public comment period, AMS may modify the operating permit or schedule a public hearing. The hearing notice will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a local newspaper at least thirty days before the hearing.

#### **OPERATING PERMITS**

#### Intent to Issue Title V Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 484-250-5920.

15-00060: Southeastern Chester County Refuse Authority (SECCRA) (219 Street Road, West Grove, PA 19390) for the renewal of the Title V Operating Permit for its municipal solid waste landfill and its associated landfill gas collection and control system, located in London Grove Township, Chester County. SECCRA is a Title V facility for carbon monoxide.

The renewed Title V Operating Permit includes conditions for two diesel fired Emergency Generators (102 hp) and (335 hp), the landfill gas collection system, twolandfill gas fired generator engines (1,148 hp and 2,233 hp) an Enclosed Flare and a parts washer. The 335 hp generator engine is newly installed. Two Leachate Evaporators were removed from the facility and the Operating Permit. Minor sources include fuel and waste oil storage tanks, leachate storage tanks, a condensing boiler (205,000 Btu/hr) and space heaters.

With the renewal, Plan Approval 15-0060G, for a landfill expansion is being incorporated. No increases in facility-wide emissions are requested with the renewal. The potential to emit for the entire facility is as follows in tons/year per 12-month rolling period: volatile organic compounds (VOC): 20.97 (pre-closure), nitrogen oxides

 $(NO_x)$ : 23.3, carbon monoxide (CO): 147.3, sulfur oxides  $(SO_x)$ : 14.8, particulate matter less than 10 microns  $(PM_{10})$ : 30.3, particulate matter less than 2.5 microns  $(PM_{2.5})$ : 8.44, and hazardous air pollutants (HAPs): 15.06 (pre-closure).

The emergency generator engines and the landfill gas fired engine C05 are subject to the requirements of National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines (RICE), 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ. The landfill gas fired engine Source ID C08 is subject to New Source Standards of Performance for Spark Ignition Engines: Internal Combustion Engines, 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart JJJJ. The landfill and its control system are subject to Standard of Performance for New Stationary Sources, Standards of Performance for Municipal Solid Landfills, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart WWW and National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Municipal Solid Waste landfills: 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart AAAA.

The Operating Permit will contain monitoring, recordkeeping and operating restrictions designed to keep the facility operating within the allowable emissions and all applicable air quality requirements.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2507.

**35-00025:** Environmental & Recycling Services, Inc. (1100 Union Street, Taylor, PA 18517-1604) The Department intends to issue a Title V Operating Permit renewal for operation of sources at a landfill in Taylor Borough, Lackawanna County. The sources on site one closed municipal solid waste landfill and one closed construction and demolition waste landfill both controlled by an enclosed ground flare through landfill gas management systems. Other sources on site include a diesel-fired emergency generator and woodworking operations. The proposed Title V Operating Permit includes all applicable emission limits, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements designed to keep the facility operating within applicable air quality requirements.

#### Intent to Issue Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2507.

**39-00091:** Service Tire Truck Centers, Inc., Bethlehem Plant (2255 Avenue A, Bethlehem, PA 18017-2107). The Department intends to issue a renewal State-Only (Natural Minor) Permit to operate a truck tire retreading process facility in Bethlehem City, Lehigh County. The sources consist of truck tire retreading process. The control devices consist of a rubber recovery cyclone. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide (NO<sub>x</sub>), sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP), and volatile organic compounds (VOC) emissions. The operating permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**48-00079:** Lehigh Valley Crematory Services, Inc. (301 Front Street, Hellertown, PA 18055-1720). The Department intends to issue a renewal State-Only (Natural Minor) Permit for operation of Funeral Services & Crematories facility in Hellertown Borough, Northampton County. The primary sources at this facility are three (3) human crematory units operated with incinerators by natural gas, and the control devices are afterburners. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide (NO<sub>x</sub>), sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), particulate matter (PM<sub>10</sub>), and volatile organic compounds (VOC) emissions. The proposed operating permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

39-00023: Allentown Terminals-DE LLC, Allentown Terminal (P.O. Box 2621, Harrisburg, PA 17105-2621). The Department intends to issue a renewal State-Only (Synthetic Minor) Permit for Petroleum Bulk Stations and Terminals operations in Allentown, Lehigh **County**. The primary sources consist of a gasoline and diesel truck loading rack and internal floating and fixed roof tanks. The control devices consist of a Vapor Destruction Unit (VDU). The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide  $(NO_x)$ , sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP), and volatile organic compounds (VOC) emissions. The proposed operating permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations

54-00068: Pleasant Valley Homes, Inc. (P.O. Box 88, Pine Grove, PA 17963). The Department intends to issue a renewal State-Only (Synthetic Minor) Permit for the manufacture of homes facility located in Pine Grove Township, Schuylkill County. The primary sources consist of adhesives, sealant, and miscellaneous VOC use. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide  $(NO_x)$ , sulfur oxides  $(SO_x)$ , carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP) and VOC's. The proposed operating permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**45-00032:** BioSpectra, Inc. (100 Majestic Way, Bangor, PA 18013-2860) The Department intends to issue a State-Only Operating Permit for operation of sources at medicinal and botanical manufacturing facility in Stroud Township, Monroe County. The sources include chemical dryers controlled by cyclones and baghouses. The proposed permit contains all applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**48-00026:** Pan-Glo, A Division of R.T. Bundy Associates, Inc. (417 East Water Street; P.O. Box 150, Urbana, OH 43078) The Department intends to issue a State-Only Operating Permit for operation of sources at a pan repair service facility in Bethlehem City, Northampton County. The sources include a silicone spray and curing operation. The proposed permit contains all applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**48-00110:** Lehigh Valley Animal Crematory Services, Inc. (415 Front Street, Hellertown, PA 18055). The Department intends to issue an initial State-Only Natural Minor Permit for their pet cremation facility, located in the Borough of Hellertown, Northampton County. This facility operates two pet cremation units fired by natural gas. The sources are considered a minor emission source of nitrogen oxide  $(NO_x)$ , sulfur oxides  $(SO_x)$ , carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP) and VOC's. The proposed permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**36-03132:** Ira G. Steffy & Son, Inc. (1780 Newport Road, Ephrata, PA 17522) to issue a State Only Operating Permit for the specialty metal manufacturing facility located in West Earl Township, Lancaster County. The potential emissions from the facility are estimated at 3.7 tpy of PM<sub>10</sub>, 7.5 tpy of VOCs and 3.4 tpy of HAPs. The Operating Permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations. Among other items, the conditions include provisions derived 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXXXXX—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants Area Source Standards for Nine Metal Fabrication and Finishing Source Categories and 25 Pa. Code § 129.52d surface coating processes.

**38-03014:** Pennsy Supply, Inc. (P.O. Box 3331, 1001 Paxton Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105) to issue a State Only Operating Permit for the Millard Stone Plant located in North Londonderry Township, **Lebanon County**. The potential emissions from the facility are estimated at less than 42 tpy of  $PM_{.10}$ . The Operating Permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations. Among other items, the conditions include provisions derived from 40 CFR 60 Subpart OOO.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: David Balog, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 814-332-6328.

27-00008: Northwest Hardwoods, Inc.—Endeavor Division, (10689 Campbell Road, Titusville, PA 16354). The Department intends to renew a State Only Operating Permit for the saw mill & dry kiln facility located in Hickory Township, Forest County. The primary sources at the facility are a 23.4 million Btu/hr wood-fueled boiler, wood drying kilns, saw mill operations, saw dust collection, and a parts washer. Potential Emissions for the site are less than the Title V thresholds. The facility is a Natural Minor. The 23.4 million Btu/hr boiler is subject to 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJJJJ, the NESHAP for Area Source Boilers. It is also subject to 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart Dc, the Standard of Performance for Small ICI Steam Generating Units. The permit contains emission restrictions, recordkeeping, and work practice requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

Department of Public Health, Air Management Services: 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104.

Contact: Edward Wiener, Chief—Telephone: 215-685-9426.

**OP19-000008: Thomas Jefferson University & Hospital** (214 S 11th Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107) for the operation of a hospital in the City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. The facility's air emission sources include eighteen (18) emergency generators firing diesel fuel, of which two (2) rated 1,415 HP, two (2) rated 1341 HP, three (3) rated 1274 HP, four (4) rated 1,073 HP, one (1) rated 1,005.8 HP, and six (6) rated less than or equal to 670.5 HP.

The changes made as part of the modification includes the following:

 $\bullet$  In Section A, added the email address of the facility contact.

• In Table A1: Facility Inventory List, added Permit No. of each emergency generator.

• Updated the Process Flow Diagram.

• In Section B, updated the General Conditions to the current AMS versions.

• In Section C, updated the Facility Wide Conditions to the current AMS versions.

• In Section D: Source Specific Requirements, updated the operating hours and modified the testing and/or tuning hours for the emergency generators, added that the Plan Approval Exemption, 25 Pa. Code § 127.14(a)(8) applies to each emergency generator, added the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) emission limits regarding exhaust opacity for each emergency generator with model year 2007 or later, specified that compliance with the PM emission limit of 25 Pa. Code § 123.13(c)(1)(i) shall be based only on Method 5, and updated the monitoring and recordkeeping requirements.

• Added Section E: Non-Applicable Requirements.

The operating permit will be issued under 25 Pa. Code, Philadelphia Code Title 3 and Air Management Regulation XIII. Permit copies and other supporting information are available for public inspection at AMS, 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104. For further information, contact Edward Wiener at (215) 685-9426.

Persons wishing to file protest, comments, or request a public hearing on the previously listed operating permit must submit the protest, comments or request for public hearing within 30 days from the date of this notice. Any protests or comments filed with AMS must include a concise statement of the objections to the permit issuance and the relevant facts upon which the objections are based. Based upon the information received during the public comment period, AMS may modify the operating permit or schedule a public hearing. The hearing notice will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a local newspaper at least thirty days before the hearing.

**OP18-000035: Drexel University—Queen Lane Campus** (2900 Queen Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19129) for the operation of a university campus in the City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. The facility's air emission sources include four (4) boilers each rated less than 10 MMBtu/hr firing natural gas as primary fuel and No. 2 fuel oil during periods of natural gas curtailment, three (3) boilers each rated 2.5 MMBtu/hr firing natural gas, two (2) emergency generators rated 2168 HP and 364 HP firing diesel fuel, and one (1) fire pump rated 110 HP firing diesel fuel. The changes made as part of the modification include the following:

• In Table A1: Facility Inventory List, removed the Dual-fuel Boiler B-02 rated 8.37 MMBtu/hr, added three natural gas boilers, each rated 2.5 MMBtu/hr (Boiler Nos. B-02A, B-02B, and B-02C), updated the model no., serial no., and capacity for Boilers B-03, B-04, and B-05, and Emergency Generator G-02, and updated the model no. and serial no. for the Emergency Generator G-01.

• Updated the Process Flow Diagram.

• In Section B, updated the General Conditions to the current AMS versions.

• In Section C, updated the Facility Wide Conditions to the current AMS versions.

• In Section D: Source Specific Requirements, updated the operating hours for G-01, modified the testing and/or tuning hours for the fire pump and the two emergency generators, specified that compliance with the PM emission limit of 25 Pa. Code § 123.13(c)(1)(i) shall be based only on Method 5, and updated the monitoring and recordkeeping requirements.

• Added Section E: Future Requirements.

• Added Section F: Non-Applicable Requirements.

The operating permit will be issued under 25 Pa. Code, Philadelphia Code Title 3 and Air Management Regulation XIII. Permit copies and other supporting information are available for public inspection at AMS, 321 University Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19104. For further information, contact Edward Wiener at (215) 685-9426.

Persons wishing to file protest, comments, or request a public hearing on the previously listed operating permit must submit the protest, comments or request for public hearing within 30 days from the date of this notice. Any protests or comments filed with AMS must include a concise statement of the objections to the permit issuance and the relevant facts upon which the objections are based. Based upon the information received during the public comment period, AMS may modify the operating permit or schedule a public hearing. The hearing notice will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a local newspaper at least thirty days before the hearing.

#### COAL AND NONCOAL MINING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Applications under the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1—1396.19a); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301—3326); The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001); the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51—30.66); and The Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1—1406.20a). Mining activity permits issued in response to such applications will also address the applicable permitting requirements of the following statutes: the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001—4015); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1— 693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003).

The following permit applications to conduct mining activities have been received by the Department. A copy of the application is available for inspection at the district mining office indicated before each application. Notices of requests for 401 Water Quality Certifications are included in individual application notices, as noted. Written comments or objections, or requests for an informal conference, or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application and request for Section 401 water quality certification application may be submitted by any person or any officer or head of any Federal, State or local government agency or authority to the Department at the address of the district mining office indicated before each application within 30 days of this publication, or within 30 days after the last publication of the applicant's newspaper advertisement as provided by 25 Pa. Code §§ 77.121—77.123 and 86.31—86.34.

Written comments or objections regarding a mining permit application should contain the name, address and telephone number of persons submitting comments or objections, application number and a statement of sufficient detail to inform the Department on the basis of comment or objection and relevant facts upon which it is based.

A request for an informal conference or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application, as provided by 25 Pa. Code § 77.123 or § 86.34, must contain the name, address and telephone number of the requestor; the application number; a brief summary of the issues to be raised by the requestor at the conference; and a statement whether the requestor desires to have the conference conducted in the locality of the proposed mining activities.

When an NPDES number is listed, the mining activity permit application was accompanied by an application for an individual NPDES permit. A separate notice will be provided after the draft NPDES permit is prepared.

#### Coal Applications Received

California District Office: 25 Technology Drive, Coal Center, PA 15423, 724-769-1100.

**56081301 and NPDES No. PA0235903. LCT Energy, LP**, (938 Mt. Airy Drive, Suite 200, Johnstown, PA 15904). To revise the permit for the Brubaker Mine in Shade Township, **Somerset County** and related NPDES permit for a land use change from existing forestland and unmanaged natural habitat to unmanaged habitat and industrial use. No additional discharges. The application was considered administratively complete on June 3, 2019. Application received: April 4, 2019.

**30121301 and NPDES No. PA0236195. Consol Pennsylvania Coal Company LLC**, (1000 Consol Energy Drive, Canonsburg, PA 15317). To revise the permit for the Harvey Mine in Richhill, Morris, and Washington Townships, **Greene County** and related NPDES permit for installation of an overhead electric line between the 7 North 1 Portal and the 5B Bleeder Shaft. Surface Acres Proposed 60.8. No additional discharges. The application was considered administratively complete on June 4, 2019. Application received: April 30, 2019.

#### Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, 814-472-1900.

Permit No. 11190101 and NPDES No. PA0279684, Amerikohl Mining, Inc., 202 Sunset Drive, Butler, PA 16001, commencement, operation and restoration of a bituminous surface mine in Washington Township, Cambria County, affecting 161 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to Little Conemaugh River, unnamed tributaries to Bear Rock Run and unnamed tributaries to Bear Creek, classified for the following use: cold water fishes. There are no potable water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application received: February 8, 2019. Permit Issued: June 7, 2019.

Knox District Mining Office: P.O. Box 669, 310 Best Avenue, Knox, PA 16232-0669, 814-797-1191.

16140108. Ben Hal Mining Company (389 Irishtown Road, Grove City, PA 16127). Renewal of an existing bituminous surface mine in Elk Township, Clarion County affecting 14.8 acres. Receiving streams: Little Deer Creek and Little Paint Creek, classified for the following: CWF. There are no potable surface water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application for reclamation only. Application received: June 3, 2019.

10130103. Ben Hal Mining Company (389 Irishtown Road, Grove City, PA 16127). Renewal of an existing bituminous surface mine in Clay Township, **Butler** County affecting 48.9 acres. Receiving streams: Muddy Creek, classified for the following: HQ-CWF. There are no potable surface water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application for reclamation only. Application received: June 3, 2019.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

**Permit No. GP12-54190201. Rausch Creek Fuel, LLC**, (978 Gap Street, Valley View, PA 17983), application to operate a coal preparation plant whose pollution control equipment is required to meet all applicable limitations, terms and conditions of General Permit, BAQ-GPA/GP-12 on Surface Mining Permit No. 54190201 in Hegins Township, **Schuylkill County**. Application received: May 24, 2019.

#### Noncoal Applications Received

*Effluent Limits*—The following effluent limits will apply to NPDES permits issued in conjunction with a noncoal mining permit:

	Table 2		
Parameter	30-day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Suspended solids Alkalinity exceeding acidity*	10 to 35 mg/l	20 to 70 mg/l	25 to 90 mg/l
pH*	greater than 6.0: less than 9.0		

*m* 11 0

\* The parameter is applicable at all times.

A settleable solids instantaneous maximum limit of 0.5 ml/l applied to surface runoff resulting from a precipitation event of less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event. If coal will be extracted incidental to the extraction of noncoal minerals, at a minimum, the technology-based effluent limitations identified under coal applications will apply to discharges of wastewater to streams.

#### NOTICES

#### Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, 814-472-1900.

**Permit No. 4274SM11 and NPDES Permit No. PA0212512, New Enterprise Stone & Lime Co., Inc.**, P.O. Box 77, New Enterprise, PA 16664, renewal of NPDES Permit, located in Taylor Township, **Blair County**. Receiving streams: Plum and Halter Creeks, classified for the following use: High Quality cold water fishes and cold water fishes. There are no potable water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application received: May 30, 2019.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

**Permit No. 40060301T. New Enterprise Stone & Lime Co., Inc.**, (3912 Brumbaugh Road, New Enterprise, PA 16664), transfer of an existing quarry operation in Plains Township and Laflin Borough, **Luzerne County** affecting 169.34 acres, receiving stream: Gardener Creek, classified for the following uses: cold water and migratory fishes. Application received: May 30, 2019.

**Permit No. 06080301C5 and NPDES Permit No. PA0224715. Dyer Quarry, Inc.**, (P.O. Box 188, Birdsboro, PA 19508), renewal of an existing NPDES Permit for discharge of treated mine drainage from a quarry operation in Robeson Township, **Berks County** affecting 101.6 acres, receiving stream: Indian Corn Creek, classified for the following use: cold water fishes. Application received: May 31, 2019.

#### MINING ACTIVITY NPDES DRAFT PERMITS

This notice provides information about applications for a new, amended or renewed NPDES permits associated with mining activity (coal or noncoal) permits. The applications concern industrial waste (mining) discharges to surface water and discharges of stormwater associated with mining activities. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376).

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) has prepared a draft NPDES permit and made a tentative determination to issue the NPDES permit in conjunction with the associated mining activity permit.

#### Effluent Limits for Coal Mining Activities

For coal mining activities, NPDES permits, when issued, will contain effluent limits that are the more stringent of technology-based (BAT) effluent limitations or Water Quality Based Effluent Limits (WQBEL).

The BAT limits for coal mining activities, as provided in 40 CFR Part 434 and 25 Pa. Code Chapters 87—90 are as follows:

Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Iron (Total)	3.0 mg/l	6.0 mg/l	7.0 mg/l
Manganese (Total)	2.0 mg/l	4.0 mg/l	5.0 mg/l
Suspended solids	35 mg/l	70 mg/l	90 mg/l
*Hq	greater than 6.0; less than 9.0		

Alkalinity greater than acidity\*

\*The parameter is applicable at all times.

A settleable solids instantaneous maximum limit of 0.5 ml/l applies to: surface runoff (resulting from a precipitation event of less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from active mining areas; active areas disturbed by coal refuse disposal activities; mined areas backfilled and revegetated; and all other discharges and drainage (resulting from a precipitation event of greater than 1-year 24-hour to less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from coal refuse disposal piles. Similarly, modified BAT limits apply to iron, manganese and suspended solids in surface runoff, discharges and drainage resulting from these precipitation events and those of greater magnitude in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

Exceptions to BAT effluent limits may be applicable in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

#### Effluent Limits for Noncoal Mining Activities

The limits for noncoal mining activities as provided in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 77 are pH 6 to 9 and other parameters the Department may require.

Discharges from noncoal mines located in some geologic settings (for example, in the coal fields) may require additional water quality based effluent limits. If additional effluent limits are needed for an NPDES permit associated with a noncoal mining permit, then the permit description specifies the parameters.

In addition to BAT or WQBEL limits, coal and noncoal NPDES permits establish effluent limitations in the form of implemented Best Management Practices (BMPs) identified in the associated Erosion and Sedimentation Plan, the Reclamation Plan and the NPDES permit application. These BMPs restrict the rates and quantities of associated pollutants from being discharged into surface waters in this Commonwealth.

More restrictive effluent limitations, restrictions on discharge volume or restrictions on the extent of mining that may occur are incorporated into an NPDES permit when necessary for compliance with water quality standards and antidegradation requirements (in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91—96).

The procedures for determining the final effluent limits, using a mass-balance equation or model, are found in Technical Guidance Document 563-2112-115, Developing National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permits for Mining Activities. Other specific factors to be considered include public comments and Total Maximum Daily Load(s). Additional discharge limitations may apply in the event that unexpected discharges occur.

Discharge rates for surface mining activities are precipitation driven. Discharge rates for proposed discharges associated with underground mining are noted in the permit description.

Persons wishing to comment on an NPDES draft permit should submit a written statement to the Department at the address of the district mining office indicated before each draft permit within 30 days of this public notice. Comments received within the comment period will be considered in the final determinations regarding the NPDES permit applications. Comments must include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based.

The Department will also accept requests or petitions for a public hearing on NPDES permit applications, as provided in 25 Pa. Code § 92a.82(d). The request or petition for a public hearing shall be filed within 30 days of this public notice and contain the name, address, telephone number and the interest of the party filing the request, and state the reasons why a hearing is warranted. A public hearing may be held if the Department considers the public interest significant. If a hearing is scheduled, a notice of the hearing on the NPDES permit application will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a newspaper of general circulation within the relevant geographical area. When a public hearing is held, the Department will consider comments from the public hearing in the final determination on the NPDES permit application.

#### Coal NPDES Draft Permits

California District Office: 25 Technology Drive, Coal Center, PA 15423, 724-769-1100.

**NPDES No. PA0236179 (Mining Permit No. 30120701), Cumberland Contura, LLC**, (158 Portal Road, P.O. Box 1020, Waynesburg, PA 15370). A new NPDES and mining activity permit for the Cumberland Mine Coal Refuse Disposal Area No. 3 in Whiteley Township, **Greene County**. Surface Acres Affected: 548.5. Receiving stream: Unnamed Tributary 41291 to Whiteley Creek, classified for the following use: TSF and Unnamed Tributary 41292 of Whiteley Creek, classified for the following use: TSF. Whiteley Creek Sediment TMDL. The application was considered administratively complete on September 3, 2014. Application received: August 30, 2012.

Unless otherwise noted for a specific outfall, the proposed effluent limits for all outfalls in this permit are the BAT limits described previously for coal mining activities.

Outfall 034A discharges to: Unnamed Tributary 41291 to Whiteley Creek.

The proposed effluent limits for *Outfall 034A* (Lat: 39° 48′ 18″ Long: -80° 07′ 44″) are:

Parameter		Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow	(mgd)	-	-	-	Report
Iron	(mg/l)		1.9	3.9	4.8
Suspended Solids	(mg/l)	-	35	70	90
Manganese	(mg/l)	-	1.3	2.6	3.2
Aluminum	(mg/l)	-	0.75	0.91	0.91
Sulfate	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Total Dissolved Solids	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
pH	(mg/l)	6.0	-	-	9.0
Alkalinity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Acidity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Alkalinity, Net	(mg/l)	0.0	-	-	-
Osmotic Pressure	(mOs/kg)	-	-	-	Report

Outfall 034B discharges to: Unnamed Tributary 41291 to Whiteley Creek.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 034B (Lat: 39° 48' 18" Long: -80° 07' 44") are:

Parameter		Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow	(mgd)	-	-	-	Report
Iron	(mg/l)	-	1.5	3.0	3.8
Suspended Solids	(mg/l)	-	35	70	90
Manganese	(mg/l)	-	1.0	2.0	2.5
Aluminum	(mg/l)	-	0.75	0.75	0.75
Sulfate	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Total Dissolved Solids	(mg/l)	-	2,000	4,000	$5,0\bar{0}0$
Chloride	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Bromide	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
pH	(mg/l)	6.0	-	-	9.0
Alkalinity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Acidity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Alkalinity, Net	(mg/l)	0.0	-	-	-
Osmotic Pressure	(mOs/kg)	-	-	-	Report

Outfall 035 discharges to: Unnamed Tributary 41292 to Whiteley Creek.

The proposed effluent limits for *Outfall 035* (Lat: 39° 48′ 43″ Long: -80° 08′ 31″) are:

Parameter		Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow	(mgd)	-	-	-	Report
Iron	(mg/l)	-	2.5	5.0	6.25
Suspended Solids	(mg/l)	-	35	70	90
Manganese	(mg/l)	-	1.62	3.25	4.05
Aluminum	(mg/l)	-	0.75	0.75	0.75
Sulfate	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Total Dissolved Solids	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
pH	(mg/l)	6.0	-	-	9.0
Alkalinity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Acidity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Alkalinity, Net	(mg/l)	0.0	-	-	-
Osmotic Pressure	(mOs/kg)	-	-	-	Report

Outfall 036 discharges to: Unnamed Tributary of Whiteley Creek.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 036 (Lat: 39° 48' 43" Long: -80° 08' 30") are:

Parameter		Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow	(mgd)	-	-	-	Report
Iron	(mg/l)	-	2.5	5.0	6.25
Suspended Solids	(mg/l)	-	35	70	90
Manganese	(mg/l)	-	1.62	3.25	4.05
Aluminum	(mg/l)	-	0.75	0.75	0.75
Sulfate	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Total Dissolved Solids	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
рH	(mg/l)	6.0	-	-	9.0
Alkalinity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Acidity, Total as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	(mg/l)	-	-	-	Report
Alkalinity, Net	(mg/l)	0.0	-	-	-
Osmotic Pressure	(mOs/kg)	-	-	-	Report

EPA waiver not in effect.

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT, SECTION 401

The following permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval and requests for 401 Water Quality Certification have been received by the Department. Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341) requires the Commonwealth to certify that the involved projects will not violate the sections 301-303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311-1313, 1316 and 1317) as well as relevant State requirements. Persons objecting to approval of a request for certification under section 401 of the FWPCA, the issuance of a Dam Permit or Water Obstruction and Encroachment Permit or the approval of an Environmental Assessment shall submit comments, suggestions or objections within 30 days of the date of this notice as well as any questions to the office noted before an application. Comments should contain the name, address and telephone number of the person commenting, identification of the certification request to which the comments or objections are addressed and a concise statement of comments, objections or suggestions including the relevant facts upon which they are based.

The Department may conduct a fact-finding hearing or an informal conference in response to comments if deemed necessary. Each individual will be notified, in writing, of the time and place of a scheduled hearing or conference concerning the certification request to which the comment, objection or suggestion relates. Maps, drawings and other data pertinent to the certification request are available for inspection between 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. on working days at the office noted before the application.

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the proceedings should contact the specified program. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

Applications Received under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1–693.27) and section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and Requests for Certification under section 401(a) of the FWPCA.

#### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Northeast Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, Telephone 570-826-2511.

**E4502219-003.** Liberty Homes Custom Builders, P.O. Box 260, Pocono Lake, PA 18347, in Coolbaugh and Tobyhanna Townships, **Monroe County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain a 20-foot wide single family driveway crossing and a 1.5-inch sanitary line crossing of a de minimus area of PFO wetlands (EV) equal to 0.02 acre. The project is located at the intersection of Onawa Trail and Watami Road. (Thornhurst, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41° 9' 32.66"; Longitude: -75° 34' 34.13"). **E54-372. PPL Electrical Utilities Corporation**, 2 North 9th Street, Allentown, PA 18101, in Branch, North Manheim, Norwegian, and Wayne Townships and City of Pottsville, **Schuylkill County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Philadelphia District.

To remove the existing structure and construct and maintain an electric aerial line crossing of West Branch Schuylkill River (CWF, MF) and adjacent wetlands for the Frackville-Orwigsburg & Fishbach-Pine Grove 69kV Line Rebuild project. The project is located approximately 0.06 mile south of the Gordon Nagle Trail and Indian Run Road intersection (Pottsville, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 40° 39' 43.24"; Longitude: -76° 14' 3.30").

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, Ed Muzic, Section Chief, 717.705.4802.

**E6703119-001:** PA Department of Transportation Engineering District 8-0, 2140 Herr Street, Harrisburg, PA 17103-1699 in, Manchester Township, York County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To:

1) install and maintain a 6-inch depressed, 33.73-foot long, 60-inch diameter, reinforced concrete pipe extension, permanently impacting 49 linear feet and temporarily impacting 190 linear feet of an Unnamed Tributary (UNT) to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

2) remove an existing 7.5-foot wide, 5-foot high, and 28.96-foot long steel pipe culvert from in and along the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

3) remove an existing 60-inch-diameter, 84.97-foot-long steel pipe culvert from in and along the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

4) remove two existing elliptical reinforced concrete pipes, that are 5.6-foot wide by 3.6-foot high, and 48.42-foot, and 5.4-foot wide by 3.8-foot high, and 48.53-foot long from in and along the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

5) install and maintain a 1-foot depressed, 121.67-foot long, 16-foot wide, and 4.5-foot high precast reinforced concrete box culvert enclosure with full width fish baffles, permanently impacting 40 linear feet of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

6) install and maintain a 1-foot depressed, 72-foot long, 8-foot wide, and 6-foot high precast reinforced concrete box culvert, with alternating fish baffles, permanently impacting 110 linear feet and temporarily impacting 35 linear feet of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

7) install and maintain a 1-foot depressed, 56-foot long, 8-foot wide, 4-foot high precast reinforced concrete box culvert with alternating fish baffles, permanently impacting 77 linear feet, and temporarily impacting 39 linear feet of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

8) construct and maintain a vegetated outfall channel with a 4-foot bottom width, 2-foot minimum depth, and 2:1 side slopes, permanently impacting 1,200 square feet and temporarily impacting 800 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

9) place and maintain riprap outfall protection, permanently impacting 686 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

10) install and maintain a 24-inch diameter pipe and construct and maintain a vegetated outfall channel with a

4-foot bottom width, 2-foot minimum depth, and 2:1 side slopes permanently impacting 1,281 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

11) install and maintain an 18-inch cross pipe extension and construct and maintain a vegetated outfall channel with a 2-foot bottom width, 2-foot minimum depth, and 2:1 side slopes, permanently impacting 728 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3),

12) install and maintain a 36-inch diameter pipe and construct and maintain a vegetated outfall channel with a 2-foot bottom width, 2.5-foot minimum depth, and 2:1 side slopes, permanently impacting 1,870 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF). The project will temporarily impact 52,400 square feet of the floodway of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3) and will also temporarily impact 6,948 square feet of the floodway of a UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 4). A stream relocation, permanently impacting 313 linear feet and temporarily impacting 77 linear feet of the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3) is proposed. Stream mitigation proposing 207 linear feet of new stream channel with riparian enhancement onsite is proposed and 405 linear feet of stream restoration to the UNT to Codorus Creek (WWF, MF; Channel 3) is also proposed downstream of the relocated reach. No wetlands will be impacted by this project. The project is located along the SR 0181-017 and SR 0083 interchange (North George Street, Exit 22) in Manchester Township, York County (Latitude: 39.996693, Longitude: -76.73453). This project is an early action safety project that is part of a larger ongoing phased project identified as the "North York Widening" project.

**E0603219-004:** City of Reading 815 Washington Street, Reading, PA 19601, in City of Reading, Berks County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain an (1) ADA-accessible concrete trail connecting the existing Angelica Park parking and boardwalk to Angelica Creek and (2) a pre-fabricated concrete slab ramp stream access impacting 162 square feet of Angelica Creek (CWF-MF) and 418 square feet of the floodway of Angelica Creek. The project is located at 575 Saint Bernardine Street (Reading, PA Quadrangle, Latitude 40.312171, Longitude -75.927570). The purpose of the project is to construct an ADA-accessible access point to Angelica Creek.

**E22-648: SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc.**, 4211 East Park Circle, Harrisburg, PA 17111 in Susquehanna Township, **Dauphin County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc. proposes to repair the existing intakes located on the bottom of the Susquehanna River and to construct a new pump station and meter/PRV chamber at the existing raw water pump station. The repairs to the intakes include removing the top screen from the two intake boxes and removing and replacing the damaged PVC air distribution pipe. There will be no change in to the footprint of the intakes on the river bottom or to the size or shape of the intake boxes. The proposed new pump station, meter/PRV chamber, and control valve pad are located within the 100-year floodplain of the Susquehanna River. The proposed new pump station, meter/PRV chamber, and control valve will result in 553 square feet of permanent floodplain impacts. This project proposes no impacts to wetlands, as no wetlands exist within the project area. The project is located at 4744 Ruscarora Street (Latitude: 40.3341, Longitude: -76.9049) in Susquehanna Township, Dauphin County.

**E2203219-002:** Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, P.O. Box 315, Aristes, PA 17920 in Jackson Township, **Dauphin County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To 1.) install and maintain a 50.0-foot long by 6.0-foot wide premanufactured fiberglass bridge over West Branch Rattling Creek (EV, MF) and; 2.) install and maintain a 30.0-foot long by 6.0-foot wide premanufactured fiberglass bridge over Shale Run (EV, MF) for the purpose of providing safe pedestrian stream crossings. The project is located within Weiser State Forest in Jackson Township, Dauphin County. No wetlands will be impacted by this project.

**E21-468: Hertzler Road Associates, L.P.**, 4400 Deer Path Road, Suite 201, Harrisburg, PA 17110 in Upper Allen Township, **Cumberland County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

The applicant proposes to:

1) install and maintain a sanitary sewer line in the floodway and across a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF), impacting 30 linear feet of channel (Latitude: 40.180825, Longitude: -76.958164);

2) install and maintain 235 linear feet of rip rap bank stabilization on the north bank of a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF) (Latitude: 40.181000, Longitude: -76.955858);

3) remove the existing stream crossing structures and construct and maintain a 110.0-foot long 4.0-foot by 6.0-foot concrete box culvert with fish baffles in a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF) with an associated 90-foot long stream relocation, a water main, electric and telecommunication utility line crossing (Latitude: 40.180778, Longitude: -76.959233);

4) remove the existing structure and install a 125.0foot long 4.0-foot by 6.0-foot concrete box culvert with fish baffles in a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF) with a water main, electric and telecommunication utility line crossing (Latitude: 40.181041, Longitude: -76.961191);

5) replace and maintain an existing 15.0-inch cross pipe with associated outfall to a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF) impacting 12 linear feet of channel (Latitude: 40.181845, Longitude: -76.962619);

6) extend an existing 15.0-inch by 24.0-inch CMP cross pipe into the floodway of a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF), impacting 900 square feet of floodway (Latitude: 40.182072, Longitude: -76.964518);

7) Place and maintain fill associated with roadway improvements in 10,500 square feet of floodway of a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF) (Latitude: 40.182084, Longitude: -76.965401);

8) construct and maintain an 18.0-inch stormwater outfall in the floodway of a UNT to Yellow Breeches Creek (CWF-MF), impacting 1,400 square feet of floodway (Latitude: 40.180833, Longitude: -76.958889);

All impacts are associated with Autumn Chase housing development in Upper Allen Township, Cumberland County. No wetland impacts are associated with the project. **E2103219-003: Silver Spring Township**, 8 Flowers Drive, Mechanicsburg, PA 17050 in Silver Spring Township, **Cumberland County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

The applicant proposes to: 1) remove the existing stream crossing structure and construct and maintain a 93.5-foot long 4.66-foot high by 11.5-foot wide box culvert with fish baffles in Trindle Spring Run (CWF-MF) and; 2) relocate 430 linear feet of Trindle Spring Run (CWF-MF), all for the purpose of widening Silver Spring Road to provide a safe and signalized intersection with Woods Drive in Silver Spring Township, Cumberland County (Latitude: 40.23691; Longitude: -77.007177). No wetland impacts are associated with the project.

Northwest Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**E1006219-003, BV3 Partners LP**, 800 South Washington St., Evans City, PA 16033. Sunrise Acres in Adams Township, **Butler County**, ACOE Pittsburgh District (Valencia, PA Quadrangle N: 40°, 40′, 58″; W: 79°, 58′, 26″).

The applicant proposes to construct a residential subdivision with associated roadways, utilities, walking trail, and stormwater management facilities. The project will impact a total of 0.17 acre of permanent wetland impact of which 0.02 acre are PSS and 0.15 are PEM, and 0.04 acre of temporary wetland impact for the installation of a sanitary sewer line. The applicant proposes to mitigate for wetland impacts onsite by creating 0.33 acre of function wetland.

District Oil & Gas Operations: Eastern Oil & Gas District, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701.

**E5929-089: SWEPI LP**, 150 N. Dairy Ashford, E1296-E, Houston, TX 77079, Charleston Township, **Tioga County**, ACOE Baltimore District.

The removal of a well pad impacting 35,220 square feet of an exceptional value palustrine forested (EV-PFO) wetland (Jackson Summit, PA Quadrangle 41° 57′ 47″N, 76° 59′ 59′ W). The impacts are a result from the previous well pad owner constructing the pad over the forested wetland in Jackson Township, Tioga County. Along with the restoration of the 35,220 square feet (0.81 acre) of wetlands on-site, the permittee will provide 70,440 square feet (1.62 acre) of off-site compensatory mitigation at the Butters Mitigation Site (Blossburg, PA Quadrangle 41° 44′ 55″N, 77° 03′ 16″W).

**E5929-090: SWEPI LP**, 150 N. Dairy Ashford, E1296-E, Houston, TX 77079, Charleston Township, **Tioga County**, ACOE Baltimore District.

The removal of a well pad impacting 5,175 square feet of an exceptional value palustrine emergent (EV-PEM) wetland (Keeneyville, PA Quadrangle 41° 46′ 08″N, 77° 17′ 53″W). The impacts are a result from the previous well pad owner constructing the pad over the emergent wetland in Delmar Township, Tioga County. Along with the restoration of the 5,175 square feet (0.12 acre) of wetlands on-site, the permittee will provide 10,350 square feet (0.24 acre) of off-site compensatory mitigation at the Butters Mitigation Site (Blossburg, PA Quadrangle 41° 44′ 55″N, 77° 03′ 16″W).

## STORAGE TANKS SITE-SPECIFIC INSTALLATION PERMITS

The following Storage Tank Site-Specific Installation Permit application has been received by the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) and is currently under review. Persons wishing to comment on the proposed permit are invited to submit a statement to the Bureau of Environmental Cleanup and Brownfields, Division of Storage Tanks, P.O. Box 8762, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8762, within 30 days from the date of this publication. Comments may also be submitted via email to tanks@pa.gov. Comments received within this 30-day period will be considered in the formulation of the final determinations regarding this application. Responses should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of the comment and the relevant facts upon which it based.

The following applications have been received for Storage Tank Site-Specific Installation Permits under the authority of the Storage Tank Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.304, 6021.504, 6021.1101—6021.1102) and under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter C.

SSIP Application No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Tank Type	Tank Capacity
19005	ACE American Insurance Company 436 Walnut Street Philadelphia, PA 19106 Attn: Michael Bachmann	Philadelphia	City of Philadelphia	3 ASTs storing petroleum products	41,825 gallons total

## ACTIONS

# THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

## FINAL ACTIONS TAKEN FOR NPDES PERMITS AND WQM PERMITS

The Department has taken the following actions on previously received applications for new, amended and renewed NPDES and WQM permits, applications for permit waivers and NOIs for coverage under General Permits. This notice of final action is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376).

Location Permi	it Authority Applicati	on Type or Category
Section INPDESection IINPDESection IIIWQMSection IVNPDESection VNPDESection VINPDESection VIINPDE	2S New or A Industria 2S MS4 Ind 2S MS4 Per 2S Individua	s amendment al, Sewage or Animal Wastes; Discharges to Groundwater ividual Permit mit Waiver al Permit Stormwater Construction Coverage under NPDES General Permits

Sections I—VI contain actions regarding industrial, animal or sewage wastes discharges, discharges to groundwater, and discharges associated with MS4, stormwater associated with construction activities and CAFOs. Section VII contains notices for parties who have submitted NOIs for Coverage under General NPDES Permits. The approval for coverage under these General NPDES Permits is subject to applicable effluent limitations, monitoring, reporting requirements and other conditions in each General Permit. The approval of coverage for land application of sewage sludge or residential septage under applicable general permit is subject to pollutant limitations, pathogen and vector attraction reduction requirements, operational standards, general requirements, management practices and other conditions in the respective permit. The permits and related documents, effluent limitations, permitting requirements and other information are on file and may be inspected and arrangements made for copying at the contact office noted before the action.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act (35 P.S. § 7514) and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law). The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30 days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should contact a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

Northeast Reg	gion: Clean Water Program Manager, 2 I	Public Square, Wilkes-E	Barre, PA 18701-1915. Phon	e: 570-826-2511
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PAS322203 (Storm Water)	Monadnock Non-Wovens LLC P.O. Box 295 5110 Park Court Mount Pocono, PA 18344-0295	Monroe County Coolbaugh Township	Red Run (HQ-CWF, MF) (2-A)	Yes
PA0064149 (Sewage)	Arcadia West Industrial Park WWTP 9767 Commerce Circle Kutztown, PA 19530	Lehigh County Weisenberg Township	Unnamed Tributary to Mill Creek (TSF/MF) (3-B)	No
Southcentral .	Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 3	909 Elmerton Avenue, 1	Harrisburg, PA 17110. Phon	e: 717-705-4707
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed # )	EPA Waived Y/N?
PAS223502 (Storm Water)	Frey Group LLC 372 Puseyville Road Quarryville, PA 17566	Lancaster County East Drumore Township	Unnamed Tributary to West Branch Octoraro Creek (HQ-CWF, MF) (7-K)	Y
PAS603503 (Storm Water)	Royal Green Huller Lane Car Shredding Plant & Landfill Temple P.O. Box 9 Temple, PA 19560-0009	Berks County Ontelaunee Township	Schuylkill River (WWF, MF) (3-C)	Y
	Regional Office: Clean Water Programone: 570.327.3636.	n Manager, 208 W T	hird Street, Suite 101, W	Villiamsport, PA
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0110485 (Sewage)	Columbia County Industrial Park Wastewater Treatment Plant 90 Irondale Road Bloomsburg, PA 17815-8501	Columbia County South Centre Township	Susquehanna River (WWF, MF) (5-D)	Yes
Southwest Re 412.442.4000.	gional Office: Clean Water Program Mo	anager, 400 Waterfront	Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 152	22-4745. Phone
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed No.)	EPA Waived Y/N?
PA0218642 (Sewage)	Marion Center STP 22825 Route 403 Hwy N Marion Center, PA 15759	Indiana County East Mahoning Township	Pine Run (CWF) (17-E)	Yes
PA0096814 (Sewage)	Robyns Shop Donegal Tri Fuel STP 2848 Copper Kettle Highway Rockwood, PA 15557-7208	Westmoreland County Donegal Township	UNT of Minnow Run (CWF) (19-E)	Yes
PA0093408 (Sewage)	Crucible WPCF 100 Municipal Road Carmichaels, PA 15320-1051	Greene County Cumberland Township	Monongahela River (WWF)	Yes
PA0039489 (Sewage)	Garrett Borough STP P.O. Box 218 307 Municipal Road Garrett, PA 15542-0218	Somerset County Garrett Borough	Casselman River (WWF) (19-F)	Yes
PA0025003 (Sewage)	Tub Run Recreation Area P.O. Box 107 Ohiopyle, PA 15470-0107	Fayette County Henry Clay Township	Youghiogheny River (WWF) (19-E)	Yes
$Northwest \ Re_{s}$	gion: Clean Water Program Manager, 23	0 Chestnut Street, Mea	dville, PA 16335-3481.	
NPDES No. (Type)	Facility Name & Address	County & Municipality	Stream Name (Watershed # )	EPA Waived Y/N?

#### **I. NPDES Renewal Permit Actions.**

Warren County Glade Township

Glade Run

(CWF) (16-B)

Unnamed Tributary to

Yes

PA0210285

(Sewage)

James A Newton SFTF

Warren, PA 16365-4389

2415 Jackson Avenue

## II. New or Expanded Facility Permits, Renewal of Major Permits and EPA Nonwaived Permit Actions.

Northcentral Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 208 W Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448. Phone: 570.327.3636.

NPDES Permit No. PA0233013, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, Travis L. Stem, 140 Blarney Stone Drive, Julian, PA 16844-9432.

This proposed facility is located in Boggs Township, Centre County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated sewage.

Northwest Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

NPDES Permit No. PA0272078, Sewage, SIC Code 8800, Patricia & William Menz, 10644 Station Road, North East, PA 16428.

This proposed facility is located in Greenfield Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated Sewage.

NPDES Permit No. PA0271951, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, 8800, Shawn Boyer, 53 Valley View Drive, New Wilmington, PA 16142.

This proposed facility is located in Pulaski Township, Lawrence County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated Sewage.

NPDES Permit No. PA0272027, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, 8800, Dennis L Fisher Sr, 8265 Station Road, Erie, PA 16510.

This proposed facility is located in Harborcreek Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated Sewage.

NPDES Permit No. PA0271616, Sewage, SIC Code 6512, Halton Sportsmens Club Inc., 14407 River Road, Sigel, PA 15806-9312.

This proposed facility is located in Spring Creek Township, Elk County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated Sewage.

NPDES Permit No. PA0272019, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, 8800, Nora Kreider, 11396 Sharp Road, Waterford, PA 16441.

This proposed facility is located in Waterford Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Issuance of an NPDES Permit for a new discharge of treated Sewage.

## III. WQM Industrial Waste and Sewerage Actions under The Clean Streams Law.

Northcentral Regional Office: Regional Clean Water Program Manager, 208 W Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448. Phone: 570.327.3636.

**WQM Permit No. 1419401**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Stem Travis L**, 140 Blarney Stone Drive, Julian, PA 16844-9432. This proposed facility is located in Boggs Township, **Centre County**.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Construction and operation of a new single residence sewage treatment plant. Northwest Region: Clean Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

WQM Permit No. 2519405, Sewage, Patricia & William Menz, 10644 Station Road, North East, PA 16428.

This proposed facility is located in Greenfield Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant.

WQM Permit No. 3718406, Sewage, Shawn Boyer, 53 Valley View Drive, New Wilmington, PA 16142.

This proposed facility is located in Pulaski Township, Lawrence County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant.

WQM Permit No. 2519403, Sewage, Dennis L Fisher Sr, 8265 Station Road, Erie, PA 16510.

This proposed facility is located in Harborcreek Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant.

WQM Permit No. 2519402, Sewage, Nora Kreider, 11396 Sharp Road, Waterford, PA 16441.

This proposed facility is located in Waterford Township, Erie County.

Description of Proposed Action/Activity: Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant.

NPDES Permit No.	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	Receiving Water(s) / Use(s)	TMDL Pollutant Plan Reduction Submitted Plan (Y/N) Submitted (Y/N)
PAI132230	Wilson Borough 2040 Hay Terrace Easton, PA 18042-4617	Wilson Borough, Northampton	Lehigh River/ WWF and MF	N Y

# IV. NPDES Stormwater Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Individual Permits Issued.

Northeast Regional Office: Clean Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. Phone: 570.826.2511.

## VI. NPDES Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activities Individual Permit Actions.

Northeast Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. Monroe County Conservation District, 8050 Running Valley Road, Stroudsburg, PA 18347.

	,,,,			
NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water / Use
PAD450080	Arsha Vidya Pitham 651 Rt 115 Saylorsburg, PA 18353	Monroe	Ross Twp	Aquashicola Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)
PAD450075	Nyles and Kitty Possinger 291 NE Belmont Pike Stroudsburg, PA 18360	Monroe	Hamilton Twp	Appenzell Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)
PAD450077	Pocono Organics 1015 Long Pond Road P.O. Box 145 Long Pond, PA 18334-8019	Monroe	Tunkhannock	Keiper Run (HQ-CWF, MF)

Northampton County Conservation District, 14 Gracedale Ave., Greystone Building, Nazareth, PA 18064-9211.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water/Use
PAD480078	FreshPet c/o Michael Hieger 176 North Commerce Way Bethlehem, PA 18017	Northampton	Hanover Township	Monocacy Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, Nathan Phillips, Section Chief, Telephone 717.705.4802.

Permit #	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water / Use
PAD060024 Issued	JLM Real Estate, LLC 950 East Main Street P.O. Box 472 Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972	Berks	Richmond Township	Moselem Creek (HQ-CWF, MF)

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, Dana Drake, Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 412-442-4000.

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water/Use
PAD0200115	Sheetz, Inc. 5700 Sixth Avenue Altoona, PA 16602	Allegheny County	Shaler Township	Pine Creek (TSF)
PAD630015-1	Pennsylvania Department of Transportation 825 North Gallatin Avenue Extension P.O. Box 459 Uniontown, PA 15401	Washington County	South Strabane Township	UNT to Little Chartiers Creek (HQ-WWF)
PAD650019	Peoples Natural Gas, LLC 195 Donohoe Road Greensburg, PA 15601	Westmoreland County	Unity Township	Indian Camp Run (HQ-CWF)

## VII. Approvals to Use NPDES and/or Other General Permits.

The EPA Region III Administrator has waived the right to review or object to this permit action under the waiver provision 40 CFR 123.23(d).

## List of NPDES and/or Other General Permit Types.

PAG-1	General Permit for Discharges from Stripper Oil Well Facilities
PAG-2	General Permit for Discharges of Stormwater Associated With Construction Activities
PAG-3	General Permit for Discharges of Stormwater From Industrial Activities
PAG-4	General Permit for Discharges from Small Flow Treatment Facilities
PAG-5	General Permit for Discharges from Petroleum Product Contaminated Groundwater Remediation Systems
PAG-6	General Permit for Wet Weather Overflow Discharges from Combined Sewer Systems (CSO)
PAG-7	General Permit for Beneficial Use of Exceptional Quality Sewage Sludge by Land Application
PAG-8	General Permit for Beneficial Use of Non-Exceptional Quality Sewage Sludge by Land Application to Agricultural Land, Forest, a Public Contact Site or a Land Reclamation Site
PAG-8 (SSN)	Site Suitability Notice for Land Application Under Approved PAG-8 General Permit Coverage
PAG-9	General Permit for Beneficial Use of Residential Septage by Land Application to Agricultural Land, Forest, or a Land Reclamation Site
PAG-9 (SSN)	Site Suitability Notice for Land Application Under Approved PAG-9 General Permit Coverage
PAG-10	General Permit for Discharges from Hydrostatic Testing of Tanks and Pipelines
PAG-11	General Permit for Discharges from Aquatic Animal Production Facilities
PAG-12	Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs)
PAG-13	Stormwater Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4)
PAG-14	(To Be Announced)
PAG-15	General Permit for Discharges from the Application of Pesticides

## General Permit Type—PAG-02

Waterways & Wetlands Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401. Telephone 484-250-5160.

Facility Location & Municipality	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
West Rockhill Township Bucks County	PAC090243	South End Properties Holding, LLC 2469 Hickory Hill Road Oxford, PA 19363-4400	Tohickon Creek TSF	Southeast Regional Office 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401 484-250-5900
Warrington Township Bucks County	PAC090258	Warrington Township 852 Easton Road Warrington, PA 18976	Unnamed Tributary to Neshaminy Creek WWF-MF	Southeast Regional Office 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401 484-250-5900
Upper Darby Township Delaware County	PAC230111	Upper Darby School District 4611 Bond Avenue Drexel Hill, PA 19026	Naylors Run WWF-MF	Southeast Regional Office 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401 484-250-5900

Northeast Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Carbon Count	ghton, PA 18235.			
NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water/Use
PAC130012	St Luke's Hospital of Bethlehm 801 Ostrum St Bethlehem, PA 18015	Carbon	Franklin Twp	Pohopoco Creek (CWF, MF)

NPDES Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Receiving Water/Use
PAC400112	Northpoint Development Eric Watts 4825 NW 41st St Ste 500 Riverside, MO 64150	Luzerne	Hanover Twp	Nanticoke Creek (CWF, MF)

Luzerne Conservation District, 325 Smiths Pond Road, Shavertown, PA 18708.

Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110-8200, Nathan Phillips, Section Chief, 717.705.4802.

717.705.4802.				
Facility Location: Municipality & County	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water / Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Liberty Township Adams County Issued	PAC010090	Specialty Granules LLC (SGI) 13424 Pennsylvania Avenue Hagerstown, MD 21742	Miney Branch (CWF, MF)	Adams County Conservation District 670 Old Harrisburg Road Suite 201 Gettysburg, PA 17325-3404 717.334.0636
Maxatawny Township Berks County Issued	PAC060179	Warren N. Shirk 229 Hinterleiter Road Kutztown, PA 19530	UNT Sacony Creek (CWF, MF)	Berks County Conservation District 1238 County Welfare Road Suite 200 Leesport, PA 19533-9710 610.372.4657
Blair and Freedom Townships Blair County Issued	PAC070053	New Enterprise Stone & Lime Co., Inc. 3912 Brumbaugh Road P.O. Box 77 New Enterprise, PA 16664	Frankstown Branch Juniata River UNT Frankstown Branch Juniata River (TSF, WWF)	Blair County Conservation District 1407 Blair Street Hollidaysburg, PA 16648 814.696.0877, ext. 5
Shippensburg and Southampton Townships Cumberland County Issued	PAC210144	Deerfield Development Group, LLC 2121 Old Gettysburg Road Suite 200 State College, PA 16803	Burd Run (CWF) Bulls Head Branch (CWF)	Cumberland County Conservation District 310 Allen Road Suite 301 Carlisle, PA 17013-9101 717.240.7812
Monroe Township Cumberland County Issued	PAC210154	DSG Development Corp 2456 Mercedes Court Harrisburg, PA 17112	Trindle Spring Run (CWF)	Cumberland County Conservation District 310 Allen Road Suite 301 Carlisle, PA 17013-9101 717.240.7812
Hampden Township Cumberland County Issued	PAC210124	Berkley, LLC 1877 South Federal Highway Suite 304 Boca Raton, FL 33432	Pine Run (WWF) Sears Run (WWF)	Cumberland County Conservation District 310 Allen Road Suite 301 Carlisle, PA 17013-9101 717.240.7812
Derry Township Dauphin County Issued	PAC220155	Hershey Developers, LLC 7360 Devonshire Heights Road Harrisburg, PA 17110	Swatara Creek (WWF, MF)	Dauphin County Conservation District 1451 Peters Mountain Road Dauphin, PA 17018 717.921.8100

Facility Location: Municipality & County	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Lower Paxton Township Dauphin County Issued	PAC220061 (Renewal)	The McNaughton Company 4400 Deerpath Road Harrisburg, PA 17110	Beaver Creek (WWF, MF)	Dauphin County Conservation District 1451 Peters Mountain Road Dauphin, PA 17018 717.921.8100
Mifflin Township Dauphin County Issued	PAC220165	Daniel King 827 Kessler Road Millersburg, PA 17061	UNT Little Wiconisco Creek (WWF)	Dauphin County Conservation District 1451 Peters Mountain Road Dauphin, PA 17018 717.921.8100
West Hanover and East Hanover Townships Dauphin County Issued	PAC220172	Williams Holding Group, LLC 2325 Paxton Church Road Harrisburg, PA 17110	Manada Creek (WWF, MF)	Dauphin County Conservation District 1451 Peters Mountain Road Dauphin, PA 17018 717.921.8100
Jackson Township Dauphin County Issued	PAC220152	DCNR Bureau of Forestry P.O. Box 8552 Harrisburg, PA 17105	Armstrong Creek (CWF, MF)	Dauphin County Conservation District 1451 Peters Mountain Road Dauphin, PA 17018 717.921.8100

Northcentral Region: Watershed Management Program Manager, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Facility Location & Municipality	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Athens Twp Athens Boro & Sayre Boro Bradford Cnty	PAC080038	Valley Energy, Inc. 523 South Keystone Ave P.O. Box 340 Sayre, PA 18840	Satterlee Creek CWF Susquehanna River WWF	Bradford County Conservation District Stoll Natural Resource Ctr 200 Lake Rd Ste E Towanda, PA 18848 (570) 265-5539, X 6
Leroy Twp Bradford Cnty	PAC080023A-1	PennDOT Engineering District 3-0 715 Jordan Ave Montoursville, PA 17754-0218	UNT to Towanda Cr CWF	Bradford County Conservation District Stoll Natural Resource Ctr 200 Lake Rd Ste E Towanda, PA 18848 (570) 265-5539, X 6
Taylor Twp Centre Cnty	PAC140076	Scott Cowfer 1652 Bell Hollow Lane Port Matilda, PA 16870	UNT to Sparrow Run CWF	Centre County Conservation District 414 Holmes Ave Ste 4 Bellefonte, PA 16823 (814) 355-6817
Woodward Twp Clinton Cnty	PAC180014 Renewal Prior # PAG02001810001R	Nestlerode Real Estate 145 E. Walnut Street Lock Haven, PA 17745	UNT to West Branch Susquehanna River CWF/MF	Clinton County Conservation District 45 Cooperation Ln Mill Hall, PA 17751 (570) 726-3798
Hemlock Twp Columbia Cnty	PAC190037	Calumet Enterprises 2205 Old Philadelphia Pike Lancaster, PA 17602	UNT to Hemlock Creek	Columbia County Conservation District 702 Sawmill Rd Ste 204 Bloomsburg, PA 17815 (570) 784-1310 X 102

## 3249

Facility Location & Municipality	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Lower Augusta Twp Northumberland Cnty	PAC490041	Susquehanna Railworks 7347 SR 147 Sunbury, PA 17801	UNT West Branch Susquehanna River WWF, MF	Northumberland County Conservation District 441 Plum Creek Rd Sunbury, PA 17801 (570) 286-7114 ext. 4
Franklin Twp Snyder Cnty	PAC550033	Midd-West School District 568 East Main Street Middleburg, PA 17842	UNT Middlecreek CWF Middlecreek TSF	Snyder County Conservation District 403 W Market St Middleburg, PA 17842 (570) 837-3000 X110
Buffalo Twp Union Cnty	PAG02006016011 Minor Amendment	Diakon Lutheran Social Ministries Steven L. Daniels 960 Century Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055	Limestone Run WWF	Union County Conservation District Union County Government Center 155 N 15th St Lewisburg, PA 17837 (570) 524-3860

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, Dana Drake, Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 412-442-4000.

materways and metian	us i rogrum munug	<i>er, 412-442-4000.</i>		
Facility Location and Municipality	Permit No.	Applicant Name and Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office and Phone No.
Greene Township	PAC040051	PennDOT District 11-0 45 Thoms Run Road Bridgeville, PA 15017	UNT to Mill Creek (TSF)	Beaver County Conservation District 156 Cowpath Road Aliquippa, PA 15001 (724) 378-1701
Center Township Hopewell Township	PAC040053	Stefanik Industrial Park 2267 Todd Road Aliquippa, PA 15001	Raccoon Creek (WWF)	Beaver County Conservation District 156 Cowpath Road Aliquippa, PA 15001 (724) 378-1701
Ebensburg Borough	PAC110050	Cambria County Legion Recreation Association, Inc. 883 North Julian Street Ebensburg, PA 15931	UNT to South Branch Blacklick Creek (CWF); Howells Run (CWF)	Cambria County Conservation District 401 Candlelight Drive Suite 229 Ebensburg, PA 15931 (814) 472-2120
White Township	PAC320029A-1	Advanced GeoServices 1055 Andrew Drive Suite A West Chester, PA 19380	UNT to Cherry Run (CWF)	Indiana County Conservation District 350 North Fourth Street Indiana, PA 15701 (724) 471-4751
Berlin Borough	PAC560027	Tom R. Croner 3872 Huckleberry Highway Berlin, PA 15530	Stonycreek River (CWF)	Somerset County Conservation District 6024 Glades Pike Suite 103 Somerset, PA 15501 (814) 289-4250
Brothersvalley Township	PAC560032	Fogle Mining, Inc. 601 Main Street P.O. Box 62 Berlin, PA 15530	UNT's to Buffalo Creek (CWF); Stonycreek River (CWF)	Somerset County Conservation District 6024 Glades Pike Suite 103 Somerset, PA 15501 (814) 289-4250

Facility Location and Municipality Mount Pleasant Township	<i>Permit No.</i> PAC630130	Applicant Name and Address MarkWest Liberty Midstream and Resources, LLC 4600 J. Barry Court Suite 500 Canonsburg, PA 15317	Receiving Water/Use UNT to Chartiers Run (WWF)	Contact Office and Phone No. Washington County Conservation District 50 Old Hickory Ridge Road Suite 1 Washington, PA 15301 (724) 705-7098
Hanover Township	PAC630131	Gulisek Construction, LLC 1145 State Route 31 Mount Pleasant, PA 15666 Andrew I. Miller 1215 Steubenville Pike Burgettstown, PA 15021	UNT to Raccoon Creek (WWF)	Washington County Conservation District 50 Old Hickory Ridge Road Suite 1 Washington, PA 15301 (724) 705-7098

Northwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

norinwesi negion. v	valerways & wellan	us I logi uni, 250 Chesinui Bireei,	Medullile, IA 10555-5-	£01.
Facility Location: Municipality & County	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water / Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Strattanville Borough Clarion County	PAC160022	PA American Water Co 425 Waterworks Road Clarion, PA 16214	Tributary to Brush Run	Clarion County Conservation District 217 S 7th Avenue Room 106A Clarion, PA 16214 814-297-7813
Millcreek Township Erie County	PAC250048	Mr. Timothy Birkmire 7400 Birkmire Drive Fairview, PA 16415	UNT Walnut Creek CWF-MF	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6403
Waterford Township Erie County	PAC250044	Troyer Growers, Inc 817 State Route 97 S Waterford, PA 16441	UNT LeBoeuf Creek TSF	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6403
Fairview Township Erie County	PAC250066 Phase VI	Mr. Joel Muzyka P.O. Box 8857 Erie, PA 16505	UNT Trout Run CWF-MF	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6403
General Permit Type	e—PAG-3			
Facility Location & Municipality	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Receiving Water/Use	Contact Office & Phone No.
Adamstown Borough Lancaster County	PAG033601	Bollman Hat Co. 110 East Main Street Adamstown, PA 19501	Little Muddy Creek (TSF, MF) in Watershed(s) 7-J	DEP—SCRO— Clean Water Program 909 Elmerton Avenue Harrisburg, PA 17110 717-705-4707
Muhlenberg Township Berks County	PAG033603	Giorgio Foods Inc. 3721 Pottsville Pike Reading, PA 19605	Laurel Run (WWF, MF) in Watershed(s) 3-C	DEP—SCRO— Clean Water Program 909 Elmerton Avenue Harrisburg, PA 17110 717-705-4707
Lancaster City Lancaster County	PAG033599	Encore International 715 Fountain Avenue Lancaster, PA 17601-4547	Conestoga River (WWF, MF) in Watershed(s) 7-J	DEP—SCRO— Clean Water Program 909 Elmerton Avenue Harrisburg, PA 17110 717-705-4707

Facility Location & Municipality Fairview Township York County	Permit No. PAR703516 A-1	Applicant Name & Address CRS SPV Inc. 569 Industrial Drive Lewisberry, PA 17339-9532	Receiving Water / Use Fishing Creek (TSF, MF) in Watershed(s)	Contact Office & Phone No. DEP—SCRO— Clean Water Program 909 Elmerton Avenue
		Lewisderry, FA 17559-9552	7-E	Harrisburg, PA 17110 717-705-4707
East Berlin Borough Adams County	PAR123535 A-1	Zeigler Brothers Inc. 400 Gardners Station Road Gardners, PA 17324	Conewago Creek (WWF, MF) in Watershed(s) 7-F	DEP—SCRO— Clean Water Program 909 Elmerton Avenue Harrisburg, PA 17110 717-705-4707
Mifflinburg Borough Union County	PAG034861	Erdley Trucking 224 Red Ridge Road Mifflinburg, PA 17844-7318	Unnamed Tributary to Sweitzers Run (CWF, MF)— 6-A	DEP Northcentral Regional Office Clean Water Program 208 W Third Street Suite 101 Williamsport, PA 17701-6448 570.327.3636

General Permit Type—PAG-08

Northeast Region: Clean Water Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701. Telephone: 570-826-2511.

Facility Location:			
Municipality & County	Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	Site Name & Location
Hanover Township Luzerne County	PAG 08 2221	Wyoming Valley Sanitary Authority P.O. Box 33A Wilkes-Barre, PA 18703-1333	Wyoming Valley Sanitary Authority 1000 Wilkes-Barre St. Hanover Township, PA
Franklin Township Carbon County	PAG 08 0002 PAG 08 2203 PAG 08 3504 PAG 08 3504 PAG 08 3522 PAG 08 3522 PAG 08 2224 PAG 08 3547 PAG 08 0016 PAG 08 3518 PAG 08 3515 PAG 08 0007 PAG 08 3515 PAG 08 3515 PAG 08 3565/ 07-3508 PAG 08 3565/ 07-3508 PAG 08 3568 PAG 08 3540 PAG 08 3540 PAG 08 3596 PAG 08 3596 PAG 08 3597 PAG 08 3556 PAG 08 3555 PAG 08 3555 PAG 08 3555 PAG 08 3555 PAG 08 3551 PAG 08 3560 PAG 08 3600 PAG 08 3506 PAG 08 3600 PAG 08 3600	Synagro P.O. Box B 1605 Dooley Road Whiteford, MD 21160	Dwight Eisenhauer Farm 4200 Interchange Road

Applicant Name & Address

Facility Location: Municipality & County

General Permit Type—PAG-13

Facility LocationMunicipality &CountyPointStowe TownshipPointAllegheny CountyPoint

Permit No. PAG136366 Applicant Name & Address Stowe Township 555 Broadway Avenue McKees Rocks, PA 15136

## Receiving Water/Use

Unnamed Tributary of Ohio River (WWF) 20-G Contact Office & Phone No.

DEP Southwest Regional Office Clean Water Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745 412.442.4000

## PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PERMITS

The Department has taken the following actions on applications received under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17) for the construction, substantial modification or operation of a public water system.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the Pennsylvania Bulletin unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30 days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this document to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

#### SAFE DRINKING WATER

Actions taken under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17).

Northeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Permit No. 2409011, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>PA American Water</b> 800 W. Hershey Park Drive Hershey, PA 17033
[Township or Borough]	Plains Township <b>Luzerne County</b>
Responsible Official	Mr. David Kaufman Vice President-Engineering
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply
Consulting Engineer	Mr. Ralph R. Wawrzyniakowski, PE PA American Water Company 2699 Stafford Avenue Scranton, PA 18505
Permit Issued	05/30/2019

Permit No. 3540070-E1, Operations Permit, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc.
	1 Aqua Way
	White Haven, PA 18661
[Borough or Township]	Hazle Township
County	Luzerne
Type of Facility	PWS

3253

Consulting Engineer Permit to Operate	Mr. Peter Lusardi, PE GHD Inc. 1240 N Mountain Rd Harrisburg, PA 17110 6/03/2019	Type of Facility	Construction of a new Dollar General Store with a water system consisting of a well, softening, greensand filtration (iron and manganese removal)
Issued	0,00,2010		and sodium hypochlorite chlorination.
<b>Permit No. 1319502</b> lic Water Supply.	MA, Construction Permit, Pub-	Consulting Engineer	Joseph M. McDowell, P.E. Martin & Martin, Inc.
Applicant	Nesquehoning Borough Authority 114 W. Catawissa Street	Descrites Constant	37 S Main Street Suite A Chambersburg, PA 17201
Municipality	Nesquehoning, PA 18240 Nesquehoning Borough	Permit to Construct Issued	6/11/2019
County	Carbon	Permit No. 2919501	, Public Water Supply.
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply	Applicant	Keller's Country Store
Consulting Engineer	Ronald M. Tirpak, P.E.	Municipality	Dublin Township
Constituing Engineer	Carbon Engineering, Inc.	County	Fulton
	350 N. Pine Street	Responsible Official	Andrew Keller, Owner
Permit to Construct Issued	Summit Hill, PA 18250 May 22, 2019	Responsible Official	888 Waterfall Road Hustontown, PA 17229
Description of Action	New Columbus Water Tank— sand blast cleaning and painting project.	Type of Facility	Installation of softening, manganese greensand filters, sodium hypochlorite feed and contact tanks.
	r Safe Drinking Water Program n Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.	Consulting Engineer	Angelo A. Tesoriero, P.E. GeoSource Engineers 7 Winter Drive
Permit No. 0618513	, Public Water Supply.		Dillsburg, PA 17019-9550
Applicant	Giorgi Mushroom Company	Permit to Construct	6/6/2019
Municipality	Maidencreek Township	Issued	
County	Berks		<b>B MA, Minor Amendment</b> , Public
Responsible Official	Joe Caldwell, President P.O. Box 96	Water Supply. Applicant	Pennsylvania American
<b>(D</b> )	Temple, PA 19560	Marchineliter	Water Company
Type of Facility	Giorgi Mushroom Company— Farm 1 has proposed to install a	Municipality	Hampden Township Cumberland
	5-micron filter, water softener, 1-micron filter, and ATS-186K-20 UV light for 4-log treatment of viruses, on the two potable water	County Responsible Official	David Kauffman, Vice President-Engineering 852 Wesley Drive
	lines supplied by the New Pole Barn Well (Treatment Plant Nos. 301 and 308).	Type of Facility	Mechanicsburg, PA 17055 Installation of an active mixer in the Hampden Township Tank.
Consulting Engineer	James P. Cinelli, P.E. Liberty Environmental Inc 505 Penn Street Reading, PA 19601	Consulting Engineer	Scott M. Thomas, P.E. Pennsylvania American Water 852 Wesley Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Permit to Construct Issued	6/6/2019	Permit to Construct Issued	6/3/2019
Permit No. 0718505	, Public Water Supply.	Comprehensive O	peration Permit No. 7380443
Applicant	PTV 1023 LLC	issued to: Corporation	n of Presiding Bishopric (PWS
Municipality	Allegheny Township		rth Cornwall Township, <b>Lebanon</b> for the operation of facilities at
County	Blair		ch of Jesus Christ of Latter-day
Responsible Official	Austin Weinman, Vice President	Saints approved under	Construction Permit No. 3815502.
•	of Construction 400 Penn Center Blvd Suite 1000 Pittsburgh, PA 15235	issued to: Cherry Ci 7360983), Paradise T	peration Permit No. 3618519 rest Farm, LLC (PWS ID No. ownship, Lancaster County on ation of facilities approved under 0. 3618519.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

**Comprehensive Operation Permit No. 4310012** issued to: **Borough of Huntingdon (PWS ID No. 4310012)**, Huntingdon Borough, **Huntingdon County** on 6/3/2019 for the operation of facilities submitted under Application No. 3119504 MA.

**Comprehensive Operation Permit No. 7280815** issued to: **The Pennsylvania State University (PWS ID No. 7280815)**, Quincy Township, **Franklin County** on 5/29/2019 for the operation of facilities at PSU—Mont Alto Campus submitted under Application No. 7280815.

Transferred Comprehensive Operation Permit No. 7360014 issued to: T & A CMHP, LLC (PWS ID No. 7360014), Conestoga Township, Lancaster County on 6/3/2019. Action is for a Change in Ownership for Conestoga Mobile Home Park, Lancaster County for the operation of facilities previously issued to Conestoga Mobile Home Park, Inc..

Northcentral Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

Beavertown Municipal Authority (Public Water Supply), Snyder County: On May 3, 2019, the Safe Drinking Water Program approved the Source Water Protection (SWP) plan for the Beavertown Municipal Authority community water system. The personnel involved with the development of this SWP are to be commended for taking these proactive steps to protect these water sources for their community. Development of the SWP plan was funded by the Department of Environmental Protection (Mark R. Stephens, P.G., (570) 327-3422).

**Permit No. WA 47-1006A—Operation**—Public Water Supply.

SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. Mahoning Township		water-storage tanks, an interconnect with Danville Municipal Authority, and the distribution system.
Montour County	<b>Permit No. 08195</b> ter Supply.	01MA—Construction—Public W
Mr. William Kelvington SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Blvd. Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17111	Applicant Township/Borough County Besponsible Official	Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. Athens Township Bradford County Mr. Patrick R. Burke, Director of
Public Water Supply— Operation Mr. Timothy Tritch, P.E. Larson Design Group 1000 Commerce Park Drive Williamsport PA 17701	-	Operations Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 204 East Sunbury Street Shamokin, PA 17872
May 29, 2019	Type of Facility	Public Water Supply— Construction
Acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Succession to Water Rights, accepted April 18, 2019, notifying the Department of the	Consulting Engineer	Mr. Stephen J. Draus Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 204 East Sunbury Street Shamokin, PA 17872
surface water source (finished	Permit Issued	June 4, 2019
water supplied by Danville Municipal Authority) used by Mahoning Township. Based upon the Notice, we understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc. succeeded and replaced Mahoning Township as the public water supplier in the service territory of Mahoning Township. We further understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. will use the same source of water supply and facilities and service the same service area and customers.	Description of Action	Authorizes Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. to add an amperometric-free chlorine residual analyzer inside the Well 19 well station to continuously monitor the free chlorine at the influent end of th chlorine contact pipe with modification of the existing SCADA system to use the chlorine signal from the new analyzer to shut down the well pumps if the residuals drift beyond the high and low set points.
	Inc. Mahoning Township Montour County Mr. William Kelvington SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Blvd. Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17111 Public Water Supply— Operation Mr. Timothy Tritch, P.E. Larson Design Group 1000 Commerce Park Drive Williamsport, PA 17701 May 29, 2019 Acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Succession to Water Rights, accepted April 18, 2019, notifying the Department of the change in ownership of the surface water source (finished water supplied by Danville Municipal Authority) used by Mahoning Township. Based upon the Notice, we understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc. succeeded and replaced Mahoning Township as the public water supplier in the service territory of Mahoning Township. We further understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. will use the same source of water supply and facilities and service the same	Inc. Mahoning Township Montour County Mr. William Kelvington SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Blvd. Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17111 Public Water Supply— Operation Mr. Timothy Tritch, P.E. Larson Design Group 1000 Commerce Park Drive Williamsport, PA 17701 May 29, 2019 Acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Succession to Water Rights, accepted April 18, 2019, notifying the Department of the change in ownership of the surface water source (finished water supplied by Danville Municipal Authority) used by Mahoning Township. Based upon the Notice, we understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc. succeeded and replaced Mahoning Township as the public water supplier in the service territory of Mahoning Township. We further understand that SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. will use the same source of water supply and facilities and service the same

Permit No.(s): A-1468-T2/6-66-W-008-T2/4781501-T2/ MA(9/25/89)-T2/MA(7/7/99)T2/MA(11/17/99)-T2/4707501-T2/MA(4/7/10)A-T2/MA(4/7/10)B-T2/4719501MA-T1— Operation—Public Water Supply

T2/MA(4/7/10)A-T2/M Operation—Public Wa	<b>A(4/7/10)B-T2/4719501MA-T1</b> — ter Supply.
Applicant	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc.
Township/Borough	Mahoning Township
County	Montour County
Responsible Official	Mr. William Kelvington SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Blvd. Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17111
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply— Operation
Consulting Engineer	Mr. Timothy Tritch, P.E. Larson Design Group 1000 Commerce Park Drive Williamsport, PA 17701
Permit Issued	May 29, 2019
Description of Action	Acknowledges the public water supply permits for operation of the consecutive public water system in Mahoning Township, which are hereby transferred from Mahoning Township to SUEZ Water Pennsylvania Inc. The Mahoning Township water system consists of four booster pump stations, two booster chlorination chemical feed systems, three finished water-storage tanks, an interconnect with Danville Municipal Authority, and the distribution system.
Permit No. 081950 ter Supply.	1MA—Construction—Public Wa-
Applicant	Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc.
Township/Borough	Athens Township
County	Bradford County
Responsible Official	Mr. Patrick R. Burke, Director of Operations Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 204 East Sunbury Street Shamokin, PA 17872
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply— Construction
Consulting Engineer	Mr. Stephen J. Draus Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 204 East Sunbury Street Shamokin, PA 17872
Permit Issued	June 4, 2019
Description of Action	Authorizes Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. to add an amperometric-free chlorine residual analyzer inside the Well 19 well station to continuously monitor the free chlorine at the influent end of the chlorine contact pipe with

Southwest Region: Water Supply Management Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

#### Permit No. 0389504-A1, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>Cowanshannock Township</b> <b>Municipal Authority</b> P.O. Box 127 NuMine, PA 16244
[Borough or Township]	Cowanshannock Township
County	Armstrong
Type of Facility	Sagamore WTP
Consulting Engineer	Bankson Engineers, Inc. Suite 200 267 Blue Run Road Cheswick, PA 15024
Permit to Construct Issued	June 7, 2019

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Greater Johnstown Water Authority**, 640 Franklin Street, P.O. Box 1407, Johnstown, PA 15901, (**PWSID # 4110034**) City of Johnstown, **Cambria County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 1119503MA.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Greater Johnstown Water Authority**, 640 Franklin Street, P.O. Box 1407, Johnstown, PA 15901, (**PWSID # 4110034**) City of Johnstown, **Cambria County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 1117511MA.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County**, 124 Park & Pool Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, (**PWSID # 5650032**) Bell Township, **Westmoreland County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 6519508MA.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County**, 124 Park & Pool Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, (**PWSID # 5650032**) City of Jeanette, **Westmoreland County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 6517521.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County**, 124 Park & Pool Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, (**PWSID # 5260036**) Dunbar Township, **Fayette County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 2616507.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County**, 124 Park & Pool Road, New Stanton, PA 15672, (**PWSID # 5650032**) Bell Township, **Westmoreland County** on June 10, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 6513503MA-1.

**Operations Permit** issued to: **Borough of Garrett**, 307 Municipal Road, P.O. Box 218, Garrett, PA 15542, (**PWSID # 4560035**) Summit Township, **Somerset County** on May 30, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 5617510A-1. **Operations Permit** issued to: Latrobe Municipal Authority, 104 Guerrier Street, Latrobe, PA 15650, (PWSID # 5650060) Derry Township, Westmoreland County on June 7, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 6517511.

**Operations Permit** issued to: Latrobe Municipal Authority, 104 Guerrier Street, Latrobe, PA 15650, (PWSID # 5650060) Derry Township, Westmoreland County on June 7, 2019 for the operation of facilities approved under Construction Permit # 6517509.

**Permit No. 5619501MA, Minor Amendment**. Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Municipal Authority of the Borough of Berlin 700 North Street Berlin, PA 15530
[Borough or Township]	Borough of Berlin
County	Somerset
Type of Facility	Whitehorse Road waterline project
Consulting Engineer	Cenkner Engineering, Inc. 3682 SR 31 Donegal, PA 15628
Permit to Construct Issued	June 10, 2019

# **Permit No. 0419503MA, Minor Amendment**. Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>Beaver Falls Municipal</b> <b>Authority</b> 1425 Eighth Avenue Beaver Falls, PA 15010
[Borough or Township]	West Mayfield Borough
County	Beaver
Type of Facility	West Mayfield 37th Street tank painting
Consulting Engineer	Entech Engineering 400 Rouser Road Building # 2 Suite 200 Coraopolis, PA 15108
Permit to Construct Issued	June 10, 2019
<b>Permit No. 0219501</b> Water Supply.	MA, Minor Amendment. Public
Applicant	Wilkinsburg Penn Joint Water Authority 2200 Robinson Boulevard Pittsburgh, PA 15221
[Borough or Township]	Penn Hills Township
County	Allegheny
Type of Facility	Filter media replacement in Filters # 2, # 4, # 5, # 6, # 8, # 9, # 10 and # 12.
Consulting Engineer	Mackin Engineering Company RIDC Park West 117 Industry Drive

Pittsburgh, PA 15275

June 7, 2019

Permit to Construct Issued **Permit No. 5617511GWR, Minor Amendment**. Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>Borough of Garrett</b> 307 Municipal Road P.O. Box 218 Garrett, PA 15542
[Borough or Township]	Garrett Borough
County	Somerset
Type of Facility	Groundwater Rule Demonstration
Consulting Engineer	The EADS Group, Inc. 450 Aberdeen Drive Somerset, PA 15501
Permit to Operate Issued	June 5, 2019

**Permit No. 0215524MA, Minor Amendment**. Public Water Supply.

Applicant	<b>Pennsylvania American</b> <b>Water Company</b> 852 Wesley Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
[Borough or Township]	Claysville Borough
County	Washington
Type of Facility	Claysville tank
Consulting Engineer	Pennsylvania American Water Company 852 Wesley Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Permit to Operate Issued	June 7, 2019

Northwest Region: Safe Drinking Water Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**Operation Permit** issued to **Camping Association** of the Presbyteries of Northwestern Pennsylvania, PWSID No. 6250832, Springfield Township, Erie County. Permit Number 2517502 issued June 7, 2019 for the operation of the water treatment system at Camp Lamber. This permit is issued in response to an operation inspection conducted by the Department of Environmental Protection personnel on May 17, 2019.

Permit No. 1699501-MA3, Public Water Supply.

Applicant	St Petersburg Borough Municipal Water Authority		
Township or Borough	St Petersburg Borough		
County	Clarion		
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply		
<b>Consulting Engineer</b>	Marty English, P.E.		
Permit to Construct Issued	June 7, 2019		
Permit No. 2719501, Public Water Supply.			
Applicant	Forest Area School District		
Township or Borough	Hickroy Township		
County	Warren		
Type of Facility	Public Water Supply		
<b>Consulting Engineer</b>	Marty English, P.E.		
Permit to Construct Issued	June 7, 2019		

## LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 2

#### The following plans and reports were submitted under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101— 6026.907).

Provisions of Sections 301-308 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) (35 P.S. §§ 6026.301-6026.308) require the Department to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin a notice of submission of plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the act's remediation standards. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis for selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling analytical results which demonstrate that remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Submission of plans and reports, other than the final report, will also be published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin. These include the remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan for a site-specific standard remediation. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements.

For further information concerning plans or reports, contact the environmental cleanup program manager in the Department regional office under which the notice of receipt of plans or reports appears. If information concerning plans or reports is required in an alternative form, contact the community relations coordinator at the appropriate regional office. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

**2283 Huntingdon Pike**, 2283 Huntingdon Pike, Lower Moreland Township, **Montgomery County**. Richard S. Werner, Environmental Consulting, Inc, 202 Renaissance Boulevard, Suite 110, King of Prussia, PA 19406 on behalf of Dorothy Liebold, Alfred P. Liebold Associates Family LP, 495 Lawrence Road, Huntingdon Valley, PA 19006 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Cleanup Plan/ Risk Assessment Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**Davisville Shopping Center**, 800 East Street Road, Warminster Township, **Bucks County**. Jeffrey A. Smith, PG, Langan Engineering & Environmental Service, Inc., 1818 Market Street, Suite 330, Philadelphia, PA 19103 on behalf of Matthew J. Kelly, IL Davisville Associates, LP, 307 Fellowship Road, Suite 300, Mount Laurel, NJ 08054 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Cleanup Plan/ Final Report concerning remediation of site groundwater contaminated with TCE and PCE. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

Wawa, 1401 Forty Foot Road, Towamencin Township, Montgomery County. Paul Martino, Pennoni Associates, Inc, 1900 Market Street, Suite 300, Philadelphia, PA 19103 on behalf of Thomas Verrichia, Towamencin Sumneytown Pike, LLC, 329 South Mains Street, Suite B, Doylestown, PA 18901 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site groundwater contaminated with gasoline additive MTBE. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Background Standard.

**2740 Amber Street**, 2740 Amber Street, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Christopher Zeliznak, PG, EnviroSure, Inc., 319 South High Street, First Floor, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Jordan Brody, Amber Street Holdings, LLC, 107-109 South 13th Street, 3B, Philadelphia, PA 19107 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with VOCs, SVOCs and metals. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**Dial North Property B**, 1600 Radcliffe Street, Bristol Borough, **Bucks County**. Peter R. Lamont, PG, Penn E&R, Inc., 2755 Bergey Road, Hatfield, PA 19440 on behalf of Kevin O'Halloran, Island View Crossing II, LP, c/o Box 1281, Largo, FL 33779 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with inorganics and chlorinated solvents. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**Custom Particle Reduction Inc.**, 5189 Stump Road, Plumstead Township, **Bucks County**. Jaclyn Baron, UHL & Associates, Inc, 278 North Union Street, P.O. Box 375, Lambertville, NJ 08530 on behalf of Dennis K. Rice, Custom Particle Reduction, Inc, 5189 Stump Road, P.O. Box 479, Plumsteadville, PA 18949 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site groundwater contaminated with other organics. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**Central Penn Capital Management**, 1247 Ward Avenue, West Goshen Township, **Chester County**. Paul Nachlas, P.G., Independence Environmental Consulting, LLC, 1750 Kaylor Road, Hummelstown, PA 17036 on behalf of Gregory K. Millen, Central Penn Capital Management, 1817 Olde Homestead Lane, Lancaster, PA 17610 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/ Cleanup Plan/Final Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with aviation fuel. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**Phoenix French Creek Manor**, North Main Street, Phoenixville Borough, **Chester County**. Stephen Huxtra, PG, Brickhouse Environmental, 515 South Franklin Street, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Eric Moore, Phoenix French Creek Manor, LLC, 2 Ponds Edge Drive, Chadds Ford, PA 19317 submitted a Cleanup Plan concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with VOCs and SVOCs. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard. **TF Property 3rd Avenue LLC**, 35 West Third Avenue, Collegeville Borough, **Montgomery County**. Terry Franks, TF Properties 3rd Avenue, LLC, P.O. Box 26483, 168 East First Avenue, Collegeville, PA 19426 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with waste oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

Gretz Beverage Company, 700 East Main Street, Borough of Norristown, Montgomery County. Carl Rinkevich II, PG, Reliance Environmental Inc, 235 North Duke Street, Lancaster, PA 17602 on behalf of Aaron Muderick, TIPCO, LLC, 700 Main Street, Norristown, PA 17602 submitted a Risk Assessment Report/Final Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with MTBE. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

**2035 East Lehigh Avenue**, 2035 East Lehigh Avenue, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Shad Manning, REPSG, Inc., 6901 Kingsessing Avenue, Suite 201, Philadelphia, PA 19142 on behalf of Larry McKnight, L&M Fishtown Residences, LLC, 3020 Richmond Street, Philadelphia, PA 19134 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with metals and PAHs. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

**Black Residence**, 70 Chapel Road, Solebury Township, **Bucks County**. Carol Owings, Dower Environmental Sciences, Inc, 269 East Blackwell Street, Unit-4A, Dover, NJ 07801 on behalf of Caryn Black, 1616 Walnut Street # 2405, Philadelphia, PA 19103 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with heating oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

Armstrong Engineering Associates Inc., 1845 West Strasburg Road, West Bradford Township, Chester County. Thomas A. Petrecz, Penn E&R, Inc, 2755 Bergey Road, Hatfield, PA 19440 on behalf of Eric A. Nicholas, Armstrong Engineering Associates, Inc, 1845 West Strasburg Road, Coatesville, PA 19320 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with VOCs and metals. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

**Tannery Place**, 498 South Main Street, Montrose Borough, **Susquehanna County**. Resource Environmental Management, 50 Maple Street, Montrose, PA 18801, on behalf of ESE Equity LLC, 466 South Main Street, Montrose, PA 18801, submitted a final report. Soil and groundwater contamination were caused by releases from an underground storage tank that stored gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet residential Statewide Health Standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup and Brownfields Program Manager, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. Phone 717.705.4705.

Brian & Janette Parsons Residence, 14369 Dickeys Road, Mercersburg, PA 17236, Peters Township, Franklin County. PG Environmental Services, 1075 D Sherman Ave, Hagerstown, MD 21740, on behalf of Brian and Janette Parsons, 14369 Dickeys Road, Mercersburg, PA 17236, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soils contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Residential Statewide Health Standard.

**Rail Trail Partners, LLC Marietta Site**, 421 West Market Street, Marietta, PA 17547, Marietta Borough, **Lancaster County**. Power Engineers, Inc., 1410 East Market Street, York, PA 17403, on behalf of Rail Trail Partners LLC, 421 West Market Street, Marietta, PA 17547, submitted a Remedial Investigation Report, Cleanup Plan and Final Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with metals, No. 2 fuel oil and PCBs. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

Carlisle Car & Truck/Highlands Tire & Service Centers, 1257 Holly Pike, Carlisle, PA 17013-4436, South Middleton Township, Cumberland County. Converse Consultants, 2738 West College Avenue, State College, PA 16801, on behalf of Highlands Tire & Service Centers, 1257 Holly Pike, Carlisle, PA 17013-4436, submitted a Remedial Investigation Report and Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Site-Specific Standard.

## LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 3

#### The Department has taken action on the following plans and reports under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101—6026.907).

Section 250.8 of 25 Pa. Code and administration of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) require the Department to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin a notice of its final actions on plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the remediation standards of the act. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Plans and reports required by the act for compliance with selection of remediation to a sitespecific standard, in addition to a final report, include a remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements. A work plan for conducting a baseline remedial investigation is required by the act for compliance with selection of a special industrial area remediation. The baseline remedial investigation, based on the work plan, is compiled into the baseline environmental report to establish a reference point to show existing contamination, describe proposed remediation to be done and include a description of existing or potential

public benefits of the use or reuse of the property. The Department may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides the Department's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning the plans and reports, contact the environmental cleanup program manager in the Department regional office under which the notice of the plan or report appears. If information concerning a final report is required in an alternative form, contact the community relations coordinator at the appropriate regional office. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

**1900 West Allegheny Avenue**, 1900 West Allegheny Avenue, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Angelo Fatigo, Pennoni Associates, Inc., 190 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103 on behalf of R. Max Kent, New Courtland Apartments at Allegheny, 6950 Germantown Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19119 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with lead, PAHs and metals. The Final Report did not demonstrate attainment of the site-specific standard and was disapproved by the Department on May 9, 2019.

Withey Residence, 871 Dukes Drive, Lower Makefield Township, Bucks County. Richard D. Trimpi, Trimpi Associates, Inc., 1635 Old Plains Road, Pennsburg, PA 18973 on behalf of Andre Gluch, State Farm Insurance, P.O. Box 106169, Atlanta, GA 30348-6169 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by the Department on May 2, 2019.

**Clover Store No. 4**, Intersection of Old Lincoln Highway (Route 1) and West Trenton Avenue, Falls Township, **Bucks County**. John C. Lydzinski, RT Environmental Services, Inc, 215 West Church Road, King of Prussia, PA 19406 on behalf of Stuart W. Cox, Kimco Morrisville, 648 Trust c/o Kimco Realty Corporation, 1954 Greenspring Drive, Suite 330, Timonium, MD 21903 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with leaded and unleaded gasoline. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by the Department on May 2, 2019.

**30 Holland Avenue**, 30 Holland Avenue, Lower Merion Township, **Montgomery County**. Michael S. Welsh, Welsh Environmental, Inc, 131 Clearview Drive, Downingtown, PA 19335 on behalf of Maryann Lanzar, 306 West Lancaster Avenue Associates, L.P., 306 West Lancaster Avenue, Ardmore, PA 19003 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Final Report concerning the remediation of site groundwater contaminated with benzene, vinyl chloride and cis-1,2-dichloroethylene. The Report was approved by the Department on May 15, 2019.

Foster Residence, 1121 West 8th Street, City of Chester, Delaware County. Jeremy W. Bolyn Environmental Maintenance, 1420 East Mermaid Lane, Glenside, PA 19038 on behalf of Louella Foster, 48 Hully Brook Drive, Sewell, NJ 08080 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by the Department on May 3, 2019.

Wawa Store No. 8027, 2008 Pennell Road, Delaware County. Geoff Kristof, PG, Aquaterra Technologies, Inc, 122 South Church Street, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Joseph W. Standen, Jr, PG, Wawa, Inc., 260 West Baltimore Pike, Wawa, PA 19063 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with heating oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by the Department on April 23, 2019.

Berwyn Shopping Center, 500 Lancaster Avenue, Easttown Township, Chester County. Aaron Epstein, PG, Partners Engineering and Science, Inc, 100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 200, Malvern, PA 19355 on behalf of Theresa Susco, Berwyn Center, LP, 725 Conshohocken State Road, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 submitted a Risk Assessment Report/Cleanup Plan/Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with chlorinated solvents. The Report was disapproved by the Department on May 8, 2019.

**2001 Beach Street**, 2001 Beach Street, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Jeffery K. Walsh, Penn E&R, 2755 Bergy Road, Hatfield, PA 19440 on behalf of Devin Tuohey, The Concordia Group, 161 Leverington Avenue, Suite 1010, Philadelphia, PA 19127 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Risk Assessment Report/ Cleanup Plan concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with PAHs, PCBs and inorganics. The Report was approved by the Department on May 14, 2019.

Wawa Store No. 8067, 111 Grosser Road, Douglass Township, Montgomery County. Geoff Kristof Aquaterra Technologies, Inc, 122 South Church Street, West Chester, PA 19382 on behalf of Joseph Standen, Jr, Wawa Inc., 260 West Baltimore Pike, Media, PA 19063 submitted a 90-day Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by the Department on May 9, 2019.

**2035 East Lehigh Avenue**, 2035 East Lehigh Avenue, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Shad Manning, REPSG, 6901 Kingsessing Avenue, Suite 2101, Philadelphia, PA 19142 on behalf of Larry McKnight, L&M Fishtown Residence, LLC, 3020 Richmond Street, Philadelphia, PA 19134 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with metals and PAHs. The Final Report did not demonstrate attainment of the Statewide Health Standard and was disapproved by the Department on May 13, 2019.

Wes Jackson Automotive Center, LLC, 1851 Ridge Pike, Upper Providence Township, Montgomery County. Gil Marshall, PG, Marshall Geoscience, Inc, 170 1st Avenue, Collegeville, PA 19426 on behalf of Lynn Jackson, Wes Jackson Automotive Center, LLC, 1851 Ridge Pike, Royersford, PA 19468 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with used motor oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the standard and was approved by the Department on May 9, 2019. Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

117 Main Street, 117 Main Street, Portland Borough, Northampton County. Envirosearch Environmental Consultants, P.O. Box 940, Spring House, PA 19477, on behalf of Federal National Mortgage Association, 14221 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, TX 75265, submitted a final report. Soil was contaminated by a release of heating oil from an aboveground storage tank. The report documented remediation of the site to meet residential Statewide Health Standards and was approved by DEP on June 5, 2019.

Schuylkill Mall-Former Sears Auto Center, 830 Schuylkill Mall Road, New Castle Township, Schuylkill County. Mountain Research, 825 25th Street, Altoona, PA 16601, on behalf of NorthPoint Development LLC, 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500, Riverside, MO 64150, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, cumene, MTBE, naphthalene, 1,2,4-trimethyl benzene, 1,3,5-trimethyl benzene, 1,2-dibromoethane, 1,2dichloroethane, trichloroethene, tetrachloroethene, and vinyl chloride from historic automotive parts cleaning. The report documented remediation of the site to meet nonresidential Statewide Health Standards and was approved by DEP on June 5, 2019.

**Dorney Park and Wildwater Kingdom**, 3830 Dorney Park Road, South Whitehall Township, **Lehigh County**. Barry Isett & Associates, 85 South Route 100, Allentown, PA 18106, on behalf of Dorney Park and Wildwater Kingdom, 3830 Dorney Park Road, Allentown, PA 18104, submitted a Final Report and Final Report addendum concerning remediation of a release of heating oil to soil at a greenhouse. The reports documented remediation of the site to meet nonresidential Statewide Health Standards and were approved by DEP on June 6, 2019.

**Schroder Property**, 372 Lake Minsi Drive, Upper Mount Bethel Township, **Northampton County**. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Kevin Schroder, 372 Lake Minsi Drive, Bangor, PA 18013, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated by a release from an aboveground storage tank that contained heating oil. The report documented remediation of the site to meet residential Statewide Health Standards and was approved by DEP on June 11, 2019.

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

**EQT—Strope Well Pad**, 1135 Washington Road, Washington Township, **Greene County**. SE Technologies, LLC, 98 Vanadium Road, Building D, 2nd Floor, Bridgeville, PA 15017 on behalf of EQT Corporation, 625 Liberty Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15222 has submitted a Final Report. An estimated 1 barrel of produced water (brine) was released on the well pad from natural gas drilling operations on December 20, 2018. Primary constituents of concern are chlorides and metals in soil. The proposed future use of the property will be nonresidential for continued use as a natural gas well pad. The proposed cleanup standard for the site is nonresidential Statewide Health Standard for metals. The report was approved by the Department on June 6, 2019.

### HAZARDOUS WASTE TRANSPORTER LICENSE

#### Actions on applications for Hazardous Waste Transporter License received under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101–6018.1003) and regulations to transport hazardous waste.

Central Office: Bureau of Land Recycling and Waste Management, Division of Hazardous Waste Management, P.O. Box 69170, Harrisburg, PA 17106-9170.

#### Renewal Applications Received

Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc., P.O. Box 9149, Norwell, MA 02061. License No. PA-AH 0172. Effective Jun 06, 2019.

Select Transportation, Inc., 5055 Nike Drive, Hilliard, OH 43026. License No. PA-AH 0469. Effective May 29, 2019.

**Predator Trucking Company**, P.O. Box 315, McDonald, OH 44437. License No. PA-AH 0787. Effective May 09, 2019.

**Sprint Waste Services, LP**, P.O. Box 940820, Houston, TX 77094. License No. PA-AH 0860. Effective Jun 05, 2019.

#### Transporter Licenses Reissued

Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc., P.O. Box 9149, Norwell, MA 02061. License No. PA-AH 0172. Effective Jun 06, 2019.

Select Transportation, Inc., 5055 Nike Drive, Hilliard, OH 43026. License No. PA-AH 0469. Effective May 29, 2019.

**Predator Trucking Company**, P.O. Box 315, McDonald, OH 44437. License No. PA-AH 0787. Effective May 09, 2019.

Sprint Waste Services, LP, P.O. Box 940820, Houston, TX 77094. License No. PA-AH 0860. Effective Jun 05, 2019.

#### Hazardous Waste Transporter License Expired

Ace Environmental Services, LLC, 3512 Fairfield Road, Baltimore, MD 21226. License No. PA-AH 0823. Effective May 31, 2019.

Laidlaw Carriers Bulk GP Inc., 1179 Ridgeway Rd, Woodstock, ON N4S 0A9. License No. PA-AH 0703. Effective May 01, 2019.

Laidlaw Carriers Tank Gp Inc., 1179 Ridgeway Rd, Woodstock, ON N4S 0A9. License No. PA-AH 0704. Effective Apr 30, 2019.

Elliott Truck Line, Inc., P.O. Box 1, Vinita, OK 74301. License No. PA-AH 0355. Effective May 31, 2019.

#### DETERMINATION OF APPLICABILITY FOR RESIDUAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Determination of Applicability for General Permit Issued Under the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Residual Waste Regulations for a General Permit to Operate Residual Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Residual Waste Other Than Coal Ash.

Southeast Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401. General Permit No. WMGR081SE007. Owl Electronic Recycling, 668 Gravel Pike, East Greenville, PA 18041. This permit application is for the determination of applicability (DOA) under General Permit No. WMGR081SE007 to process and store electronic scrap prior to reuse or recycling at the Owl Electronic Recycling Facility, located at 668 Gravel Pike in Upper Hanover Township, Montgomery County. The application for determination of applicability was issued by the Southeast Regional Office on May 8, 2019.

Persons interested in reviewing the general permit may contact the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") Waste Management Program Manager, Southeast Regional Office, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915, or by telephone at 484.250.5960. TDD users may contact the DEP through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984.

#### OPERATE WASTE PROCESSING OR DISPOSAL AREA OR SITE

Permits Issued Under the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003), the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904) and Regulations to Operate Solid Waste Processing or Disposal Area or Site.

Northeast Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

**Permit Application No. 301256. MC Project Company LLC**, 600 Hamilton Street, Allentown, PA 18101. A permit reissuance to transfer the permit for the Martins Creek SES Basin 1 facility located in Lower Mount Bethel Township, **Northampton County** from Martins Creek, LLC to MC Project Company, LLC. The application was approved by the Regional Office on June 7, 2019.

**Permit Application No. 301257. MC OpCo LLC**, 600 Hamilton Street, Allentown, PA 18101. A permit reissuance to transfer the permit for the Martins Creek SES Basin 4 facility located in Lower Mount Bethel Township, **Northampton County** from Martins Creek, LLC to MC OpCo, LLC. The application was approved by the Regional Office on June 7, 2019.

Persons interested in reviewing the permit may contact Roger Bellas, Regional Waste Management Program Manager, Department of Environmental Protection, Northeast Regional Office, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915 at 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984.

## **AIR QUALITY**

General Plan Approval and Operating Permit Usage Authorized under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127 to construct, modify, reactivate or operate air contamination sources and associated air cleaning devices.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2531.

**GP3-58-063: F.S. Lopke Contracting Incorporated** (3430 State Route 434, Apalachin, NY 13732) on June 4, 2019, for the installation and operation of a portable

stone crushing plant at the facility located in Bridgewater Township, **Susquehanna County**.

**GP9-58-063: F.S. Lopke Contracting Incorporated** (3430 State Route 434, Apalachin, NY 13732) on June 4, 2019, for the installation and operation of I C Engines at the facility located in Bridgewater Township, **Susquehanna County**.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**GP9-67-03157:** United Natural Foods, Inc. (225 Cross Farm Lane, York, PA 17406) on June 5, 2019, for three (3) diesel engines powering two emergency generators and a fire pump, under GP9, at the facility located in Conewago Township, **York County**. The general authorization was renewed.

**GP9-21-05002A: Vitro Flat Glass LLC** (400 Park Drive, Carlisle, PA 17015) on June 12, 2019, for an emergency generator rated at 2,000 KW, under GP9, at the facility located in South Middleton Township, **Cumberland County**.

Plan Approvals Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and regulations in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B relating to construction, modification and reactivation of air contamination sources and associated air cleaning devices.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 484-250-5920.

**09-0210B:** Waste Management of Fairless, LLC (1000 New Ford Mill Road, Morrisville, PA 19067) On June 4, 2019, for the installation of three (3) enclosed ZULE flares and two (2) emergency diesel-fired generator engines located in Falls Township, **Bucks County**. The three flares will be used to combust the landfill gas that is collected from three landfill areas—Fairless, GROWS, and the GROWS North landfill areas. The new flares and associated equipment are to be connected to the existing gas collection and control system (GCCS) and will serve as the primary control of landfill gases (VOC).

**09-0024K: Waste Management of Pennsylvania, Inc.** (1000 New Ford Mill Rd, Morrisville, PA 19067) On June 4, 2019, for two 6,000 scfm ultra low emission flares (ULE) to combust the landfill gas collected from the Tullytown Resource Recovery Facility (TRRF), a landfill located in Tullytown Borough, **Bucks County**. TRRF is a major facility. The two flares will serve as primary control for the landfill gas, collected with an existing landfill gas collection system. Two existing 5,000 scfm Back-Up flares will continue to serve in the case the ULE flares are inoperative periodically for maintenance purposes. A portion of the landfill gas generated at TRRF will continue to be sent to an IC engine to create power for on-site activities. Plan Approval Revisions Issued including Extensions, Minor Modifications and Transfers of Ownership under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001—4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.13, 127.13a and 127.32.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: James A. Beach, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 484-250-5920.

**09-0053C:** Greif Packaging LLC (695 Louis Dr., Warminster, PA 18974-2825) On June 6, 2019, an extension for the operation of a new steel drum exterior paint spray booth and enclosure at an existing steel drum manufacturing facility located in Warminster Township, Bucks County.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**67-05118A: Harley-Davidson Motor Co. Operations, Inc.** (1425 Eden Road, York, PA 17402) on June 6, 2019, for installation of an infrared paint drying oven at the facility located in Springettsbury Township, **York County.** The plan approval was extended.

**67-05083F: Calpine Mid-Merit LLC** (500 Delaware Avenue, Suite 600, Wilmington, DE 19801) on June 6, 2019, for the upgrade of the Block 2 Electricity Generation Project's nominally rated power output capacity from 760 MW to 830 MW at the York Energy Center in Peach Bottom Township, **York County**. The plan approval was extended.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Ed Orris, P.E., New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 412-442-4168.

**PA-03-00244A: Dominium Energy Transmission, Inc.** (5000 Dominion Blvd. # 2 NW, Glen Allen, VA 23060-3308) on June 7, 2019, plan approval extension issued. Plan Approval is extended until January 28, 2020, for their Rural Valley Compressor Station located in Valley Township, **Armstrong County**.

Title V Operating Permits Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 484-250-5920.

**09-00066: Exelon Generation Co/Fairless Hills Generation Station** (990 Steel Road, Fairless Hills, PA 19030) On June 4, 2019, for a renewal of the Title V Operating Permit in Falls Township, **Bucks County**.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702. **29-05001: JLG Industries, Inc.** (1 JLG Drive, McConnellsburg, PA 17233-9502) on May 31, 2019, for the lift equipment manufacturing facility located in Ayr Township, **Fulton County**. The Title V permit was renewed.

**36-05046:** Columbia Gas Transmission Corp. (1700 MacCorkle Avenue SE, P.O. Box 1273, Charleston, WV 25314-1518) on May 30, 2019, for the Marietta natural gas compressor station located in East Donegal Township, Lancaster County. The Title V permit was renewed.

#### Operating Permits for Non-Title V Facilities Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 484-250-5920.

**46-00292: League Collegiate Wear, Inc.** (401 E. 4th St., Bldg. 8, Bridgeport, PA 19405) On June 4, 2019, for an initial non-Title V, State-Only, Synthetic Minor Operating Permit in Bridgeport Borough, **Montgomery County**.

**09-00082:** Quakertown Veterinary Clinic, PC (2250 North Old Bethlehem Pike, Quakertown, PA 18951), On June 5, 2019, for the renewal of State-only Operating permit for a propane or natural gas-fired animal crematorium. This facility is located in Milford Township, **Bucks County**.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2507.

**35-00065:** Insituform Technologies, LLC (17999 Edison Ave, Chesterfield, MO 63005-3700) The Department issued, on 6/11/19, a State-Only (Natural Minor) Operating Permit for operation of sources at a water, sewer and utility line manufacturing facility in Olyphant Borough, Lackawanna County. The permit contains all applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**39-00058:** Packaging Corporation of America (7451 Cetronia Road, Allentown, PA 1106-9123) The Department issued, on 5/29/19, a State-Only (Synthetic Minor) Operating Permit renewal for operation of sources at corrugated and solid fiber boxes manufacturing facility in Upper Macungie Township, Lehigh County. The permit contains all applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**40-00079:** John Mansville Corp (600 Jaycee Drive, Hazleton, PA 18202-1154) The Department issued, on 6/11/19, a State-Only (Synthetic Minor) Operating Permit for operation of sources at plastics and foam products manufacturing facility in Hazleton City, Luzerne County. The permit contains all applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

40-00124: Graphic Packaging International, LLC (20 Commerce Road, Pittston, PA 18640). On June 10, 2019 the Department issued a renewal State-Only Natural Minor Permit for GPI located in Pittston Township, Luzerne County. Operations at this facility include flexographic printing and forming of paper cups used in the food and beverage industry. The facility also manufactures polystyrene plastic lids for paper cups through an extrusion and thermal forming process. Other operations include paper and cardboard trimming/baling, storage of raw materials, print roller image setting, flexographic paint drying, and warehousing. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide  $(NO_x)$ , sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP) and VOC's. The permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**21-05027: Zenith Energy Terminals PA Holdings LLC** (3900 Essex Lane, Suite 700, Houston, TX 77027-5166) on May 30, 2019, for the petroleum products distribution terminal located in Hampden Township, **Cumberland County**. The State-only permit was renewed.

**28-05047:** Johnson Controls, Inc. (100 Cumberland Valley Avenue, Waynesboro, PA 17268-1206) on May 31, 2019, for the commercial refrigeration and air conditioning equipment manufacturing facility located in Waynesboro Borough, **Franklin County**. The State-only permit was renewed.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Tom Joseph, P.E., Facilities Permitting Chief— Telephone: 412-442-4336.

**56-00314: Bognar and Company, Inc.** (731-733 Washington Boulevard, Pittsburgh, PA 15228) In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.431, the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) is providing notice that on June 7, 2019, DEP issued a renewed, facility-wide, synthetic minor, State Only Operating Permit for the continued operation of a coal preparation plant, known as the Somerset Plant, located in Black Township, Somerset County.

The facility contains air contamination sources consisting of a small thermal rotary dryer, indoor crushing, screening and bagging operations, crushing and conveying operations, a refractory operation, and rail unloading and loading operations. Air pollution prevention equipment at the facility includes a cyclone, fabric filters, and a water truck for the plant roads.

No emission or equipment changes have been approved by this action. Emission sources at the facility are subject to 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts A and Y, and 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121—145. The permit includes emission limitations, and operational, monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping requirements for the facility. The emission restriction, monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting and work practice conditions of the SOOP have been derived from the applicable requirements of 40 CFR Parts 60 and 70 and 25 Pa. Code, Article III, Chapters 121-145.

**32-00197:** Purchase Line School District (16559 Route 286 Highway East, Commodore, PA 15729) On June 6, 2019, the Department issued a renewal Synthetic Minor State Only Operating Permit for the operation of the Purchase Line Jr/Sr High School in Green Township, Indiana County. The facility contains two coal-fired boilers controlled by fly ash separators and one emergency generator engine. The facility is subject to the applicable requirements of 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121— 145. The proposed operating permit includes emission limitations, as well as monitoring, work practice, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements for the facility.

Operating Permit Revisions Issued including Administrative Amendments, Minor Modifications or Transfers of Ownership under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.412, 127.450, 127.462 and 127.464.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 484-250-5920.

15-00154: Jabil, Inc. (1303 Goshen Highway, West Chester, PA 19380-5986), On June 6, 2019, for the change of ownership from DePuy Synthes Inc., to Jabil, Inc. The facility is located in East Goshen Township, Chester County and manufactures various medical products including implants and biomaterials for surgical fixation and correction.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Thomas Joseph, P.E., Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4336.

**TV-56-00232:** (625 Cherrington Parkway, Moon Township, PA 15108) on May 10, 2019, an administrative amendment to change the name of the responsible official in the Title V Operating Permit renewal for **Shade Landfill, Inc.** located in Shade Township, **Somerset County**.

**TV-11-00370:** (625 Cherrington Parkway, Moon Township, PA 15108) on May 10, 2019, an administrative amendment to change the name of the responsible official in the Title V Operating Permit renewal for Laurel Highlands Landfill, Inc. located in Jackson Township, Cambria County.

**TVOP-03-00180: Dominion Transmission, Inc.** (5000 Dominion Blvd., Glen Allen, VA 23060) On October 23, 2017, the Department, as a result of a two Minor Permit Modifications, issued a modified Title V Operating Permit that clarified the definition of VOC and incorporated the applicable requirements of RACT II (25 Pa. Code §§ 129.96—129.100) in the current TVOP. The facility is a natural gas, transmission and storage compressor station containing six 2,000-bhp compressors. The South Bend Station is located in South Bend Township, **Armstrong County**.

**SOOP-65-00629: CBC Latrobe Acquisition, LLC** (100 33rd Street, Latrobe, PA 15650-1474) State Only Operating Permit administrative amendment issued on June 7, 2019, for fixing a typo in testing requirement in wastewater treatment process plant located at the Latrobe Brewery in Latrobe Borough, Westmoreland County.

## ACTIONS ON COAL AND NONCOAL MINING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Actions on applications under the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1—1396.19a); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301-3326); The Clean Streams Law; the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51-30.66); and The Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1-1406.20a). The final action on each application also constitutes action on the NPDES permit application and, if noted, the request for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification. Mining activity permits issued in response to applications will also address the application permitting requirements of the following statutes: the Air Quality Pollution Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001–4014); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1-693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1002).

## Coal Permits Issued

California District Office: 25 Technology Drive, Coal Center, PA 15423, 724-769-1100.

**56773708.** Miller Springs Remediation Management, Inc., (5 Greenway Plaza, Suite 110, Houston, TX 77046). To renew the permit for the Strayer Coal Refuse Disposal Area in Conemaugh Township, Somerset County for reclamation only. No discharges. The application was considered administratively complete on March 10, 2017. Application received: June 7, 2016. Permit issued: June 3, 2019.

**30841312 and NPDES No. PA0013790. The Monongalia County Coal Company**, (46226 National Road, St. Clairsville, OH 43950). To revise the permit for the Monongalia County Mine in Wayne, Gilmore, Jackson, Springhill, Freeport, and Aleppo Townships, **Greene County** and related NPDES permit. Underground Acres Proposed 7,348.6, Subsidence Control Plan Acres Proposed 7,348.6. No additional discharges. The application was considered administratively complete on April 17, 2018. Application received: January 17, 2018. Permit issued: June 3, 2019.

Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, 814-472-1900.

Permit No. 11190101 and NPDES No. PA0279684, Amerikohl Mining, Inc., 202 Sunset Drive, Butler, PA 16001, commencement, operation and restoration of a bituminous surface mine in Washington Township, Cambria County, affecting 161 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to Little Conemaugh River, unnamed tributaries to Bear Rock Run and unnamed tributaries to Bear Creek, classified for the following use: cold water fishes. There are no potable water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application received: February 8, 2019. Permit Issued: June 7, 2019.

**Permit No. 56180101 and NPDES No. PA0269492, PBS Coals, Inc.**, P.O. Box 260, Friedens, PA 15541, commencement, operation and restoration of a bituminous surface & auger mine to add an NPDES point to allow the construction of additional treatment ponds for the Schrock Run Mine in Stonycreek Township, **Somerset County**, affecting 348.3 acres. Receiving streams: Schrock Run and unnamed tributary # 2 to Glades Creek classified for the following uses: cold water fishes & warm water fishes. There are no potable water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application received: December 14, 2018. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

Permit No. 56190101 and NPDES No. PA0279633. Heritage Coal & Natural Resources, LLC, 550 Beagle Road, Rockwood, PA 15557, commencement, operation and restoration of a bituminous surface and auger mine in Brothersvalley Township, **Somerset County** affecting 47.0 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to Blue Lick Creek, classified for the following use: cold water fishes. There are no potable water supply intakes within 10 miles downstream. Application received: January 16, 2019. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

The permit includes a stream encroachment to install a culverted stream crossing within the barrier area of unnamed tributary to Blue Lick Creek.

The permit also includes a request for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification.

#### Noncoal Permits Issued

Knox District Mining Office: P.O. Box 669, 310 Best Avenue, Knox, PA 16232-0669, 814-797-1191.

20192801 and NPDES Permit No. PA0280691. Meadville Redi-Mix Concrete, Inc. (P.O. Box 418, Meadville, PA 16335). Commencement, operation and restoration of a small industrial minerals surface mine and associated NPDES permit in Summit Township, Crawford County affecting 7.0 acres. Receiving streams: None. Application received: March 6, 2019. Permit Issued: June 4, 2019.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

**Permit No. PAM117066. Empire Wrecking of Reading PA**, (1420 Clarion Street, Reading, PA 19601), coverage under the General NPDES Stormwater Permit for stormwater discharges associated with mining activities on Surface Mining Permit No. 6177SM2 in Cumru Township, **Berks County**, receiving stream: Schuylkill River. Application received: December 8, 2017. Permit issued: June 6, 2019.

#### ACTIONS ON BLASTING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Actions on applications under the Explosives Acts of 1937 and 1957 and 25 Pa. Code § 211.124. Blasting activity performed as part of a coal or noncoal mining activity will be regulated by the mining permit for that coal or noncoal mining activity.

Blasting Permits Issued

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, 814-342-8200.

**59194104.** Maine Drilling & Blasting, Inc. (P.O. Box 1140, Gardiner, ME 04345). Blasting for the Putnam Pipeline located in Ward and Sullivan Townships, **Tioga County** and Armenia Township, **Bradford County** with an expiration date of May 31, 2020. Permit issued: June 3, 2019. Please note this is a revision. Original notice was issued in error with an issuance date of April 15, 2019 and an expiration date of April 15, 2020.

New Stanton District Office: P.O. Box 133, New Stanton, PA 15672, 724-925-5500.

**02194002. Wampum Hardware Company** (636 Paden Road, New Galilee, PA 16141). Blasting activity permit for the construction/demolition of the Gregg Station Residential site, located in Collier Township, **Allegheny County** with an expiration date of December 24, 2019. Blasting permit issued: June 6, 2019.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, 570-621-3118.

**Permit No. 52194103. Holbert Explosives, Inc.**, (237 Mast Hope Plank Road, Suite A, Lackawaxen, PA 18435), construction blasting for 113 Ridgewood Circle, Hunters Ridge in Lackawaxen Township, **Pike County** with an expiration date of May 30, 2020. Permit issued: June 4, 2019.

**Permit No. 36194125. Keystone Blasting Service**, (15 Hopeland Road, Lititz, PA 17543), construction blasting for Creek Corner in Ephrata Township, **Lancaster County** with an expiration date of December 30, 2019. Permit issued: June 4, 2019.

**Permit No. 67194109. J Roy's, Inc.**, (P.O. Box 125, Bowmansville, PA 17507), construction blasting for North Hill Road Warehouse in Springettsbury Township, **York County** with an expiration date of May 29, 2020. Permit issued: June 4, 2019.

**Permit No. 36194124. Valley Rock Solutions, LLC**, (P.O. Box 246, Macungie, PA 18062), construction blasting for Iron Stone Ranch in Elizabeth Township, **Lancaster County** with an expiration date of May 31, 2020. Permit issued: June 5, 2019.

**Permit No. 39194102.** Maine Drilling & Blasting, Inc., (P.O. Box 1140, Gardiner, ME 04345), construction blasting for Liberty at Spring Creek lots 7 & 8 in Lower Macungie Township, **Lehigh County** with an expiration date of May 31, 2020. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

**Permit No. 39194103.** American Rock Mechanics, Inc., (7531 Chestnut Street, Zionsville, PA 18092), construction blasting for Wrenfield Townhouses in Upper Macungie Township, **Lehigh County** with an expiration date of June 2, 2020. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

**Permit No. 39194104.** American Rock Mechanics, **Inc.**, (7531 Chestnut Street, Zionsville, PA 18092), construction blasting for Lehigh Valley Industrial Park Lots 83 & 85 in the City of Bethlehem, **Lehigh County** with an expiration date of June 2, 2020. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

**Permit No. 48194107. Valley Rock Solutions, LLC**, (P.O. Box 246, Macungie, PA 18062), construction blasting for Century Commercial Project in Allen Township, **Northampton County** with an expiration date of June 4, 2020. Permit issued: June 7, 2019.

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT SECTION 401

The Department has taken the following actions on previously received permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval and requests for Water Quality Certification under section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341).

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

Except as otherwise noted, the Department has granted 401 Water Quality Certification certifying that the construction and operation described will comply with sections 301—303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317) and that the construction will not violate applicable Federal and State water quality standards.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the Pennsylvania Bulletin unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30 days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

Actions on applications for the following activities filed under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27), section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and The Clean Streams Law and Notice of Final Action for Certification under section 401 of the FWPCA.

Permits, Environmental Assessments and 401 Water Quality Certifications Denied:

#### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, Ed Muzic, Section Chief, 717.705.4802.

**E01-324: Repasky Family Trust**, 251 Bender Road, Hanover, PA 17331 in Mount Pleasant Township, **Adams County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To place and maintain fill in 51,198 square feet of floodway of the South Branch Conewago Creek and an unnamed tributary to the South Branch Conewago Creek permanently impacting 29,353 square feet of Palustrine Emergent (PEM) Wetland. Wetland mitigation in the amount of 40,119 square feet is proposed. The permit application was denied on June 6, 2019. Permits, Environmental Assessments and 401 Water Quality Certifications Issued:

Southeast Region: Waterways and Wetlands Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484.250.5160.

**E46-1178: Borough of Ambler**, 131 Rosemary Avenue, Ambler, PA 19002-4737, Borough of Ambler, **Montgomery County**, ACOE Philadelphia District.

To remove an existing parking lot obstruction and construct and maintain a conventional park with trees, shrubs, benches, etc., within the floodway/floodplain that rests above the enclosed Tannery Run (TS-MF) associated with the renovations in the Borough. The site is located at southeast corner of Park Avenue and Butler Avenue (Ambler, PA USGS Quadrangles Latitude: 40.156908; Longitude: -75.217270).

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, Dana Drake, Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 412-442-4000.

**E02-1788, Pleasant Hills Authority**, 610 Old Clairton Road, Room 100, Pittsburgh, PA 15236, Jefferson Borough and South Park Township, **Allegheny County**, Pittsburgh, ACOE District.

Has been given consent to:

1. Remove 145 LF of a failed gabion basket streambank retention wall, along the right descending bank of Lick Run, a tributary of Peters Creek (TSF);

2. Construct and maintain a replacement and expansion of the aforementioned wall with 245 LF of new concrete modular block wall and 18 LF of riprap to tie the wall into the streambank;

3. Remove 23 LF of a second 63 LF gabion basket streambank retention wall, along another reach of the right descending bank of Lick Run, a tributary of Peters Creek (TSF);

4. Construct and maintain a replacement and expansion of the aforementioned wall with 130 LF of a second concrete modular block wall, and place and maintain 310 LF of riprap;

5. To temporarily remove and replace a fence within the floodplain, along 217 LF of stream channel;

6. To construct and maintain a temporary stream crossing;

For the purpose of stabilizing the stream to prevent impacts to the Pleasant Hills Authority Wastewater Treatment Facility. The project will cumulatively impact 763 LF of stream channel. Mitigation will occur as restoration. The project is located at the Pleasant Hills Authority Wastewater Treatment Facility at 628 Cochran Mill Road, Jefferson Hills, PA 15025, along Cochran Mill Road, approximately 1.6 mile south of intersection with Brownsville Road at Broughton, PA (Glassport USGS Topographic Quadrangle: N: 9.7 inches; W: 14.0 inches; Lat: 40° 18' 0.9"; Long: -79° 58' 57.5"; Sub-basin 19C, Pittsburgh ACOE District), in South Park Township and Jefferson Hills Borough, Allegheny County.

**E02-1798, Sheetz, Inc.**, 5700 Sixth Avenue, Altoona, PA 16602, Shaler Township, **Allegheny County**, Pittsburgh ACOE District.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

Has been given consent to:

Demolish and remove an existing structure, pavement and utilities, and to place and maintain and maintain 10,890 square feet of fill within and along the floodway and along 330 feet of the left bank of Pine Creek (TSF), for the purpose of constructing a convenience store, service station, parking and pavement areas, underground detention system, utilities, and associated grading and earthwork activities and associated appurtenances. The project is located on the west side of William Flynn Highway, just southwest from the intersection of William Flynn Highway and East Pennview Street (Glenshaw, PA Quadrangle; N: 2.5 inches; W: 10.6 inches; Latitude: 40°-30'-51.47"; Longitude: -79°-57'-10.21") in Shaler Township, Allegheny County.

E02-1800, Allegheny County Department of Public Works, 501 County Office Building, 542 Forbes Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15219, Wilkins Township & Turtle Creek Borough, Allegheny County; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

Has been given consent to:

Remove an existing 47-foot wide by 27-foot long, singlespan bridge, and construct and maintain a replacement 61-foot long by 34-foot wide, Single-Span bridge, over Thompson Run (WWF) with an under clearance of 9-feet, directly downstream. As part of the replacement, a new 18" stormwater outfall will be constructed upstream of the existing bridge. The project will permanently impact 45-linear feet of Thompson Run. The project will permanently impact 0.08 acre of floodway. Compensatory mitigation is not provided due to the nature of the project.

The project site is located on Jones Avenue off Larimer Avenue (Braddock, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 24', 57"; W: -79°, 49', 25"; Sub-basin 19A; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Wilkins Township & Turtle Creek, Allegheny County.

**E02-1801, AR Building Company, Inc.**, 310 Seven Fields Boulevard, Suite 350, Seven Fields, PA 16046, Monroeville Borough, **Allegheny County**, Pittsburgh ACOE District.

Has been given consent to:

Remove and replace an existing 25' arch culvert over Leak Run (WWF) with a 45' open bottom, metal plate arch culvert for the purpose of constructing a 120-unit apartment building, parking lot, utilities and stormwater management facility on property along Old William Penn Highway in Monroeville, PA. The proposed culvert will permanently impact 70 linear feet of Leak Run and 0.02 acre of floodway. This resource crossing also includes three (3) utility crossings. Mitigation is not required based on configuration of the open bottom arch culvert. The project site is bound by the Parkway East to the north and Leak Run to the south, Braddock, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 26', 35"; W: -79°, 46', 38"; Sub-basin 19A; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Monroeville Borough, Allegheny County.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS

Central Office: Bureau of Waterways Engineering and Wetlands, Rachel Carson State Office Building, Floor 2, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8460, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8460.

**D28-117.** David Newell, Executive Director, Scotland School for Veterans' Children, P.O. Box 370, Scotland, PA 17254, and Todd Burns, Chairman, Greene Township, 1145 Garver Lane, Scotland, PA 17254, Greene Township, Franklin County, USACOE Baltimore District.

Project proposes to remove the Scotland Dam to eliminate a threat to public safety and restore the stream to a free-flowing condition. The proposed restoration project includes construction of habitat enhancement structures in the stream channel through the former reservoir. The project is located across Conococheague Creek (CWF, MF) (Scotland, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 39.9715; Longitude: -77.5882).

### EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

The following Erosion and Sediment Control permits have been issued.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under sec-tion 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30 days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

Southwest District: Oil & Gas Management Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222.

ESCGP-3 # ESG30700719-003

Applicant Name PennEnergy Resources, LLC

Contact Person Scott Sweder

Address 1000 Commerce Drive, Park Place One, Suite 400

City, State, Zip Pittsburgh, PA 15275

County Beaver

Township(s) Marion Twp

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Tributary 63822 to Muntz Run, Muntz Run, Connoquenessing Creek (WWF)

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, Dana Drake, Waterways and Wetlands Program Manager, 412-442-4000.

Receiving

Conemaugh River (CWF); Conemaugh River (WWF)

ESCGP-2 No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Water / Use
ESG0012919003	Columbia Gas Transmission 1700 McCorkle Avenue, SE Charleston, WV 25314	Westmoreland County	Hempfield Township; Loyalhanna Township; North Huntingdon Township; Penn Township; Salem Township	Possum Hollow (WWF); UNT to Little Sewickley Creek (TSF); UNTs to Brush Creek (TSF); UNTs to Bushy Run (TSF); Bushy Run (TSF); Bushy Run (TSF); UNT to Beaver Run (HQ-CWF); UNT to Porters Run (HQ-CWF); Porters Run (HQ-CWF); Serviceberry Run (HQ-WWF); UNT to Getty Run (WWF); Loyalhanna Creek (WWF); UNTs to

Northwest Region: Oil and Gas Program Manager, 230 Chestnut St., Meadville, PA 16335.

ESCGP-3 # ESX140730016-01—Pulaski—Chrastina Well Site Applicant Hilcorp Energy Company Contact Stephanie McMurray Address 1111 Travis Street City Houston State TX Zip Code 77002 County Lawrence Township Pulaski Receiving Stream and Classification UNT to Shenango River (WWF)

Eastern Region: Oil & Gas Management Program Manager, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

ESCGP-3 # ESG295919003-00 Applicant Name Seneca Resources Co LLC Contact Person Cindy Jones Address 51 Zents Blvd City, State, Zip Brookville, PA 15825-2701 County Tioga Township(s) Delmar, Chatham, Shippen Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) UNT to Canada Run (HQ-CWF, MF); Canada Run (HQ-CWF, MF); Right Straight Run (HQ-CWF, MF) Secondary: Marsh Ck (WWF, MF)

## STORAGE TANKS SITE-SPECIFIC INSTALLATION PERMITS

The following Storage Tank Site-Specific Installation Permits, under the authority of the Storage Tank Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.304, 6021.504, 6021.1101—6021.1102) and under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter C, have been issued by the Bureau of Environmental Cleanup and Brownfields, Director, P.O. Box 8763, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8763.

SSIP Permit No.	Applicant Name & Address	County	Municipality	Tank Type	Tank Capacity
19-43-009	Russell Standard Corporation P.O. Box 509 Mercer, PA 16137 Attn: Bert Rogers	Mercer	Springfield Township	1 AST storing asphalt emulsion	29,600 gallons

## CORRECTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989

## PREAMBLE 2

#### The following plans and reports were submitted under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245 Subchapter D. Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of submission of plans and reports. A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or non-residential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Environmental Cleanup Program Manager in the DEP Regional Office under which the notice of receipt of plans or reports appears. If information concerning plans or reports is required in an alternative form, contact the Community Relations Coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office listed. TDD users may telephone the DEP through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

**Marcus Hook Ind Complex**, 23-14224, 100 Green Street, Marcus Hook Borough, **Delaware County**. Stantec, 1060 Andrew Drive, Suite 140, West Chester, PA 19380, on behalf of Sunoco Partners Marketing & Terminals L.P., Marcus Hook Industrial Complex, 100 Green Street, Marcus Hook, PA 19061, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with sulfuric acid. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet site specific standards.

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Former Blue Ridge Restaurant Truck Stop, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 65-06325, 9862 US Route 22, Blairsville, PA 15717, Derry Township, Westmoreland County. DMS Environmental Services, LLC, 103 South Spring Street, Bellefonte, PA 16823, on behalf of Norma Dunlap, 1015 Old William Penn Highway, Blairsville, PA 15717, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum products. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

**Bandit Truck Stop II**, Storage Tank ID # 13-25464, 4700 State Route 534, Kidder Township, **Carbon County**. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Anil Thakrar, 3935 Hemlock Place, Bethlehem, PA 18017, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to Site-Specific Standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

**Dutch Kitchen Mobil**, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 06-42036, 8373 Route 183, Strausstown, PA 19559, Upper Tulpehocken Township, **Berks County**, EMS Environmental, Inc., 4550 Bath Pike, Bethlehem, PA 18017, on behalf of Pat Garrett, 8373 Route 183, Bethel, PA 19507, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**7-Eleven 36147**, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 10-31774, 1559 Route 228, Cranberry Township, **Butler County**. AECOM, 625 West Ridge Pike, Suite E-100, Conshohocken, PA 19428, on behalf of 7-Eleven, Incorporated, P.O. Box 711, Dallas, TX 75221 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, naphthalene, cumene, total xylenes, 1,2,4trimethylbenzene, 1,3,4-trimethylbenzene, and methyl tert-butyl ether. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

**Country Fair 47**, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 61-30908, 1 Spring Street, Oil City, **Venango County**. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 301 Commerce Park Drive, Cranberry Township, PA 16066, on behalf of Country Fair, Inc., 2251 East 30th Street, Erie, PA 16510, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene, Xylenes, Cumene, Naphthalene, MTBE, 1,2,4 Trimethylbenzene, and 1,3,5 Trimethylbenzene. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide Health Standard.

## CORRECTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989

#### PREAMBLE 3

The DEP has taken action on the following plans and reports under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245 Subchapter D, Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of its final actions on plans and reports.

A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or non-residential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

The DEP may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides the DEP's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning the plans and reports, please contact the Environmental Cleanup Program Manager in the DEP Regional Office under which the notice of the plan or report appears. If information concerning a report is required in an alternative form, contact the Community Relations Coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office listed. TDD users may telephone the DEP through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The DEP has received the following plans and reports:

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

**Sunny's Express Mart**, Storage Tank ID # 45-39022, 458 Interchange Road, Polk Township, **Monroe County**. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Rital & Neval Inc., 458 Interchange Road, Kresgeville, PA 18333, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide Health Standards for soil and groundwater and was approved by DEP on June 5, 2019.

Former Schneck Oil, Storage Tank ID # 39-34817, 1201 North Quebec Street, Allentown City, Lehigh County. AECOM, 100 Sterling Parkway, Suite 205, Mechanicsburg, PA 17050, on behalf of Norfolk Southern Railway Company, 110 Franklin Road SE, Roanoke, VA 24042-0028, has submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with gasoline, diesel, fuel oil, and used motor oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet a combination of Site Specific and Statewide Health Standards. The Remedial Action Completion Report was not acceptable to meet a combination of Site Specific and Residential Statewide Health Standards and was disapproved by DEP on June 5, 2019.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

**Growth Investors Group**, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 22-07410, 770 Eisenhower Blvd., Harrisburg, PA 17110-2307, Swatara Township, **Dauphin County**, Comstock Environmental Services, LLC, P.O. Box 509, Lafayette Hill, PA 19444, on behalf of Mr. Jitendra Patel, 6602 Misty Creek, Missouri City, TX 77459-3190, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with Unleaded Gasoline Shortlist Constituents. The Report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Non-Residential Statewide Health and Site-Specific Standards. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the Non-Residential Statewide Health and Site-Specific Standards and was approved by the Department on June 4, 2019.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup Program Manager, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**Country Fair 47**, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 61-30908, 1 Spring Street, Oil City, **Venango County**. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 301 Commerce Park Drive, Cranberry Township, PA 16066, on behalf of Country Fair, Inc., 2251 East 30th Street, Erie, PA 16510, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene, Xylenes, Cumene, Naphthalene, MTBE, 1,2,4 Trimethylbenzene, and 1,3,5 Trimethylbenzene. The Remedial Action Plan was acceptable to meet the Statewide Health Standard and was approved by DEP on June 10, 2019.

## **SPECIAL NOTICES**

Southwest District: Oil & Gas Management Program Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222.

**EA04-07-001 Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC**. 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840. Request for permit waiver in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 105.12(a)(16) in South Beaver Township, **Beaver County**, Pittsburgh ACOE District. The applicant is proposing a gas well pad restoration to return the site to its original contours. One permanent impact (fill) of 0.09 acre to a wetland (W-DBC2) is proposed. The project will restore 764 feet of stream channel that existed pre-construction. Also proposed is 0.10 of wetland restoration (Midland, PA 7.5 Minute Quadrangle, Latitude: 40.730010 N—Longitude: 80.478647 W).

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-933. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Availability of Grants through Driving PA Forward Electric Cargo Handling Grant Program

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) announces an opportunity to apply for \$3 million in grants offered through the Electric Cargo Handling Grant Program (Grant Program), one of the new programs under the Driving PA Forward Initiative. This funding is available for eligible diesel emission reduction projects that will improve air quality and protect public health and the environment by reducing emissions from large forklifts, airport ground support equipment and port cargo handling equipment.

The Department is seeking applications for projects that will replace or repower eligible large forklifts, airport ground support equipment and port cargo handling equipment with electric versions of the equipment. Other restrictions may apply. Public and private entities that own or operate eligible vehicles, engines or equipment throughout this Commonwealth should apply. These entities may include airports and port authorities, school districts, municipal authorities, political subdivisions, State agencies, nonprofit entities, corporations, limited liability companies or partnerships incorporated or registered in this Commonwealth, air quality or transportation organizations and metropolitan or rural planning organizations.

The Department will not reimburse grant recipients for project costs incurred prior to the grant performance period set forth in the applicable grant agreement. The Grant Program guidelines and application instructions are available on the Department's Driving PA Forward webpage at http://www.depgis.state.pa.us/ DrivingPAForward/ or by contacting the Bureau of Air Quality at ra-epvwmitigation@pa.gov or (717) 787-9495.

A webinar on the Grant Program will be held on Friday, July 19, 2019, from 10:30 a.m. to 12 p.m. For the link to register see the Department's previously listed webpage (select "Types of Projects," then "Electric Cargo Handling Grant Program").

Applications must be submitted through the Department of Community and Economic Development's Electronic Single Application web site, eGrants at https:// www.esa.dced.state.pa.us. Applications will be accepted through 4 p.m. on Friday, November 15, 2019. The Department will review and score applications after the application period closes on November 15, 2019.

PATRICK McDONNELL,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-934. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Availability of Rebates through the Pennsylvania Alternative Fuels Incentive Grant Program

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) announces the continued availability of grants to Commonwealth residents under Pennsylvania's Alternative Fuel Vehicle (AFV) Rebate Program (Program). The Program, administered by the Department through the Alternative Fuels Incentive Grant (AFIG) Program, provides rebates to Commonwealth residents to assist individuals with the incremental costs of purchasing an AFV.

To qualify for the rebate, the AFV must be registered in and be operated primarily within this Commonwealth. The rebate will be offered on a first-come, first-served basis in the order in which they are received. Rebate request forms and required documentation must be submitted to the Department no later than 6 months after the vehicle is purchased.

The program guidelines and application instructions, as well as an up-to-date listing of rebates, are available on the Department's web site at www.dep.pa.gov (select "Citizens," then "Grants, Loans and Rebates," then "Alternative Fuels Incentive Grant," then "Alternative Fuel Vehicles").

All AFV rebates must be submitted through the Department of Community and Economic Development's Electronic Single Application web site, eGrants. Visit the eGrants web site at https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us to submit an application.

Beginning on Monday, July 1, 2019, the Department will implement the following changes to the Program:

• Two rebate levels will be offered:

o A \$1,500 rebate for all battery electric vehicles (BEV) and hydrogen fuel cell vehicles (HFCV).

o A \$1,000 rebate for all plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEV), electric motorcycles, natural gas vehicles and propane vehicles.

• A final purchase price cap of \$50,000 for all BEVs, PHEVs, natural gas and propane vehicles.

• A final purchase price cap of \$75,000 for all HFCVs.

• A \$1,000 rebate for all used AFVs including one-time preowned and demonstration model vehicles:

o One-time preowned AFVs with 75,000 miles or less with a true market value of \$50,000 or less from a registered dealer.

o Vehicles used by a registered dealer for demonstration purposes with a final purchase price of \$50,000 or less with an odometer reading of greater than 500 and less than 10,000 miles.

• An additional rebate of \$1,000 will be available on all AFV types as well as new purchased/leased or used vehicles if the applicant meets the low-income requirement. That requirement remains at a household income that is below 200% of the Federal Income Poverty level.

The rebate Program offered will be reassessed on December 31, 2019.

PATRICK McDONNELL, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-935. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Request for Applications for Watershed Planning and Restoration Grants through the Section 319 Nonpoint Source Management Program

As part of the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) Section 319 Nonpoint Source Management Grants Program, applications will be accepted for watershed planning and restoration grants. Funded in part by the United States Environmental Protection Agency under section 319(h) of the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1388), the Department administers a grant program to fund watershed projects that are part of approved watershed implementation plans (WIP). The grants are designed to improve and protect waters in this Commonwealth from nonpoint source pollution associated with agricultural activities, abandoned mine drainage (AMD), stormwater runoff, energy resource extraction, and streambank and shoreline degradation.

Eligible applicants include: incorporated watershed associations, counties or municipalities; county conservation districts; and council of governments or other authorized organizations including nonprofit organizations, educational institutions and municipal authorities.

The Department is focusing these grants on projects that reduce nonpoint source pollution in targeted watersheds with WIPs, especially projects that reduce nitrogen, phosphorous and sediment pollution from agricultural and stormwater runoff, along with AMD-related pollution from iron, aluminum and acidity. The Department is particularly interested in projects that implement effective best management practices (BMP) that reduce or eliminate stream impairments within WIP areas, leading to local water quality improvements. The Department has identified other priorities, including: implementing BMPs within WIP areas to address priority nonpoint source pollution sources; developing new WIPs and revising existing WIPs; and integrating Chesapeake Bay Phase 3 WIP Countywide Action Plans into new and revised WIPs.

Examples of eligible projects include: design and construction of BMPs including riparian forest buffers, streambank fencing and erosion/sedimentation/nutrient control practices on cropland; animal waste storage systems; and design and construction of stormwater management BMPs and AMD treatment systems. Other examples of eligible projects include projects that will reduce nonpoint source pollution in watersheds where streams are impaired and integrating stormwater management BMPs into watershed management strategies.

Applications and all supporting documents must be submitted through the Department of Community and Economic Development's Electronic Single Application web site, eGrants at https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us. Applications will be accepted beginning at 8 a.m. on Monday, June 24, 2019, through 5 p.m. on Friday, August 9, 2019. Late submissions will not be considered.

Interested applicants with questions may contact Roland Carney at rscarney@pa.gov or (717) 783-2944. To obtain more information on the Section 319 Nonpoint Source Management Grants Program, visit the Department's web site at www.dep.pa.gov (search "Nonpoint Source").

> PATRICK McDONNELL, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-936. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

## Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Community Prevention Planning Committee Public Meetings

The Statewide HIV Planning Group, established by the Department of Health (Department) under sections 301(a) and 317 of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 241(a) and 247b), will hold a public meeting on Wednesday, July 31, 2019, from 2 p.m. to 6:45 p.m. at the Toftrees Hotel & Golf Resort, One Country Club Lane, State College, PA 16803.

Jurisdictional HIV prevention planning is a required activity of the Department's Centers for Disease Control and Prevention grant for Comprehensive HIV Prevention Programs for Health Departments. Additionally, the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Treatment Extension Act of 2009 (Pub.L. No. 111-87), previously known as the Ryan White Comprehensive AIDS Resources Emergency Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 300ff-21—300ff-38), requires that the Department engage in a public advisory planning process in developing a comprehensive plan. The purpose of these meetings is to conduct an integrated prevention and care HIV planning process by which the Department works in partnership with the community and stakeholders to enhance access to HIV prevention, care and treatment services.

For additional information or persons with a disability who wish to attend the meeting who require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact Cynthia Findley, Bureau Director, Department of Health, Bureau of Communicable Diseases, 625 Forster Street, Room 1010, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 783-0572, or for speech and/or hearing impaired persons V/TT (717) 783-6514 or the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department reserves the right to cancel this meeting without prior notice.

RACHEL L. LEVINE, MD, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-937. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

## Long-Term Care Nursing Facilities; Requests for Exception

The following long-term care nursing facilities are seeking exceptions to 28 Pa. Code § 205.6(a) (relating to function of building):

Birchwood Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center 395 East Middle Road Nanticoke, PA 18634 FAC ID # 026402

River Run Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center 615 Wyoming Avenue Kingston, PA 18704 FAC ID # 381402

The following long-term care nursing facility is seeking an exception to 28 Pa. Code § 211.9(g) (relating to pharmacy services):

Masonic Village at Elizabethtown One Masonic Drive Elizabethtown, PA 17022-2119 FAC ID # 131502

These requests are on file with the Department of Health (Department). Persons may receive a copy of a request for exception by requesting a copy from the Department of Health, Division of Nursing Care Facilities, Room 526, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 787-1816, fax (717) 772-2163, ra-paexcept@pa.gov.

Persons who wish to comment on an exception request may do so by sending a letter by mail, e-mail or facsimile to the Division at the previously listed address.

Comments received by the Department within 10 days after the date of publication of this notice will be reviewed by the Department before it decides whether to approve or disapprove the request for exception.

Persons with a disability who wish to obtain a copy of the request and/or provide comments to the Department and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact the Division at the previously listed address or phone number, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

> RACHEL L. LEVINE, MD, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-938. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

## Disproportionate Share Payments for Obstetrical and Neonatal Services

The Department of Human Services (Department) is providing final notice of its funding allocation, as well as qualifying criteria and payment methodology revisions, for Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-2019 disproportionate share hospital payments to qualifying Medical Assistance enrolled acute care general hospitals providing obstetrical and neonatal services.

The Department published notice of its intent to allocate funding for these payments at 49 Pa.B. 786 (February 16, 2019). The Department received no comments during the 30-day comment period and will implement the changes as described in the notice of intent.

#### Fiscal Impact

The FY 2018-2019 impact, as a result of these payments, is \$13.992 million (\$6.681 million in State general funds and \$7.311 million in Federal funds).

TERESA D. MILLER, Secretary

**Fiscal Note:** 14-NOT-1339. (1) General Fund; (2) Implementing Year 2018-19 is \$6,681,000; (3) 1st Succeeding Year 2019-20 through 5th Succeeding Year 2023-24 are \$0; (4) 2017-18 Program—\$3,681,000; 2016-17 Program—\$3,681,000; 2015-16 Program—\$3,681,000; (7) Medical Assistance—Obstetric and Neonatal Services; (8) recommends adoption. Funds have been included in the budget to cover this increase.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-939. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## INDEPENDENT REGULATORY REVIEW COMMISSION

## Notice of Comments Issued

Section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5(g)) provides that the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (Commission) may issue comments within 30 days of the close of the public comment period. The Commission comments are based upon the criteria contained in section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b).

The Commission has issued comments on the following proposed regulations. The agency must consider these comments in preparing the final-form regulation. The final-form regulation must be submitted within 2 years of the close of the public comment period or it will be deemed withdrawn.

Reg. No.	Agency / Title	Close of the Public Comment Period	IRRC Comments Issued
7-548	Environmental Quality Board Water Quality Standards; Class A Stream Redesignations 49 Pa.B. 1367 (March 23, 2019)	5/7/19	6/6/19
104-1	Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board Board Rules and Regulations 49 Pa.B. 1657 (April 6, 2019)	5/7/19	6/6/19

#### Environmental Quality Board Regulation # 7-548 (IRRC # 3226)

### Water Quality Standards; Class A Stream Redesignations

### June 6, 2019

We submit for your consideration the following comments on the proposed rulemaking published in the March 23, 2019 *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Our comments are based on criteria in Section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b). Section 5.1(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5a(a)) directs the Environmental Quality Board (EQB) to respond to all comments received from us or any other source.

#### Whether the regulation is supported by acceptable data; Economic or fiscal impact.

This proposed rulemaking will update designated uses for streams that qualify as High Quality (HQ)-Cold Water Fishes (CWF) waters, based on species-specific biomass for Class A Wild Trout set by the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission (PFBC). EQB states that Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) staff conducted an independent review of the trout biomass data in PFBC fishery management reports for relevant streams to ensure that the HQ conditions were met. The proposal affects 42 stream segments totaling 204 stream miles.

A document prepared by DEP's Division of Water Quality Standards that was submitted with this proposal states that while DEP generally followed PFBC requested stream reach delineations, "adjustments were made in some instances based on land use, confluence of tributaries or considerations based on electronic mapping limitations."

PFBC submitted comments suggesting that the zone for recommended designated use for seven streams be amended from Main Stem to Basin. They also suggest that the Basin designation be applied to entire reaches of two streams instead of just the streams themselves. It is our understanding that adopting the recommendations of the PFBC would increase the number of stream miles affected by the proposal.

We ask EQB to review the comments of the PFBC to determine if the suggestions are supported by acceptable data and to provide an explanation of why it will either adopt or not adopt the suggested amendments. If changes are made, we ask EQB to update the number of stream miles that will be affected and also to quantify any potential economic or fiscal impact that may result.

## Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board Regulation # 104-1 (IRRC # 3229)

## **Board Rules and Regulations**

#### June 6, 2019

We submit for your consideration the following comments on the proposed rulemaking published in the April 6, 2019 *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Our comments are based on criteria in Section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b). Section 5.1(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5a(a)) directs the Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board (Board) to respond to all comments received from us or any other source.

# 1. Section 91.2. Appearances.—Consistency with statutes.

Subsection (a) will allow an attorney or other representative, when filing an entry of appearance, to agree to service of letters and orders from the Board by e-mail. Section 10 of the Pennsylvania Labor Relations Act and section 1606 of the Public Employe Relations Act specify how the Board may serve documents:

Complaints, orders[,] and other process and papers of the board, its members or agent may be served, either personally or by registered mail or by telegraph or by leaving a copy thereof at the principal office or place of business of the person required to be served.

43 P.S. § 211.10 and 43 P.S. § 1101.1606.

The proposed regulation appears to conflict with the statutory requirements for the Board to serve documents in person, by registered mail, or by leaving a copy at an office or place of business. We ask the Board to explain in the preamble to the final-form regulation how service by e-mail is consistent with these statutes.

#### 2. Section 93.12. Service and filing of papers.— Implementation procedures.

Subsection (b)(2) will allow parties to submit certain filings with the Board by e-mail. This paragraph requires the party to accept responsibility for attaching documents in the proper format, readability of files and disruptions in electronic transmissions. Further, the party must accept "the risk that the e-mailed document may not be properly received or timely filed." We have two concerns. First, if an e-mailed document is not properly received, will the Board allow a party to resubmit the document? Will the Board allow a party to resubmit filings that are not properly received on the last day of a time limit for filing? Second, what does the Board consider "timely filed" when a party submits documents by e-mail? We ask the Board to clarify in the preamble to the final-form regulation how it intends to implement e-mail filings by parties.

This comment also applies to 95.42(c)(2) (relating to filing of papers).

#### 3. Miscellaneous clarity.

• The preamble states that \$\$ 93.12(b)(2) and 95.42(c)(2) "add the option of agreeing to e-mail service of letters and orders from the Board." These paragraphs address methods of filing with the Board. These citations should be updated in the preamble to the final-form regulation.

• Section 95.98(a)(1) (relating to decisions of the Board) requires a party to file an original and four copies of a

statement of exceptions to a hearing examiner decision. Requirements for an original and copies throughout the regulations are proposed to be deleted. Why wasn't the requirement in this paragraph deleted?

GEORGE D. BEDWICK,

Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-940. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

### Application for Approval to Acquire Control of 21st Century Preferred Insurance Company

Trisura Specialty Insurance Company, an Oklahoma domiciled insurance company, has filed an application for approval to acquire control of 21st Century Preferred Insurance Company, a domestic stock casualty insurance company. The filing was received on June 10, 2019, and was made under the requirements of Article XIV of The Insurance Company Law of 1921 (40 P.S. §§ 991.1401— 991.1413).

Persons wishing to comment on the acquisition are invited to submit a written statement to the Insurance Department (Department) within 30 days from the date of this issue of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Each written statement must include name, address and telephone number of the interested party; identification of the application to which the statement is addressed; and a concise statement with sufficient detail and relevant facts to inform the Department of the exact basis of the statement. Written statements should be directed to Steven L. Yerger, Company Licensing Division, Insurance Department, 1345 Strawberry Square, Harrisburg, PA 17120, fax (717) 787-8557, syerger@pa.gov.

JESSICA K. ALTMAN,

Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-941. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

# Derrick Locke; License Denial Appeal; Doc. No. AG19-06-001

Under Article VI-A of The Insurance Department Act of 1921 (40 P.S. §§ 310.1—310.99a), Derrick Locke has appealed the denial of an application for a nonresident insurance producer's license. The proceedings in this matter will be governed by 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508, 561— 588 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law), 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure) and 31 Pa. Code §§ 56.1—56.3 (relating to Special Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure).

A prehearing telephone conference initiated by this office is scheduled for July 10, 2019, at 10 a.m. Each party shall provide the Hearings Administrator a telephone number to be used for the telephone conference on or before July 8, 2019. A date for a hearing shall be determined, if necessary, at the prehearing/settlement conference.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

Protests, petitions to intervene or notices of intervention, if any, must be filed on or before June 26, 2019, with the Hearings Administrator, Administrative Hearings Office, Capitol Associates Building, Room 200, 901 North Seventh Street, Harrisburg, PA 17102. Answer to protests, petitions to intervene or notices of intervention, if any shall be filed on or before July 8, 2019.

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the previously referenced administrative hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodations to participate in the hearing should contact Joseph Korman, (717) 787-4429, jkorman@pa.gov.

JESSICA K. ALTMAN, Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-942. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

### Review Procedure Hearings; Cancellation or Refusal of Insurance

The following insured has requested a hearing as authorized by the act of June 17, 1998 (P.L. 464, No. 68) (Act 68) in connection with the termination of the insured's automobile insurance policy. The hearing will be held in accordance with the requirements of Act 68; 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508, 561—588 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law); 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure); and 31 Pa. Code §§ 56.1—56.3 (relating to Special Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure). This administrative hearing will be held as follows. Failure by the appellant to appear at the scheduled hearing may result in dismissal with prejudice.

The hearing will be held in the Administrative Hearings Office, Room 200, Capitol Associates Building, 901 North Seventh Street, Harrisburg, PA 17102.

Appeal of Michelle Zukoski; Nationwide Property and Casualty Insurance Company; File No. 19-118-236588; Doc. No. P19-06-003; July 18, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

Following the hearing and receipt of the stenographic transcript, the Insurance Commissioner (Commissioner) will issue a written order resolving the factual issues presented at the hearing and stating what remedial action, if any, is required. The Commissioner's Order will be sent to those persons participating in the hearing or their designated representatives. The Order of the Commissioner may be subject to judicial review by the Commonwealth Court.

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the previously-referenced administrative hearing and require

an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the hearing should contact Joseph Korman, (717) 787-4429, jkorman@pa.gov.

JESSICA K. ALTMAN,

Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-943. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

### Review Procedure Hearings under the Unfair Insurance Practices Act

The following insureds have requested a hearing as authorized by section 8 of the Unfair Insurance Practices Act (act) (40 P.S. § 1171.8) in connection with the company's termination of the insureds' homeowner's policy. The hearing will be held in accordance with the requirements of the act; 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508, 561—588 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law); 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure); and 31 Pa. Code §§ 56.1—56.31 (relating to Special Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure). This administrative hearing will be held as follows. Failure by the appellants to appear at the scheduled hearing may result in dismissal with prejudice.

The hearing will be held in the Administrative Hearings Office, Room 200, Capitol Associates Building, 901 North Seventh Street, Harrisburg, PA 17102.

Appeal of Ronald Shank and Susan D. Miley; Erie Insurance Exchange; File No. 19-176-236161; Doc. No. P19-05-026; July 9, 2019, 10 a.m.

Following the hearing and receipt of the stenographic transcript, the Insurance Commissioner (Commissioner) will issue a written order resolving the factual issues presented at the hearing and stating what remedial action, if any, is required. The Commissioner's Order will be sent to those persons participating in the hearing or their designated representatives. The Order of the Commissioner may be subject to judicial review by the Commonwealth Court.

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the previously-referenced administrative hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the hearing should contact Joseph Korman, (717) 787-4429, jkorman@pa.gov.

JESSICA K. ALTMAN,

Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-944. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

### **MILK MARKETING BOARD**

### Sunshine Meetings for Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Date	Room	Time
Wednesday, July 3, 2019	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, August 7, 2019	Room 202—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, September 4, 2019	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.

Date	Room	Time
Wednesday, October 9, 2019	Room 202—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, November 6, 2019	Room 202—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, December 4, 2019	Room 202—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Thursday, January 2, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Monday, February 3, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, March 4, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, April 1, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, May 6, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.
Wednesday, June 3, 2020	Room 309—Agriculture Building Harrisburg, PA 17110	1 p.m.

TIM MOYER, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-945. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

# Petition of Duquesne Light Company; Prehearing Conference

**P-2019-3010087. Duquesne Light Company.** Petition of Duquesne Light Company for a finding that a building to shelter control equipment at the proposed Elrama Substation in Washington County is reasonably necessary for the convenience or welfare of the public.

Formal protests and petitions to intervene must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before August 7, 2019. Filings must be made with the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant. The documents filed in support of the petition are available for inspection and copying at the Office of the Secretary between 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, at the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's (Commission) web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business address.

### Applicant: Duquesne Light Company

Through and By Counsel: Emily M. Farah, Duquesne Light Company, 411 Seventh Avenue, Mail Drop 14-7, Pittsburgh, PA 15219

### **Prehearing Conference**

An initial prehearing conference on the previouslycaptioned case will be held as follows:

Date:	Monday, August 12, 2019	
Time:	10 a.m.	

Presiding:	Deputy Chief Administrative Law Judge Mark A. Hoyer
	Piatt Place
	Suite 220
	301 5th Avenue
	Pittsburgh, PA 15222
	(412) 565-3550
	Fax: (412) 565-5692

At the previously listed date and time, individuals must call into the hearing. Individuals will not be called by the Administrative Law Judge.

To participate in the conference, individuals must:

• Dial the following toll-free number.

 $\bullet$  Enter the participant passcode number when instructed to do so.

• Speak the individual's name when prompted.

The telephone system will connect individuals to the hearing.

Toll-free number: (866) 566-0651

Participant passcode number: 59956427

To become a party of record, individuals must file a protest or petition to intervene with the Commission's Secretary's Bureau on or before Wednesday, August 7, 2019, and serve a copy on Deputy Chief Administrative Law Judge Mark A. Hoyer at the previously provided address.

Individuals with a disability who wish to attend the hearing should contact the Commission to make arrangements for their special needs. Call the scheduling office at the Commission at least 5 business days prior to the hearing to submit a request.

For individuals who require an interpreter to participate in the hearings, the Commission will make every reasonable effort to have an interpreter present. Call the

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

scheduling office at the Commission at least 10 business days prior to the hearing to submit a request.

• Scheduling Office: (717) 787-1399

• Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service number for persons who are deaf or hearing-impaired: (800) 654-5988

The Commission offers a free eFiling Subscription Service, which allows users to automatically receive an e-mail notification whenever a document is added, removed or changed on the Commission web site regarding a specific case. Instructions for subscribing to this service are on the Commission's web site at http://www.puc.pa.gov/ Documentation/eFiling\_Subscriptions.pdf.

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-946. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

### Service of Notice of Motor Carrier Applications

The following temporary authority and/or permanent authority applications for the right to render service as a common carrier or contract carrier in this Commonwealth have been filed with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. Formal protests and petitions to intervene must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities). A protest shall indicate whether it applies to the temporary authority application, the permanent authority application, or both. Protests may only be filed if there is evidence that the applicant lacks fitness. Protests based on endangering or impairing operations of an existing carrier will not be honored. Filings must be made with the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant by July 8, 2019. Documents filed in support of the applications are available for inspection and copying at the Office of the Secretary between 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, and at the business address of the respective applicant.

#### Applications of the following for approval to *begin* operating as *common carriers* for transportation of *persons* as described under each application.

**A-2019-3010120. A-One Do Process, LLC** (1410 2nd Avenue, Altoona, Blair County, PA 16602) for the right to begin to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicles, persons in paratransit service, between points in the Counties of Bedford, Blair, Cambria, Cameron, Centre, Clearfield, Huntingdon and Somerset.

A-2019-3010367. CCC&P Transportation Company, LLC (23 South 4th Street, Youngwood, Westmoreland County, PA 15697) persons in call or demand service, in the Counties of Allegheny, Beaver, Butler, Fayette, Washington and Westmoreland.

**A-2019-3010385. Best Ride Services, Inc.** (8118 Old York Road, Suite F, Elkins Park, Montgomery County, PA 19027) persons in paratransit service, limited to persons who have obtained financial waivers issued by the Department of Human Services under its Community HealthChoices Program, or a successor program, between points in the Counties of Bucks and Montgomery, and the City and County of Philadelphia. *Attorney*: Adeolu Bakare, 100 Pine Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101. A-2019-3010462. Sip And Play Tours, LLC, t/a S & P Transportation (725 Pearl Street, Easton, Northampton County, PA 18042) persons, in group and party service, in vehicles seating 11 to 15 passengers, including the driver, from points in the Counties of Northampton and Monroe, to points in Pennsylvania, and return; excluding areas under the jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Parking Authority.

Applications of the following for approval of the *additional right* and privilege of operating motor vehicles as *common carriers* for transportation of *persons* as described under each application.

A-2019-3010329. C-Pride Taxi Company, LLC, t/a C-Pride Taxi Co. (501 West 22nd Street, Chester, Delaware County, PA 19013) persons in call or demand service, in the City of Chester, Delaware County, and within a 5-mile radius of said city.

A-2019-3010337. George Woolley, t/a Woolley Transport (128 Field Lane, Milroy, Mifflin County, PA 17063) persons in paratransit service, limited to persons whose personal convictions prevent them from owning or operating motor vehicles, from points in Mifflin County, to points in the Counties of Mifflin, Centre, Huntington, Snyder and Juniata, and return.

ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-947. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

### Service of Notice of Motor Carrier Formal Complaints

Formal complaints have been issued by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. Answers must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities). Answers are due July 8, 2019, and must be made with the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy to the First Deputy Chief Prosecutor, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

### Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission; Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement v. Frank H. Barton, t/a F. H. Barton Transportation; Docket No. C-2019-3009727

### COMPLAINT

The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) is a duly constituted agency of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania empowered to regulate public utilities within the Commonwealth. The Commission has delegated its authority to initiate proceedings which are prosecutory in nature to the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement and other bureaus with enforcement responsibilities. Pursuant to that delegated authority and Section 701 of the Public Utility Code, the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement hereby represents as follows:

1. That all authority issued to Frank H. Barton, t/a F. H. Barton Transportation, (respondent) is under sus-

pension effective April 28, 2019 for failure to maintain evidence of insurance on file with this Commission.

2. That respondent maintains a principal place of business at 19747 State Rt. 92, Susquehanna, PA 18847.

3. That respondent was issued a Certificate of Public Convenience by this Commission on May 10, 2011, at A-8912174.

4. That respondent has failed to maintain evidence of Liability insurance on file with this Commission. The Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement's proposed civil penalty for this violation is \$500 and cancellation of the Certificate of Public Convenience.

5. That respondent, by failing to maintain evidence of insurance on file with this Commission, violated 66 Pa.C.S. § 512, 52 Pa. Code § 32.2(c), and 52 Pa. Code § 32.11(a), § 32.12(a) or § 32.13(a).

Wherefore, unless respondent pays the penalty of \$500 or files an answer in compliance with the attached notice and/or causes its insurer to file evidence of insurance with this Commission within twenty (20) days of the date of service of this Complaint, the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement will request that the Commission issue an Order which (1) cancels the Certificate of Public Convenience held by respondent at A-8912174 for failure to maintain evidence of current insurance on file with the Commission, (2) fines Respondent the sum of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) for the illegal activity described in this Complaint, (3) orders such other remedy as the Commission may deem to be appropriate, which may include the suspension of a vehicle registration and (4)imposes an additional fine on the respondent should cancellation occur.

Respectfully submitted, David W. Loucks, Chief Motor Carrier Enforcement Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

### VERIFICATION

I, David W. Loucks, Chief, Motor Carrier Enforcement, Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby state that the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and that I expect that the Bureau will be able to prove same at any hearing held in this matter. I understand that the statements herein are made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Date: 5/8/2019

David W. Loucks, Chief Motor Carrier Enforcement Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

#### NOTICE

A. You must file an Answer within 20 days of the date of service of this Complaint. The date of service is the mailing date as indicated at the top of the Secretarial Letter. See 52 Pa. Code § 1.56(a). The Answer must raise all factual and legal arguments that you wish to claim in your defense, include the docket number of this Complaint, and be verified. You may file your Answer by mailing an original to:

> Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

Or, you may eFile your Answer using the Commission's website at www.puc.pa.gov. The link to eFiling is located under the Filing & Resources tab on the homepage. If your Answer is 250 pages or less, you are not required to file a paper copy. If your Answer exceeds 250 pages, you must file a paper copy with the Secretary's Bureau.

Additionally, a copy should either be mailed to:

Michael L. Swindler, Deputy Chief Prosecutor Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

Or, emailed to Mr. Swindler at: RA-PCCmplntResp@pa.gov

B. If you fail to answer this Complaint within 20 days, the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement will request that the Commission issue an Order imposing the penalty.

C. You may elect not to contest this Complaint by causing your insurer to file proper evidence of current insurance in accordance with the Commission's regulations and by paying the fine proposed in this Complaint by certified check or money order within twenty (20) days of the date of service of this Complaint. Accord certificates of insurance and faxed form Es and Hs are unacceptable as evidence of insurance.

The proof of insurance must be filed with the:

Compliance Office, Bureau of Technical Utility Services Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

Payment of the fine must be made to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and should be forwarded to:

> Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

Your payment is an admission that you committed the alleged violation and an agreement to cease and desist from further violations. Upon receipt of the evidence of insurance from your insurer, and upon receipt of your payment, the Complaint proceeding shall be closed.

D. If you file an Answer which either admits or fails to deny the allegations of the Complaint, the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement will request the Commission to issue an Order imposing the penalty set forth in this Complaint.

E. If you file an Answer which contests the Complaint, the matter will be assigned to an Administrative Law Judge for hearing and decision. The Judge is not bound by the penalty set forth in the Complaint and may impose additional and/or alternative penalties as appropriate.

F. If you are a corporation, you must be represented by legal counsel. 52 Pa. Code § 1.21.

Alternative formats of this material are available for persons with disabilities by contacting the Commission's ADA Coordinator at 717-787-8714. Do not call this number if you have questions as to why you received this complaint. For those questions, you may call 717-783-3847.

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-948. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 49, NO. 25, JUNE 22, 2019

### STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

### Action on Odor Management Plans for Concentrated Animal Operations and Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations and Volunteers Complying with the Commonwealth's Facility Odor Management Program

The State Conservation Commission has taken the following actions on previously received applications for Odor Management Plans under 3 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—522 (relating to nutrient management and odor management).

Persons aggrieved by any action may appeal under 3 Pa.C.S. § 517 (relating to appealable actions), section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act (35 P.S. § 7514) and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law) to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users should contact the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) through the Pennsylvania AT&T Relay Service at (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary of the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create any right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decision law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, appeals must reach the Board within 30 days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, so individuals interested in challenging this action should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for pro bono representation. Call the Secretary of the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

Ag Operation Name, Address	County / Township	Animal Equivalent Units	Animal Type	New, Amended or Existing	Action Taken
Graywood Farms LLC— Home Farm Steve, Byron and Lisa Graybeal 225 Mason Dixon Road Peach Bottom, PA 17563	Lancaster County/ Fulton Township	190	Cattle	Amended	Approved
Joseph A. Miller 820 Panic-Knoxdale Road Reynoldsville, PA 15851	Jefferson County/ McCalmont Township	100.06	Veal	Existing	Rescind
Samuel F. Stoltzfus— Toy Cow Dairy 7857 Route 654 South Williamsport, PA 17701	Lycoming County/ Limestone Township	93.88	Swine/ Turkeys	New	Disapproved
Valentine Byler 1640 Dayton Road Dayton, PA 16222	Armstrong County/ Wayne Township	46.45	Veal	Existing	Rescind
Evergreen Farms, Inc.— Home Farm Andrew Harpster 3102 Evergreen Lane Spruce Creek, PA 16683	Huntingdon County/ Franklin Township	580	Cattle	Existing	Amended

#### **Odor Management Plan—Public Notice Spreadsheet—Actions**

PATRICK McDONNELL,

Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-949. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

### STATE POLICE

### Megan's Law; Registration Sites Report

The following is being published as a notice for State Police-approved Megan's Law registration sites. Chapter 97, Subchapter H of 42 Pa.C.S. (relating to registration of sexual offenders) requires the State Police to publish a list of approved registration sites in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. The following are the approved registered sites.

County Name	Registration Site	Address	Phone
Adams	Adams County Prison— Central Booking	45 Major Bell Lane, Gettysburg, PA 17325	717-334-7671
Adams	State Police Gettysburg	3033 Old Harrisburg Road, Gettysburg, PA 17325	717-334-8111

County Name	Registration Site	Address	Phone
Allegheny	Allegheny County ID Section (walk-in Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Friday, 8:30 a.m.—4:30 p.m.; Thursday, 12 p.m.—8 p.m.)	660 First Avenue Municipal Courts Building, 3rd Floor, Pittsburgh, PA 15219	412-350-6700
Allegheny	State Police Pittsburgh	449 McCormick Road, Moon Township, PA 15108	412-299-1607
Armstrong	Armstrong County Adult Probation	500 East Market Street, Kittanning, PA 16201	724-548-3491
Armstrong	State Police Kittanning	130 Parkview Drive Extension, Kittanning, PA 16201	724-543-2011
Beaver	Beaver County Sheriff— Regional Booking Center	6000 Woodlawn Boulevard, Aliquippa, PA 15001	724-512-2391
Beaver	State Police Beaver	1400 Brighton Road, Beaver, PA 15009	724-773-7400
Bedford	Bedford County Adult Probation	200 South Juliana Street, Bedford, PA 15522	814-623-4830
Bedford	State Police Bedford	171 Arthur L. Hershey Drive, Bedford, PA 15522	814-623-6133
Berks	Berks County Sheriff's Department	633 Court Street, Reading, PA 19601	610-478-6240
Berks	State Police Hamburg	90 Industrial Drive, Hamburg, PA 19526	610-562-6885
Berks	State Police Reading	600 Kenhorst Boulevard, Reading, PA 19611	610-378-4011
Blair	Blair County Prison	419 Market Square Alley, Hollidaysburg, PA 16648	814-693-3155
Blair	State Police Hollidaysburg	1510 North Juniata Street, Hollidaysburg, PA 16648	814-696-6100
Bradford	Bradford County Adult Probation	301 Main Street, Towanda, PA 18848	570-265-1706
Bradford	State Police Towanda	101 Hawkins Road, Towanda, PA 18848	570-265-2186
Bucks	Bensalem Township Police	2400 Byberry Road, Bensalem, PA 19020	215-633-3700
Bucks	Bucks County Department of Corrections	1730 South Easton Road, Building L, Doylestown, PA 18901	215-340-8480
Bucks	State Police Dublin	3218 Rickert Road, Perkasie, PA 18944	215-249-9191
Bucks	State Police Trevose	3501 Neshaminy Boulevard, Bensalem, PA 19020	215-942-3900
Butler	Butler County Prison	202 South Washington Street, Butler, PA 16001	724-284-5256
Butler	Butler County Probation— Parole Office	203 South Washington Street, Butler, PA 16001	724-284-5259
Butler	Cranberry Township Police (Monday—Friday, 8 a.m.—3 p.m. (no holidays))	2525 Rochester Road, Suite 500, Cranberry Township, PA 16066	724-776-5180
Butler	State Police Butler	200 Barracks Road, Butler, PA 16001	724-284-8100
Cambria	State Police Ebensburg	100 Casale Court, Ebensburg, PA 15931	814-471-6500
Cameron	State Police Emporium	12921 Route 120, Emporium, PA 15834	814-486-3321
Carbon	Carbon County Correctional Facility	331 Broad Street, Nesquehoning, PA 18240	570-325-2211
Carbon	State Police Lehighton	9170 Interchange Road, Lehighton, PA 18235	610-681-1850
Centre	Centre County Central Booking	700 Rishel Hill Road, Bellefonte, PA 16823	814-548-1186
Centre	State Police Rockview	330 Penntech Drive, Bellefonte, PA 16823	814-355-7545
Chester	Chester County Prison	501 South Wawaset Road, West Chester, PA 19382	610-793-1510
Chester	State Police Avondale	2 Moxley Lane, Avondale, PA 19311	610-268-2022
Chester	State Police Embreeville	997 Lieds Road, Coatesville, PA 19320	610-486-6280
Clarion	Clarion County Prison	309 Amsler Avenue, Shippenville, PA 16254	814-226-9615
Clarion	State Police Clarion	209 Commerce Road, Clarion, PA 16214	814-226-1710
Clearfield	Clearfield County Prison	115 21st Street, Clearfield, PA 16830	814-765-7891
Clearfield	State Police Clearfield	147 Doe Hill Road, Woodland, PA 16881	814-857-3800
Clinton	Clinton County Prison— Central Booking	58 Pine Mountain Road, McElhattan, PA 17748	570-769-7680
Clinton	State Police Lamar	113 Boyd Road, Mill Hall, PA 17751	570-726-6000
Columbia	Bloomsburg Police	301 East 2nd Street, Bloomsburg, PA 17815	570-784-4155
Columbia	State Police Bloomsburg	6850 Hidlay Church Road, Bloomsburg, PA 17815	570-387-4701
Crawford	Crawford County Probation	903 Diamond Park, Meadville, PA 16335	814-333-7350
Crawford	State Police Meadville	11025 Murray Road, Meadville, PA 16335	814-332-6911
Cumberland	Cumberland County Prison	11025 Murray Koad, Meadvine, FA 16555 1101 Claremont Road, Carlisle, PA 17015	
			717-245-8787
Cumberland	State Police Carlisle	2 Dunwoody Drive, Carlisle, PA 17015	717-249-2121
Dauphin	Dauphin County Judicial Center	451 Mall Road, Harrisburg, PA 17111	717-547-4000
Dauphin	State Police Harrisburg	8000 Bretz Drive, Harrisburg, PA 17112	717-671-7500

County Name	Registration Site	Address	Phone
Dauphin	State Police Lykens	301 State Drive, Elizabethville, PA 17023	717-362-8700
Delaware	Delaware County Probation	201 West Front Street, Media, PA 19063	610-891-4590
Delaware	State Police Media	1342 West Baltimore Pike, Media, PA 19063	484-840-1000
Elk	State Police Ridgway	48 Servidea Drive, Ridgway, PA 15853	814-776-6136
Erie	Erie County Sheriff's Department	140 West 6th Street, Room 400, Erie, PA 16501	814-351-6005
Erie	State Police Corry	11088 Route 6 East, Union City, PA 16438	814-663-2043
Erie	State Police Erie	4320 Iroquois Avenue, Erie, PA 16511	814-898-1641
Erie	State Police Girard	5950 Meadville Road, Girard, PA 16417	814-774-9611
Fayette	State Police Uniontown	1070 Eberly Way, Lemont Furnace, PA 15456	724-439-7111
Fayette	Uniontown City Police	45 East Penn Street, Uniontown, PA 15401	724-430-2929
Forest	State Police Marienville	4956 State Route 899, Marienville, PA 16239	814-927-5253
Franklin	Franklin County Sheriff's Department	157 Lincoln Way East, Chambersburg, PA 17201	717-261-3877
Franklin	State Police Chambersburg	3800 Black Gap Road, Chambersburg, PA 17202	717-264-5161
Fulton	Fulton County Sheriff's Department	207 North 2nd Street, McConnellsburg, PA 17233	717-485-4221
Fulton	State Police McConnellsburg	500 Fulton Drive, McConnellsburg, PA 17233	717-485-3131
Greene	Greene County Courthouse	10 East High Street, Room 103, Waynesburg, PA 15370	724-852-5250
Greene	State Police Waynesburg	255 Elm Drive, Waynesburg, PA 15370	724-627-6151
Huntingdon	Huntingdon County Sheriff's Department	241 Mifflin Street, Suite 1, Huntingdon, PA 16652	814-643-0880
Huntingdon	State Police Huntingdon	10637 Raystown Road, Huntingdon, PA 16652	814-627-3161
Indiana	Indiana County Probation	825 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, PA 15701	724-465-3820
Indiana	State Police Indiana	4221 Route 286 Highway West, Indiana, PA 15701	724-357-1960
Jefferson	Jefferson County Prison	578 Service Center Road, Brookville, PA 15825	814-849-1933
Jefferson	State Police DuBois	230 Platt Road, Dubois, PA 15801	814-371-4652
Jefferson	State Police Punxsutawney	485 North Findley Street, Punxsutawney, PA 15767	814-938-0510
Juniata	Juniata County Probation Office	11 North 3rd Street, Mifflintown, PA 17059	717-436-7716
Juniata	State Police Lewistown	140 Stoney Creek Drive, Mifflintown, PA 17059	717-320-1010
Lackawanna	Lackawanna County Probation	130 North Washington Avenue, Scranton, PA 18503	570-963-6876
Lackawanna	Scranton Police	100 South Washington Avenue, Scranton, PA 18503	570-348-4134
Lackawanna	State Police Dunmore	85 Keystone Industrial Park, Dunmore, PA 18512	570-963-3156
Lancaster	Lancaster City Police	39 West Chestnut Street, Lancaster, PA 17603	717-735-3300
Lancaster	Lancaster County Probation	40 East King Street, Lancaster, PA 17603	717-299-8181
Lancaster	State Police Lancaster	2099 Lincoln Highway East, Lancaster, PA 17602	717-299-7650
Lawrence	State Police New Castle	3539 Wilmington Road, New Castle, PA 16105	724-598-2211
Lebanon	State Police Jonestown	3185 State Route 72, Jonestown, PA 17038	717-865-2194
Lehigh	State Police Bethlehem	2930 Airport Road, Bethlehem, PA 18017	610-861-2026
Lehigh	State Police Fogelsville	8320 Schantz Road, Breinigsville, PA 18031	610-395-1438
Luzerne	State Police Hazleton	250 Dessen Drive, West Hazleton, PA 18202	570-459-3890
Luzerne	State Police Shickshinny	872 Salem Boulevard, Berwick, PA 18603	570-542-7105
Luzerne	State Police Wyoming	475 Wyoming Avenue, Wyoming, PA 18644	570-697-2000
Lycoming	Old Lycoming Township Police Department (Monday—Friday, 10 a.m.—2 p.m.)	1951 Green Avenue, Williamsport, PA 17701	570-323-4987
Lycoming	State Police Montoursville	899 Cherry Street, Montoursville, PA 17754	570-368-5700
McKean	McKean County Prison	17013 Route 6, Smethport, PA 16749	814-887-2333
McKean	State Police Lewis Run	130 Airport Road, Lewis Run, PA 16738	814-368-9230
Mercer	State Police Mercer	826 Franklin Road, Mercer, PA 16137	724-662-6162
Mifflin	Mifflin County Prison	103 West Market Street, Lewistown, PA 17044	717-248-1130
Monroe	Monroe County Prison	4250 Manor Drive, Stroudsburg, PA 18360	570-992-3232
Monroe	State Police Fern Ridge	127 Parkside Avenue, Blakeslee, PA 18610	570-646-2271
Monroe	State Police Stroudsburg	2730 Rimrock Drive, Stroudsburg, PA 18360	570-619-6480

County Name	Registration Site	Address	Phone
Montgomery	Abington Township Police	1166 Old York Road, Abington, PA 19001	267-536-1100
Montgomery	Montgomery County Adult Probation	100 Ross Road, Suite 120, King of Prussia, PA 19406	610-992-7777
Montgomery	Plymouth Township Police	700 Belvoir Road, Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462	610-279-1901
Montgomery	State Police Skippack	2047C Bridge Road, Schwenksville, PA 19473	610-410-3835
Northampton	Northampton County Prison	666 Walnut Street, Easton, PA 18042	610-923-4300
Northampton	State Police Belfast	654 Bangor Road, Nazareth, PA 18064	610-759-6106
Northumberland	State Police Milton	50 Lawton Lane, Milton, PA 17847	570-524-2662
Northumberland	State Police Stonington	2465 State Route 61, Sunbury, PA 17801	570-286-5601
Northumberland	Sunbury Police	440 Market Street, Sunbury, PA 17801	570-286-4584
Perry	Perry County Courthouse	2 East Main Street, New Bloomfield, PA 17068	717-582-2131
Perry	State Police Newport	155 Red Hill Road, Newport, PA 17074	717-567-3110
Philadelphia	State Police Philadelphia	2201 Belmont Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19131	215-452-5216
Pike	Pike County Probation	506 Broad Street, Milford, PA 18337	570-296-7412
Pike	State Police Blooming Grove	434 Route 402, Hawley, PA 18428	570-226-5718
Potter	Potter County Adult Probation	1 North Main Street, Coudersport, PA 16915	814-274-8791
Potter	State Police Coudersport	3140 East Second Street, Coudersport, PA 16915	814-274-8690
Schuylkill	Schuylkill County Sheriff's Department	401 North 2nd Street, Pottsville, PA 17901	570-628-1440
Schuylkill	State Police Frackville	31 Eleanor Avenue, Frackville, PA 17931	570-874-5300
Schuylkill	State Police Schuylkill Haven	1070 South PA Route 183, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972	570-754-4600
Snyder	Snyder County Sheriff's Department	12 South Main Street, Middleburg, PA 17842	570-837-3311
Snyder	State Police Selinsgrove	204 Universal Road, Selinsgrove, PA 17870	570-374-8145
Somerset	Somerset Borough Police	340 West Union Street, Somerset, PA 15501	814-445-4596
Somerset	State Police Somerset	142 Sagamore Street, Somerset, PA 15501	814-445-4104
Sullivan	State Police Laporte	5837 Route 220, Laporte, PA 18626	570-946-4610
Susquehanna	State Police Gibson	2856 State Route 848, New Milford, PA 18834	570-465-3154
Susquehanna	Susquehanna County Adult Probation	81 Public Avenue, Montrose, PA 18801	570-278-4600
Tioga	State Police Mansfield	785 Lambs Creek Road, Mansfield, PA 16933	570-662-2151
Tioga	Tioga County Probation Department	118 Main Street, Wellsboro, PA 16901	570-724-9340
Union	Union County Courthouse/Prison	103 South Second Street, Lewisburg, PA 17837	570-524-8716
Venango	State Police Franklin	6724 US 322, Franklin, PA 16323	814-676-6596
Warren	State Police Warren	22001 Route 6, Warren, PA 16365	814-728-3600
Warren	Warren County Prison	407 Market Street, Warren, PA 16365	814-723-2486
Washington	State Police Washington	150 State Route 519, Eighty-Four, PA 15330	724-223-5200
Washington	Washington County Booking Center	29 West Cherry Avenue, Suite 209, Washington, PA 15301	724-229-5931
Wayne	State Police Honesdale	14 Collan Park, Honesdale, PA 18431	570-251-7207
Wayne	Wayne County Courthouse	925 Court Street, Honesdale, PA 18431	570-253-5970
Westmoreland	State Police Belle Vernon	560 Circle Drive, Belle Vernon, PA 15012	724-929-6262
Westmoreland	State Police Greensburg	100 North Westmoreland Avenue, Greensburg, PA 15601	724-832-3288
Westmoreland	State Police Kiski Valley	1325 Learn Road, Avonmore, PA 15618	724-697-5780
Westmoreland	Westmoreland County Probation	2 North Main Street, Suite 303, Greensburg, PA 15601	724-830-3457
Wyoming	State Police Tunkhannock	6039 State Route 6, Tunkhannock, PA 18657	570-836-2141
Wyoming	Wyoming County Adult Probation	1 Courthouse Square, Tunkhannock, PA 18657	570-996-2265
York	State Police York	101 North Main Street, York, PA 17403	717-428-1011
York	York County Probation	45 North George Street, York, PA 17401	717-771-9602

LIEUTENANT COLONEL ROBERT EVANCHICK,

Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-950. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

## SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

### **Grandfathering Registration Notice**

The Susquehanna River Basin Commission (Commission) lists the following Grandfathering (GF) Registration for projects under 18 CFR Part 806, Subpart E (relating to registration of grandfathered projects) from May 1, 2019, through May 31, 2019.

For further information contact Jason E. Oyler, General Counsel and Secretary, (717) 238-0423, Ext. 1312, fax (717) 238-2436, joyler@srbc.net. Regular mail inquiries may be sent to the Susquehanna River Basin Commission, 4423 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110-1788.

### Supplementary Information

This notice lists GF Registration for projects, described as follows, under 18 CFR Part 806, Subpart E for the time period previously specified:

GF Registration Under 18 CFR Part 806, Subpart E

1. Village of Cooperstown—Water Department; GF Certificate No. GF-201905030; Village of Cooperstown, Otsego County, NY; Otsego Lake; Issue Date: May 7, 2019.

2. Corey Creek Golf Club; GF Certificate No. GF-201905031; Richmond Township, Tioga County, PA; Irrigation Pond; Issue Date: May 7, 2019.

3. Huntsinger Farms, Inc.; GF Certificate No. GF-201905032; Hegins and Hubley Townships, Schuylkill County, PA; Deep Creek 1, Deep Creek 2, Pine Creek 1, Pine Creek 2 and Monroes Pond; Issue Date: May 7, 2019.

Authority: Pub.L. No. 91-575, 84 Stat. 1509 et seq., 18 CFR Parts 806—808

Dated: June 10, 2019

ANDREW D. DEHOFF, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-951. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

### Projects Approved for Consumptive Uses of Water

The Susquehanna River Basin Commission (Commission) approved by rule the following list of projects from April 1, 2019, through April 30, 2019.

For further information contact Jason E. Oyler, General Counsel and Secretary, (717) 238-0423, Ext. 1312, fax (717) 238-2436, joyler@srbc.net. Regular mail inquiries may be sent to the Susquehanna River Basin Commission, 4423 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110-1788.

### Supplementary Information

This notice lists the projects, described as follows, receiving approval for the consumptive use of water under the Commission's approval by rule process in 18 CFR 806.22(e) and (f) (relating to standards for consumptive uses of water) for the time period previously specified:

### Approvals by Rule Issued Under 18 CFR 806.22(f):

1. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Webster—1, ABR-20090401.R2; Franklin Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 2.9999 mgd; Approval Date: April 11, 2019.

2. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Holbrook # 1, ABR-20090402.R2; Liberty Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.9990 mgd; Approval Date: April 11, 2019.

3. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Turner—1, ABR-20090403.R2; Middletown Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.9990 mgd; Approval Date: April 11, 2019.

4. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Fiondi—1, ABR-20090404.R2; Bridgewater Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.0010 mgd; Approval Date: April 11, 2019.

Authority: Pub.L. No. 91-575, 84 Stat. 1509 et seq., 18 CFR Parts 806—808

Dated: June 10, 2019

ANDREW D. DEHOFF,

Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-952. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

# SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

### Projects Approved for Consumptive Uses of Water

The Susquehanna River Basin Commission (Commission) approved by rule the following list of projects from May 1, 2019, through May 31, 2019.

For further information contact Jason E. Oyler, General Counsel and Secretary, (717) 238-0423, Ext. 1312, fax (717) 238-2436, joyler@srbc.net. Regular mail inquiries may be sent to the Susquehanna River Basin Commission, 4423 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110-1788.

### Supplementary Information

This notice lists the projects, described as follows, receiving approval for the consumptive use of water under the Commission's approval by rule process in 18 CFR 806.22(e) and (f) (relating to standards for consumptive uses of water) for the time period previously specified:

#### Approvals by Rule Issued Under 18 CFR 806.22(e):

1. Sunoco Pipeline, LP; Mariner East 2 Pipeline— Aughwick Creek; ABR-201905007; Shirley Township, Huntingdon County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 0.200 mgd; Approval Date: May 21, 2019.

2. Sunoco Pipeline, LP; Mariner East 2 Pipeline— Appalachian Trail and Norfolk Southern Railroad Crossing; ABR-201905008; Middlesex and Silver Spring Townships, Cumberland County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 0.144 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019. Water Source Approvals Issued Under 18 CFR 806.22(f)(13):

1. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Molly J 2, ABR-201905001; Monroe Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 6, 2019.

2. Beech Resources, LLC; Pad ID: Premier Well Site, ABR-201905002; Lycoming Township, Lycoming County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 6, 2019.

3. Seneca Resources Company, LLC; Pad ID: PHC 4H, ABR-20090501.R2; Lawrence Township, Clearfield County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 7, 2019.

4. Seneca Resources Company, LLC; Pad ID: PHC 5H, ABR-20090502.R2; Lawrence Township, Clearfield County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 7, 2019.

5. Seneca Resources Company, LLC; Pad ID: PHC 9H, ABR-20090503.R2; Lawrence Township, Clearfield County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 0.9990 mgd; Approval Date: May 7, 2019.

6. Seneca Resources Company, LLC; Pad ID: Wilcox Pad F, ABR-20090505.R2; Covington Township, Tioga County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 2.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

7. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: CEASE (01 005/008) R, ABR-20090506.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

8. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: SHEDDEN (01 026/027) R, ABR-20090507.R2; Troy Township, Brad-ford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

9. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: HARRIS (01 004) M, ABR-20090508.R2; Armenia Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

10. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: BENSE (01 025/070) B, ABR-20090509.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

11. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: PHINNEY (01 006) J, ABR-20090510.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

12. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Blanchard Drilling Pad, ABR-201405002.R1; McNett Township, Lycoming County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 2.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

13. Inflection Energy (PA), LLC; TLC Pad, ABR-201405004.R1; Eldred Township, Lycoming County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 13, 2019.

14. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Harper Unit # 1, ABR-20090515.R2; West Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 14, 2019.

15. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Jennings Unit # 1H, ABR-20090516.R2; West Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 14, 2019. 16. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Black Unit # 1H, ABR-20090517.R2; Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 14, 2019.

17. ARD Operating, LLC; Pad ID: Little Fawn Pad A, ABR-201905004; Cascade Township, Lycoming County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

18. ARD Operating, LLC; Pad ID: David C Duncan Pad B, ABR-201905005; Cascade Township, Lycoming County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

19. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Corbett Unit Pad, ABR-201905006; Overton Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 2.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

20. BKV Operating, LLC; Pad ID: Cowfer—1, ABR-20090417.R2; Rush Township, Centre County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 0.9990 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

21. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Ward, ABR-20090519.R2; West Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

22. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Hannan, ABR-20090520.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

23. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Isbell, ABR-20090521.R2; Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

24. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: KNIGHTS (01 044) L, ABR-20090522.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

25. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: HARRIS (01 012) A, ABR-20090523.R2; Armenia Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 20, 2019.

26. Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC; Pad ID: THOMAS (01 038) FT, ABR-20090524.R2; Troy Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 6.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 21, 2019.

27. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Otten, ABR-20090526.R2; Asylum Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

28. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Mowry, ABR-20090527.R2; Tuscarora Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

29. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: May, ABR-20090528.R2; Granville Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

30. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: John Barrett, ABR-20090529.R2; Asylum Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

31. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: James Barrett, ABR-20090530.R2; Asylum Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019. 32. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Chancellor, ABR-20090532.R2; Asylum Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

33. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Clapper, ABR-20090533.R2; Auburn Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

34. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Judd, ABR-20090534.R2; Monroe Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

35. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: VanNoy, ABR-20090535.R2; Granville Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 22, 2019.

36. SWEPI LP; Pad ID: Tice 653, ABR-201403002.R1; Richmond Township, Tioga County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 28, 2019.

37. SWEPI LP; Pad ID: Shughart 534, ABR-201403003.R1; Richmond Township, Tioga County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 28, 2019.

38. SWEPI LP; Pad ID: Shughart 490, ABR-201403004.R1; Richmond Township, Tioga County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 28, 2019.

39. Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC; Pad ID: Przybyszewski, ABR-20090555.R2; Auburn Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 7.5000 mgd; Approval Date: May 29, 2019. 40. Chief Oil & Gas, LLC; Pad ID: Harris # 1H, ABR-20090556.R2; Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 29, 2019.

41. Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation; Pad ID: HawkJ P1, ABR-201403013.R1; Auburn Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 29, 2019.

42. Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation; Pad ID: GrasavageE P1, ABR-201403014.R1; Jessup Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 29, 2019.

43. Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation; Pad ID: SlocumS P1, ABR-201403015.R1; Jackson Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 5.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 29, 2019.

44. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Powers Pad Site, ABR-20090511.R2; Forest Lake Township, Susquehanna County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 3.0000 mgd; Approval Date: May 31, 2019.

45. SWN Production Company, LLC; Pad ID: Lepley Pad—TI-04, ABR-201405006.R1; Liberty Township, Tioga County, PA; Consumptive Use of Up to 4.9990 mgd; Approval Date: May 31, 2019.

Authority: Pub.L. No. 91-575, 84 Stat. 1509 et seq., 18 CFR Parts 806—808

Dated: June 10, 2019

ANDREW D. DEHOFF,

Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 19-953. Filed for public inspection June 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m.]

3286